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CORPORATE PROFILE
REEN

Affluent Partners Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are principally engaged in purchasing,
processing, designing, production and wholesale distribution of pearls
and jewellery products and operation of strategic investment and financial
services.

The Company was spun-off from Man Sang International Limited and
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange’) by way of introduction on 17 October 2014 under
the stock code of 1466. In March 2017, the name of the Company was
changed from Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited to Affluent Partners
Holdings Limited.

The Group is one of the world's largest merchants, purchasers and
processors of pearls. The processing and production of pearls and
jewellery are conducted at the Group's production facilities in Shenzhen,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

During the current financial year, the Group has invested in the realty
market in the United Kingdom through the subscription of an investment
fund and loan notes which are included in the strategic investment and
financial services operating segment.

The Group will continue to explore new business opportunities so arising
in order to maximise shareholders' value in the coming future.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

1)

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FEHKRE
Year ended 31 March
BZE3831ALEE
Consolidated Income Statement FERER 2018 2017 Change
20185 074 0 & 2E) %
Revenue (HKS$'000) WA (FET) 187,357 212,232 (24,875) (11.7)%
Gross profit (HK$'000) EM(FET) 55,092 54,151 941 17%
Loss before income tax (HK$'000) BRAE a"}éﬁﬁréﬂ% (Fi&1) (128,555) (24282) (104,273) (429.4)%
Loss for the year attributable to equity AEFZARRAIREEMGER
holders of the Company (HK$'000) (F&71) (129,787) (23,886) (105,901) (443.4)%
Basic and diluted loss per share (HK cent) FRERL#EERE (GBI (38.48) (7.48) (31) (414.4)%
As at 31 March
H3A31H
Consolidated Balance Sheet REEESER 2018 2017 Change
20185 20174 2E) %
Net assets (HK$'000) BEFE(FET) 236,508 290,085 (53,577) (18.5)%
Cash and cash equivalents (HK$'000) RehERBRE (FHT) 54,686 54,342 344 0.6%
Shareholders' equity (HK$'000) Rz (TAT) 236,508 290,085 (53,577) (18.5)%
KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS ER KR
2018 2017 Change
20185 20174 &
Gross profit margin® EMED 29.4% 25.5% 3.9 percentage points
39 BB
Return on equity® BRE SRR (54.9)% (8.2% (46.7) percentage points
(46.7)EE 72
Current ratio (times)® RE R (fZ)0 9.1 127
Gearing ratio BREEL R - =

Gross profit margin represents gross profit divided by revenue of the Group.

Return on equity is defined as the ratio of loss attributable to equity holders of the

Company to total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company.

divided by total equity.

Current ratio is defined as the ratio of total current assets to total current liabilities.

Gearing ratio represents total borrowing, including current and non-current portion,
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERB|E

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”), |
hereby present the results of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018 (‘FY2018").

PERFORMANCE

This year, the Company continued its pace in sharp transformation.
Through strategic investment and financial services segment, the
Company gradually marched towards becoming an investment enterprise
with business diversification. Its objectives include investments in bonds,
funds and other forms of securities, which may include long-term and
short-term investments in Hong Kong and other overseas markets as well
as other potential investment opportunities.

Meanwhile, we strengthened our efforts in developing real estate business
and successively invested in real estate both in Hong Kong and London
in FY2018. We invested in a commercial property with a saleable area
of approximately 2,567 square feet in Wanchai, Hong Kong through an
acquisition of Summit Pacific Group Limited in March 2018. The Group is
of the view that there are considerable return potentials in Hong Kong's
commercial property market, the long-term appreciation of commercial
properties in particular. In addition, the property can be occupied as the
headquarters of the Group as and when appropriate.

Since February 2018, we have invested in a larger residential real estate
project known as Lillie Square, the fourth block within Phase 2 of the
site in London, the UK (the “Project”) through a subscription in Orient
Capital Opportunity Fund SPC. The Project comprises 49 apartment units,
together with the use rights of 31 parking spaces and is expected to
be completed in 2020. It is developed by a joint venture established by
Capital & Counties Properties PLC and KFI. KFI owns interest for certain
members of the Kwok's family, who are major shareholders of Sun Hung
Kai Properties Limited, one of the largest real estate companies listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Furthermore, from November 2017 onwards, the Group has been investing
in a real estate agency business in England and entered into an investment
agreement with Wonderland (UK) Holdings Limited, the exclusive licensee
of the brand Sotheby’s International Realty in England. The business is
principally engaged in residential sales and leases, sales and investments
of development projects and international sales. Currently, the Sotheby's
International Realty network has approximately 22,000 sales personnel in
approximately 950 offices spanning 69 countries. The Group will enhance
its efforts to establish a presence in the realty market in England and take
full advantage of the real estate agency industry to accelerate our future
growth.
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The sales market of pearl and jewellery products continue to be weak
with high uncertainties clouding the outlooks. The Group will continue
to observe the high-consumption products market, and to review and
adjust business development strategies in a timely manner in a bid to
deploy for steady growing performance in the future. To cope with the
pace of transformation, the Group also disposed of the subsidiary engaged
in money lending business and fully written down its investment in
associates during the year.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, with gradual expansion in real estate investment
business, our targets are the United Kingdom and the countries along
“One Belt One Road"”. We anticipate such investments and the strategic
investment and financial services segment will diversify the income
streams of the Group, and generate additional investment returns on the
available funds of the Company from time to time. We expect that the
segment will be the growth driver of the Company and will actively make
continuous efforts to find appropriate investment projects in the future.

The Group will further use its resources as a listed company to add
value for the acquisition project to increase its profitability and return.
Meanwhile, the Group will continue enhancing the development of the
mature pearls and jewellery business, actively participating in various
important jewellery & gem fairs around the world and optimising
operation efficiency and productivity in a bid to stay competitive.

APPRECIATION

I ' would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude to
all our shareholders, customers and other business partners for their long-
term attention and support to the Group over the years. | would also like
to thank the senior management team and all staff of the Group for their
dedication and hard work to the Group during the past year.

Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERENWE D

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The Board hereby reports the results of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (‘FY2018"). During FY2018, the
consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the Company was
HK$129.8 million (year ended 31 March 2017 ("FY2017"): HK$23.9 million),
representing an increase of 443.1% as compared with that in FY2017. Basic
loss per share was 38.48 HK cents (FY2017: 7.48 HK cents), representing an
increase of 414.4% as compared with that in FY2017. The significant loss
for FY2018 is mainly due to the realised loss on disposals of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, the loss on investments in associates
and the impairment loss on loans to associates amounted to HK$105.3
million in aggregate.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Pearls and Jewellery Business Segment

The Group is one of the world's largest merchants, purchasers and
processors of pearls, with its customers spanning through 50 countries
and regions around the globe. Leveraging its own competitive
advantages, which include the close and stable relationship with
customers and suppliers, the Group has offered vertically integrated
product chain and built a renowned reputation in the pearl and jewellery
industry.

The global market sentiment for pearl and fine jewellery continue to
be weak during the year which had an adverse impact on demand of
the Group's pearl and jewellery products. There was also a weakening
consumption sentiment which reduced the total Group's sales
contribution in pearl and jewellery products (FY2018: HK$176.5 million;
FY2017: HK$210.1 million). For FY2018, the return on capital of pearls and
jewellery products was (10.3)% (FY2017: (5.4)%).

The Group will continue to strictly control costs and improve operation
efficiency and productivity in a bid to stay competitive. The Group will
continue to actively participate in various important jewellery and gem
fairs around the world in order to maintain a diversified customer base.
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Strategic Investment and Financial Services Segment

In the wake of rapid transformation last year, this year the Group gradually
achieved business diversification through the strategic investment and
financial services segment. This segment has been in operation, and its
objectives include provision of money lending service, investments in the
stock market, bonds, funds and other forms of securities, embracing long-
term and short-term investments in listed securities in Hong Kong and
other recognized overseas securities markets as well as other potential
investment opportunities.

During the year, the Group entered into an investment agreement with
Wonderland (UK) Holdings Limited ("Wonderland (UK)") to subscribe
up to GBP3.5 million 6% convertible guaranteed redeemable loan notes.
Wonderland (UK) is the exclusive licensee of the Sotheby's International
Realty brand in England and holds the entire equity interest of Sotheby's
International Realty Limited (“SIRL") which is operating a real estate
agency business under the Sotheby’s International Realty brand in
England. The Sotheby's International Realty brand primarily deals in
residential sales, lettings, development sales, investment and international
sales and its franchise network currently has approximately 22,000 sales
associates, located in approximately 950 offices across 69 countries. SIRL
plans to expand the number of offices under operation across London in
the next three years to increase brand presence and to capture additional
revenue in multiple areas in the city of London. We are convinced that
the real estate market in England has a huge potential for future growth.
As at 31 March 2018, the Group has subscribed a total of approximately
GBP2.6 million 6% convertible guaranteed redeemable loan notes issued
by Wonderland (UK).

During the year, the Group entered into a subscription agreement with
Orient Capital Opportunity Fund SPC (the “Investment Fund”) pursuant
to which the Group has agreed to subscribe for Participating Shares of
the value equivalent to HK$76,000,000 in the Investment Fund in respect
of the Orient Capital Real Estate Fund SP (the “Sub-Fund”) in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the subscription agreement and the
private placing memorandum. The principal investment objective of the
Sub-Fund is to achieve capital returns by investing solely in a residential
estate project (the "Project”) in West London. The Project comprises
49 apartment units and 31 car parking spaces which are located at 9
Lillie Square, Lillie Square, London, SW6, United Kingdom. The Project is
the fourth block within Phase 2 of a larger development known as Lillie
Square. Lillie Square is owned and developed by a joint venture formed
by Capital & Counties Properties PLC (“Capco”), one of the largest listed
property investment and development companies that specialises in
central London real estate, and interests of certain members of the Kwok
family ("KFI"). KFI represents interests of certain members of the Kwok
family, who are major shareholders of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited,
one of the largest real estate companies listed on the Stock Exchange. The
Project is expected to be completed in 2020. As at 31 March 2018, the
Group has contributed HK$38,000,000 to the Sub-Fund and the remaining
portion of HK$38,000,000 is subject to be called from time to time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE N ® LT (8)

The Group currently holds 33% of the entire issued share capital of a
Korean beverage company, Dellos Group Limited (‘Dellos Group”).
Products under Dellos Group are sold in Korean and over 40 countries
across the world, spanning the European Union, Russia, Middle Asia,
South America and Africa. Dellos Group develops the nano water-soluble
technology with an independent third party, which could be applied to
the manufacturing process of beverage for easily digested and absorbed
by human body.

Reference is made to the announcement (the “Acquisition
Announcement’) of the Company dated 18 April 2017 in relation to
the acquisition of 33% of the entire issued share capital of Dellos Group.
As disclosed in the Acquisition Announcement, pursuant to the Sale
and Purchase Agreement, the Vendors have irrevocably warranted and
guaranteed to the Purchaser that the 2017 operating profit before working
capital changes of Dellos F&B Co,, Ltd. for the year ended 30 June 2017
(“the 2017 OPWCC") will not be less than the 2017 Guaranteed Amount,
i.e. KRW2,250,000,000. The Board is pleased to announce that, according
to the 2017 Audited Accounts, the 2017 OPWCC exceeded the 2017
Guaranteed Amount and therefore the profit guarantee has been fulfilled
under the Sale and Purchase Agreement. Accordingly, no adjustment to
the Consideration is required.

During the course of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for FY2018, the Group carried out follow up work with the
Dellos Group in relation to the determination of the Group's share of net
assets and profit or loss of the Dellos Group.

In early 2018, the then chief executive officer of Dellos F&B Co., Ltd.
(‘Dellos F&B"), the operating subsidiary of Dellos Group in Korea, resigned
as director of Dellos Korea. A new chief executive officer took over the role
and the management of Dellos F&B discovered that the business of Dellos
F&B was mismanaged under the former chief executive officer and some
of the assets were inflated, and they misappropriated Dellos F&B's assets
through current account with their connected entities. In March 2018,
the Group's finance personnel visited Dellos F&B's factory and no signs
of any irregularities were noted. However, during the course of carrying
out the follow up work, the Group was informed by the management of
Dellos Group on 20 June 2018 that Dellos F&B had filed an application
for commencing rehabilitation proceedings (the “Rehabilitation
Proceedings’) with Seoul Rehabilitation Court (the “Court”) on 13
February 2018 and the Court had approved the commencement of the
Rehabilitation Proceedings on 7 March 2018. The management of Dellos
F&B explained to the Group that the deterioration of Dellos F&B's financial
condition was brought by its former chief executive officer and Dellos
F&B has already taken legal action against him for misappropriation of
assets and for using the Dellos’ trademark for selling to customers without
permission.
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Therefore, the Group immediately sought legal advice from its legal
advisers in Korea to assess the implications of the Rehabilitation
Proceedings on the Group's interests in the Dellos Group.

The draft rehabilitation plan (‘Rehabilitation Plan”) involves, among
other matters, reduction or exemption of the outstanding debts owed by
Dellos F&B, conversion of all or part of the creditors’ claims into shares of
Dellos F&B and repayment plan for the remaining debts. The Rehabilitation
Plan will be put forward for approval by the creditors and shareholders of
Dellos F&B and the Court on 18 July 2018. Upon obtaining the approvals
of the creditors and shareholders of Dellos F&B and the Court, Dellos F&B
will become subject to the approved Rehabilitation Plan.

The fair value of the equity interest of Dellos Group at as 31 March
2018 was closed to zero which is determined based on the valuation
provided by CHFT Advisory and Appraisal Limited (“CHFT"), independent
professional qualified valuers not connected with the Group. The valuation
is prepared using cost approach, where the nature of each account is
reviewed and assessed individually. For the fixed assets valuation, another
valuation report issued by a Korean valuation firm is adopted for further
reference. Nevertheless, no cashflow projection, discount rate or growth
rate is adopted in this valuation. For the valuation conducted in previous
financial reporting period (interim period ended 30 September 2017),
income approach with on-going concern basis was adopted for Dellos
Group. However, as at 31 March 2018, CHFT noticed that Dellos Group was
undergoing restructuring process in accordance with the Rehabilitation
Plan. The operating status of Dellos Group has significantly changed and
no reliable projection is available. Thus, the valuation method has changed
from income approach to cost approach. The inputs adopted was not the
same with valuation conducted in prior period.

Based on the advices from the Group's legal advisers and CHFT, the
Group considered it is probable that the shareholding of the Group in
Dellos F&B will be diminished. Hence, the directors of the Company
considered that Dellos F&B had ceased to be an associate of the Group
since the date of filing of application for commencing the Rehabilitation
Proceedings and that as a result of the Rehabilitation Plan, there was no
significant value in the Group's equity interests in the Dellos Group as (i)
the main operating subsidiary in the Dellos Group prior to the date of
filing of application for commencing the Rehabilitation Proceedings is
Dellos F&B; (i) the shareholding of Dellos Group in Dellos F&B would likely
be very significantly diluted; (i) the important decisions of Dellos F&B
would require the Court’s approval; and (iv) there would be no dividend
payout during the rehabilitation period. It is considered highly unlikely
that Dellos Group would bring to the Group any future economic benefits.
Therefore, the entire investments cost of the Group in Dellos Group of
approximately HK$80,193,000 was fully written down as at 31 March 2018
and the resulting loss of approximately HK$80,193,000 was recognised
in consolidated profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 and
presented as “loss on investments in associates”.
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According to the Rehabilitation Plan, the loans made to Dellos F&B have
been made part of the rehabilitation claims, with the Group having
been regarded as a rehabilitation creditor. Although the Group, as a
rehabilitation creditor, will be able to obtain recovery of the loans in
accordance with the terms of the Rehabilitation Plan, it is subject to
approval by the Court and also the economic conditions of Dellos F&B. In
addition, based on the latest financial information provided by Dellos F&B,
the financial position of Dellos F&B is net current liabilities. Furthermore,
all the non-financial assets of Dellos F&B were pledged to certain banks
in Korea by reference to the latest published audited financial statements.
The directors of the Company considered that the likelihood of recovery
of the loans and interest receivables owed by Dellos Group to the Group,
whose carrying amount as at 31 March 2018 amounting to approximately
HK$13,871,000 is remote, hence, except for the amount of interest of
approximately HK$345,000 which was subsequently settled on 13 June
2018, the balances are considered irrecoverable and are fully impaired.
Accordingly, an impairment loss on the loan and interest receivables
amounting to HK$13,871,000 was recognised in consolidated profit or loss
for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Looking forward, with the completion of our convertible loan notes
subscription of Wonderland (UK), its subsequent real estate agency
business and the investment in the Sub-Fund, we expect that our strategic
investment and financial services segment will diversify the income
streams of the Group and generate additional investment returns on the
available funds of the Company from time to time. We expect that the
segment will be the growth driver of the Company and will actively make
continuous efforts to find appropriate investment projects in the future.
The Group will further use its resources as a listed company to add value
for the acquisition project, so as to increase its profitability and return.

BIEEEL & NEB [Dellos FBIEH 2 B
BERERREZ — o MAKEEHRAE
BERA-BERNEE EAEREEAN) B
WIRBEER B 2GR EE R - EE AR AR
HE% - FAEE - B IREURR Dellos F&BZ 4% 7
HAT © AN - AR HE Dellos FRBIR M 2 & 3T BB 15 &
%} Dellos F&BZ BA TEAR N AR EN B (E)FRE AN

2 E BT 2 K F XY K  Dellos F&B
ZHBECRMEECERTE TREEIT AR
RIEER A WEDellos Group#s K AN B 2 fE UK
EREFE (ER2018FE3831B2EEEY A
13,871,000 70 ) Z AJ BE I B HE 12201856 A
138 EEER 2 F) B & ZE4934500078 TTBRHh 45
BB BT WE T 2 EORmE - At 2R E
E2018F3A31 B IEFENGAIBRBEREMWER
R F) 2R B &5 813,871,000 7T ©

R BRI BEZE Wonderland (UK) 2 AT IR B R =18
REESEIETHK  ETEER cFHEREES
URIEERTFES BMEHRBIEE R BR
BoEEAZ T tBEBRAEBENKRANRIR - BT
BNAARRAFERAECEEEIMNEER TR - FM
TEHZ D B A AR R RMIERE 77 KR
RREBEBEGSHBEANKRERE AEEEE
—SHAEEAETRARMNERAWEEE L
B URSEZFEEH KB -



INVESTMENT REVIEW

Movements in the Hong Kong listed equities and unlisted fund held by the
Group during FY2018 are as follows:

Annual Report 2018 £3f 13

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EREN LD (B)

REOE

RO1BFFBRFERN AAREFAEZEE LT
REMFELETES ZHEHMT

2018

HK$’000

FER

Carrying amount at beginning of year REYZEREE 42,774
Acquisitions BA 43,967
Disposals e (37,472)
Loss on disposals of financial assets TESMEEZEBE (11,269)
Carrying amount at end of year RFLRZEREE 38,000

Details of the Hong Kong listed equities and unlisted fund held by the
Group at 31 March 2018 are as follows:

R2018F3 A3 BRAEBIFEE2E B LTRER
ELEmEESZHEBOT

Fair value Fair value
as compared as compared
to the Loss to the
consolidated on disposals consolidated
Number of total assets recognised in Number of total assets
Shares held at Fairvalueat  oftheGroupat  theyearended shares held at Fairvalueat  of the Group at
31March 2018 31March 2018 31 March 2018 31March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2017 31 March 2017
ATEEALE AHEEARE
20185 HZ2018% #017%
20185 20185 3A318 3A31BLEE R2017% R017% 3310
3A318 3A318 ZEREE BB 3A318 3A318 ZEREE
BEZRGEE 2AYE BEZLE HEEE BEZRHEA ZAVE BEZLE
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000
TEL TEL TERL
Name of Hong Kong listed equities EBLTRELE
Bejing Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited IR REXRERERAA
(Stock code: 682) (BR1A AR5 6828) - - - 994 25,800,000 14,964 48%
China Baoli Technologies Holdings Limited ~~ FEIE HRHEERAER A A
(Stock code: 164) (RHRIE - 164) - - - 759 66,000,000 14190 45%
Name of unlisted fund
Quantum Growth Fund Quantum Growth Fund - - - 2679 1371599 13,620 44%
Orient Capital Opportunity Fund SPC Orient Capital Opportunity Fund SPC 24,950,000 38,000 150% - - - -
38,000 11269 42,774

During the year, the Group’s money lending business generated interest
income on loans of HK$10.9 million (FY2017: HK$S2.1 million). The Group
granted new loans in the aggregate principal amount of HK$45.6 million
(FY2017: HK$45.0 million) to its customers and the associates. Throughout
the reporting period, the directors have continuously assessed the
collectability of loans receivable. As there was no objective evidence that
the Group would not be able to collect all amounts due, no impairment
loss on loans receivable was recognised. At 31 March 2018, the Group's
loans receivable together with accrued interest receivable amounted
to nil (2017: HKS46.9 million). During the year, the Group disposed of
the subsidiary engaged in money lending business. Subsequent to the
balance sheet date, the Group has no longer been engaged in any money
lending business.

FRNAEBZEEEBEECERFBRA
510,900,000/ 7T (20174 BF B 4F € : 2,100,000
T0) cAEEEERFPMBHENRREASRES
45,600,000/ 7T (20174 BA BRE [Z : 45,000,000 7T )
ZIHER -RMERA ERFETHERER 2
AWEREE AR EEEERE A B E
SEWE BT A B BIRUE - O B R R E SR
EEE - R2018F3A31H  AEE 2 B E FE
& JE U FE =t 71 B 8 E (20174F : 46,900,000 7T ) ©
FRN AEBLENEEEER 2HBAR R
HEH®EZ AEECETEREEMNEEER-
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group currently is principally engaged in purchasing, processing,
designing, production and wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery
products and operation of strategic investment and financial services.

Revenue and Gross Profit

Revenue decreased during the year (FY2018: HK$187.4 million; FY2017:
HK$212.2 million), comprised sales of pearl and jewellery of HK$176.5
million (FY2017: HK$210.1 million) and interest income on strategic
investment and financial services of HK$10.9 million (FY2017: HK$2.1
million), mainly as a result of the decrease in revenue from sales of pearls
and jewellery products segment.

Gross profit slightly increased by HK$0.9 million or 1.7% to HK$55.1 million
(FY2017: HK$54.2 million). The increase was mainly due to the increase
in gross profit margin during FY2018 (FY2018: 29.4%; FY2017: 25.5%). The
increase in gross profit margin was mainly attributable to the increase in
gross profit margin of sales of pearls and jewellery products segment and
the increase in interest income from strategic investment and financial
services during the year.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

(the “S&A expenses”)

S&A expenses mainly comprised selling expenses of HK$8.6 million
(FY2017: HKS$8.3 million) and administrative expenses of HK$70.1 million
(FY2017: HK$69.2 million). S&A expenses increased by HKS$1.2 million
or 1.5% to HK$78.7 million (FY2017: HKS$77.5 million) in FY2018, as a
result of cost control measures deployed by the Group which reduced
administrative expenses, netted off by the increase in provision for
impairment loss on trade receivables during the year.

Bt %5 [0 B8

AEBERMETEREDHREREER 2 HKE 10
T REt-EERMED HARKRBIRE R
ARG 2 L&

WA R EF

RNEE 7 AR (20184 B Br4E & : 187,400,000
P70 2017 F BF R F E £ 212,200,000 7T ) © B
BIEY Ik N IR E $55176,500,00078 7T (20174 BF
B E 1 210,100,00098 7T ) * A KSR BE I E K B 7%
R 75 #) 2 U A10,900,0005% 7T (20174 B B F /-
2,100,000 70) - T ERREURRKEEREED
Bz WA D BT R ©

= FI ER A 3E HN900,0007%8 7T 3K 1.7% 255,100,000 7T
(20175 Bf B 5 JE £ 54,200,000/ 7T ) s Ig X &
E £201845 B B 2 &9 E ) = 1Z A0 2 (20184
BB E 1 29.4% : 2017 F AR X : 255% ) © EF
RENTEHRERNRREREEREED 2
FF RGN R R REIEE R IS BRFS < F) B A 8
DnATER -

HERTEREX ([HERTEHAX])

HERTHAS = Z 81 #H% 5 8,600,000
7T (20174 BF B4R JE + 8,300,000 70 ) M 77 K 9
32.70,100,0005% 7T (20174 B B 4F [€ : 69,200,000/
TT) ° $HE J 1T B A 238 511,200,000 7T 3K 1.5% 2
20184F B B £F & 2.78,700,00058 7T (20174 §f B 4F
& 177,500,000/ 70 ) - RAABREBRAREE A
1T A TTER B 2 2 B AN YR ) 48 B FT B - 30 A FE UK
B ROR A 18 B A 12 AN 4H 30 5 BRI o



Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company increased by
HK$105.9 million or 443.1% to HK$129.8 million (FY2017: HK$23.9 million)
in FY2018 mainly due to the realised loss on disposals of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, the loss on investments in associates and
the impairment loss on loans to associates amounted to HK$105.3 million
in aggregate.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

During the year, the Group funded its operations through a combination
of cash generated from operations and equity attributable to owners of
the Company. As at 31 March 2018, the Group's total equity was HK$236.5
million (2017: HK$290.1 million), representing an decrease of 18.5% from
last year.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$54.7
million (2017: HK$54.3 million). Cash and cash equivalents were mainly
denominated in United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Chinese
Renminbi. The Group's net current assets were HK$141.5 million (2017:
HKS$271.9 million). The current ratio, represented by the current assets
divided by the current liabilities, was 9.1 (2017: 12.7).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group did not have any available banking
facilities (2017: Nil) or unused banking facilities (2017: Nil). With the
available cash and cash equivalents and cash generated from operations,
the Group has adequate financial resources to meet the anticipated future
liquidity requirements and capital expenditure commitment.

Capital structure

As at 31 March 2018, the total number of issued shares of the Company
was 339,389,929 (31 March 2017: 319,521,163) of HKS$0.01 each (the
“Shares”) and its issued share capital was HK$3,393,899 (31 March 2017:
HK$3,195,212). On 10 May 2017, the Company issued an aggregate of
19,868,766 ordinary shares to Jade Wheel Limited for acquisition of 28%
shareholding in Dellos Group and the remaining 5% equity interest in
Dellos Group from True Treasure Ventures Limited. The issue price of
HK$3.81 per consideration share pursuant to the sales and purchase
agreement dated 18 April 2017 was arrived at after arm’s length
negotiations between the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there was no movements in either the Company’s
authorised or issued share capital during the year under review.
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Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
During FY2018, the Group disposed of Huge Mind Investment Limited, a
company engaged in money lending business. Other than that, the Group
did not have any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during
FY2018.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

The Group principally operates its businesses in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations from various
currencies, such as United States dollars, Great Britain Pounds, Renminbi
and South Korean Won, which were the major foreign currencies
transacted by the Group during FY2017 and FY2018.

Since Hong Kong dollars remain pegged to the United States dollars
within a defined range, the Group is not exposed to any significant foreign
exchange risk against the United States dollars. The Group has subsidiaries
operating in the PRC, in which most of their transactions, including
revenue, expenses and other financing activities, are denominated in
Renminbi. The Group has investments operating in England and South
Korea and are denominated in Great Britain Pounds and South Korean
Won.

The Group manages its foreign currency risk against other currencies by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and may
use hedging derivative, such as foreign currency forward contract, to
manage its foreign currency risk as appropriate.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a total workforce of 322 (2017:
384), of whom 49 (2017: 49) were based in Hong Kong. The total staff
cost, including directors’ emoluments and mandatory provident fund,
was approximately HK$44.4 million (2017: HK$56.3 million). Employees
were remunerated on the basis of their performance and experience.
Remuneration packages, including salary and year-end discretionary
bonus, were determined by reference to market conditions and individual
performance.

-
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Key performance indicators
The Company has defined the following key performance indicators
("KPIs") which are closely aligned with the performance of the Group.
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IEXRRER
ARBEREATERAKBARARTEMLEE
KRS ([EERBER]) -

For the year ended 31 March

BEIANBLFE
2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FHEx FHET
Revenue Wess HK$187,357% 7T HK$212,232 7T
Loss for the year attributable to equity REEZ ARG RFRIEGEE
holders of the Company HK$(129,787)% 7t HKS$(23,886)7%8 7T
Equity attributable to equity holders of AN &) J% B B 1 4 2
the Company HK$236,5087% 7T HK$290,0857%8 7T
Return on capital employed in sale of HELKKMIKEE M
pearls and jewellery products FTREZAR 2 O (10.3)% (5.4)%
Return on capital employed in strategic 5k B§ I & N BF 7 AR 7% B BB
investment and financial services BN 2B (90.6)% (4.2)%
Notes: B3
0] Return on capital employed in sale of pearls and jewellery products represents segment (1 HELHRKREEMMAEAZBRIBHED KR
profit or loss from sale of pearls and jewellery products business divided by average REERFEBZDEBRFEERATEMAER
capital employed and is measured as a percentage. WitEAB DL
@) Return on capital employed in strategic investment and financial services represent Q) KERARVERBAAEARZEBRERKIZE R

segment profit or loss from strategic investment and financial services divided by

average capital employed and is measured as a percentage.

Commentary on the performance of the Group against each of these KPIs
is set out in “BUSINESS REVIEW” and “INVESTMENT REVIEW” above.

These KPIs are reviewed regularly and amended occasionally to
correspond with the changing mix of the Group’s principal activities.

BSIRIS Z DR FI RS ER A THRAER I
REDHHE-

PIARERBEZZEIZRABFEZARHENLX
[XBEE] kIR EDE] -

%EF T BERBIERETE P st X TEHERT - LA
EAKBETHESH s TEXBHESG -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's management reviews the Group's internal reporting in order
to assess performance and allocate resources. They have determined
the operating segments based on these reports. The Group is principally
engaged in purchasing, processing, designing, production and wholesale
distribution of pearls and jewellery products and operation of strategic
investment and financial services. Accordingly, the Group has identified
two operating segments — pearls and jewellery operating segment and

strategic investment and financial services operating segment.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A summary of the principal risks and uncertainties which may impact the

Group's financial conditions, results of operations or future performance

and how the Group mitigates these risks is set out below.

This summary should not be regarded as a complete and comprehensive

statement of all potential risks and uncertainties faced by the Group,

but rather those risks which the Group currently believes may have a

significant impact on the Group's performance and future prospects.

Principal risks

TEEB

Description

AE

7 EER

AEEEEEEMAKE 2 AR HREAFERER
MORER BRERBLZEREEETLENE -
AEEETE ié%EAiﬂi&fﬂi?’?E‘EuuZT‘”ﬁ%}JDI‘
E&Lyr EF&H D8 A RREE IR E R IR
B Ilit AEECHEMESENH B
&Iﬂi; BoER A RRBERE R IR S &

DEBe

FTERBRIABRERE

AR EAKE ZMBAN - LERBEIREEK
Rz X B2RAR N THAREHRE MAKEINEE
Rz ERBREN T X -

S E SRR EH AR B H R A EERR
&Tﬂﬂﬁﬂlﬁz;ﬁ%ﬁiﬁk_ HEAR SR B R AR
ERERRAIEHANEE 2 RIRMARRATREK
Ej(g/iio

Mitigating actions

& RIE

Strategic risk
IR 1 [ B

Economic risk

27 R

Strategic risk is the risk that medium and long term
profitability and/or reputation of the Group could be
adversely impacted by the failure either to identify
or implement the correct strategy, or to react
appropriately to changes in the business environment.
KA R A E ARG BRI E i ERER I &
EREE ftf@ﬁkg&ﬂ’éﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁl¢ﬁ}%&§3ﬁ
BREENR/SIBBEXNTFTZEZRAR-

Economic risk is the risk of any downturn in
economic conditions which could impact the Group's
performance through higher bad debts as a result of
customers’ inability to repay loans and lower asset
values.

S %Eﬂ%%@i@,‘%ZTﬁﬁtﬁﬁ’ﬁ@iﬁ?@
BEFENEBERERMBBURREMNREEEER
& %&%Kil%fﬁ

Extensive investment management experience of
the Board.

BN REEBZEELR-

Regularly review on strategy and performance of
each business unit.

R R EREM 2 RBERKRR -

Perform comprehensive due diligence on all
potential acquisitions.

A EERBERATEEERES -

Regularly review forward looking indicators to
identify economic conditions.

TE B AT AT IS M FE AR DUR B IR



Principal risks

TERRE

Description
25
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EREN RN (B)

Mitigating actions

B RIE

Credit risk
EERR

Business risk

XGRR

Operational risk
giEE R

Liquidity risk
nBE S AR

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations.
EERRANEMIAZEFRRFHFRE
TEHENET FAEEAZTBEBE AR -

Business risk is the risk that any of our major customers
ceases their business relationship with us.
EBERABMREMERTF K IEEKPEBAR
Z L o

Operational risk is the risk of increasing labour costs
and labour shortages which could have a material
and adverse impact on the Group's operation and

profitability.
EERRAS IR LIRS THERAHAEER

EERBNENERNERTNZEZ AR -
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
RBECRERASARER B EEEITHIEZ I
BEZER-

Fully understand customers and carry out credit
quality assessment on customers before granting
loans.

REHERZ2E TREFPTEEFPETEER
EEHEEE

Regularly monitor loans and interest receivable and
assess for their recoverability.
EHEREWE R RA S - WA H A E A2
o

Continually review market trends and maintain a
competitive position by retaining product quality.
BARKERER FERITSBEUER
BRFHOAL o

Regularly assess the requirements of labours based
on forecasts.

RIBTRRE R ES THEK-

Regularly monitor liquidity and statement of
financial position.

EHREERDES MUHBIRRK -

Maintain appropriate liquidity to cover
commitments.

REBBFERDER AR AGE -

Limit liquidity risk exposure by investing only in
securities listed on stock exchanges.
FBRERENBHFR S L2 &HmR IR
BETER-

Ensure acceptable and appropriate finance in place,
or believed to be available before committing
investment projects.
AEREERMEREAEIHEARINEE
Bdo
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE N ® LT (8)

Principal risks Description Mitigating actions
FERR 25 BT RIEHE
Price risk Price risk is the risk that changes in equity prices will Regularly monitor equity portfolio to address any
RN affect the Group's income and the value of its holdings portfolio issues promptly.
of equities. FEHIERBREREHRA R EEBEMIEER

ERRRASEEARERAREMBFREGBE
ZBEZE 2 E R -

Exchange risk Exchange risk is the risk that changes in foreign
b 3 [ Bex exchange rates will affect the Group's income and the

value of its holdings of assets.
ERERRAEEZEREERAREMBEEER
2 HNEE [ R B B 2 [ B o

People risk People risk is the risk of loss of the services of any
AEE R directors, senior management and other key personnel

which could have a material adverse effect on the
Group's businesses.

AFERBEATMNES SREEBABRAMEE
ANB# IR A aE 3 AR S B R E R E R F &2
EZRK-

Legal and Legal and regulatory risk is the risk that a breach
regulatory risk of laws and regulations could lead to litigation,
FEEREERR investigations or disputes, resulting in additional costs

being incurred, civil and/or criminal proceedings and
reputational damage.
FRIEERRREIOERFOER T RESI AR -
BEFMG  EEEIMNE RERIMEEF
REBXBZRER -

G-

Spread price risk exposure by investing a number of
equities.

REZERZEND BB R

Closely monitor statement of financial position and
cashﬂovv exchange risk exposures.

PIBEER BRI TR IR & 7 T R b o

Provide competitive reward and benefit packages
that ensure our ability to attract and retain the
employees we need.

REEBS ) 2 R @M BIARRANEE
B IREI RIREME 2 EE -

Ensure that the staff of the Group have the right
working environment to enable them to do the
best job possible and maximise their satisfaction at
work.
BRAEEEIRABECIHERBUASET
BERAA M TERRERATIERER -

Monitor changes and developments in the
regulatory environment and ensure that sufficient
resources being made available to implement any
required changes.
ERRERECEPRERIVERIAZER
RANBHEFRE L ZE-

Seek legal or other specialist advice as appropriate.

BERSRERNHEMERZIER



COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its principal
activities and the risk of non-compliance with such laws and regulations
could lead to litigation, investigations or disputes, resulting in additional
costs being incurred, civil and/or criminal proceedings and reputational
damage. During the year, the Group has complied with the Money
Lenders Ordinance and the Money Lenders Regulations for its money
lending business.

ENVIRONMENT

The Group is committed to promoting an environmentally conscious
work place and aims and places significant emphasis on minimizing our
environmental impact and to create a more sustainable future for future
generations.

Our production operations are carried out by the production facilities
of Hui Bao Feng Jewellery (Shenzhen) Limited ("HBF Jewellery"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in Shenzhen, which is subject
to certain PRC environmental laws and regulations. The primary waste
generated from our production processes is waste water, which is
treated in compliance with the applicable PRC environmental laws and
regulations. To ensure the operation of HBF Jewellery is in compliance with
the applicable environmental law on an ongoing basis, we have entered
into a waste water treatment agreement with a qualified water treatment
company which is responsible for collecting the waste water in the
production process.

HBF Jewellery has been compliant with all relevant PRC environmental
related laws and regulations in all material respects during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EREN RN (B)

BIFERRER

AEEERETHRAIEEARHEETERR
ZERBM - A BT % FIARROAR AT 8E 5| B
AT BHREEBEIKAKR  RER X
MERFREBXEB-FA AKECHERE
EXBETHREA G R EARD

BRR

AEBEHNHS TEGANRES R BRELEF
ERFHRERMIHRENTE ST —HREE
FEZRARK-

BPWEETEFRARR2EME A RIEE LK
BE(RIDARAR (TEHERE ) NRIE
EREETT ABTETHERBEPI LA -3
MELEBRRETELNTIEZERZYRENK ZF
BEEYEEREATERRENIEREE B
RREELHRE 2 2ERENTEERNREXL

B E KA ERBEKEE A AR M EEKEHE
W ZARBRREEERETELEMNEK.
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7 BIR (R ARBE A SOE AR
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRSNEEAEBER

CHAIRMAN

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, v+, aged 70, was appointed as a non-
executive director and the chairman of the Company on 1 February 2018
He graduated with a Master of Science in Interdisciplinary Design and
Management from The University of Hong Kong. He is an Eminent Fellow
Member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, a Fellow Member
of the Chartered Institute of Housing, a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Housing and a Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators.
He has approximately 48 years of real estate experience in both public
and private sectors. He is currently a non-executive chairman of InfraredNF
Investment Advisers Limited and an independent non-executive director
of Autotoll Limited. Mr. Yuen was ex-chairman of the Industry Training
Advisory Committee (Property Management) of the Education Bureau,
past chairman of the Real Estate Service Training Board, ex-committee
member of the Employee Retraining Board, ex-member of the Land and
Building Advisory Committee, past chairman of the Chartered Institute
of Housing (Hong Kong Branch), past president of the Hong Kong
Association of Property Management Companies and past president of the
Hong Kong Institute of Real Estate Administrators.

Mr. Yuen is currently an independent non-executive director of Winson
Holdings Hong Kong Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 8421).

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior, aged 31, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 19 November 2016. He
graduated from University of the West of England Bristol with a bachelor
of arts degree in business administration in 2008. Mr. Archambaud-Chao
joined the valuation advisory services department of Jones Lang LaSalle
Limited in 2009 before working in its investment department. Jones Lang
LaSalle Limited is a professional services and investment management firm
offering specialised real estate services to clients seeking increased value
by owning, occupying and investing in real estate. Mr. Archambaud-Chao
was a director of Capstone Properties Limited from 2014 to 2017, which
is a company that provides a platform in dealing with local and overseas
properties investments. Mr. Archambaud-Chao is a holder of an estate
agent’s licence issued by the Estate Agents Authority.

£33

VRS E o mm o IRFT0BR F2018F 21 BEE
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Mr. LEUNG Alex, aged 39 , was appointed as executive director of the
Company on 11 April 2016. Mr. Leung obtained his Bachelor of Commerce
degree form the University of Auckland, New Zealand in May 2000. Mr.
Leung had worked in two international accounting firms from December
2000 to February 2012. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accounting and the CPA Australia. He has more than 16
years of experience in auditing, accounting and corporate management.
Mr. Leung is currently an executive director, the chief financial officer and
the company secretary of Man Sang International Limited (a company
listed on Stock Exchange (stock code: 938)). Mr. Leung is also an executive
director and the vice chairman of China Healthwise Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 348)).

Mr. LEE Tsz Hang, aged 44, was appointed as an executive director on
20 December 2016. Mr. Lee holds a bachelor degree in Economics from
the University of Winnipeg, Canada and had worked as associate director
of VC Brokerage Limited. Mr. Lee has over 16 years of securities and
financial markets, and corporate finance experience, including securities
investment, initial public offerings, mergers and acquisitions, corporate
and capital restructuring, business projects evaluation, and equity and
debt fund raising. Mr. Lee is currently a director of Win Ways Investment
Limited, and has been involved in financing mergers, acquisitions and
other projects in a number of listed, non-listed companies. In addition, Mr.
Lee is currently an executive director of Tech Pro Technology Development
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3823)).

Mr. CHEUNG Sze Ming, aged 49, was appointed as an executive director,
company secretary and the chief financial officer of the Company on 1
April 2018. Mr. Cheung holds a Bachelor Degree in Accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheung has
accumulated over 20 years” working experience from an international
audit firm and public listed companies. He had spent about 8 years in the
international audit firm and was an audit manager before he left the firm.
Thereafter, Mr. Cheung has held different senior positions in various public
listed companies. Mr. Cheung was an executive director and chief financial
officer of Dingyi Group Investment Limited (stock code: 508) from 27
October 2011 to 16 March 2018.
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Profile oiDirectors and Senior Management (Continued)
EENaNEEASRERE (8)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. PANG Siu Yin, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 19 November 2016. He graduated
from the University of Leeds with a bachelor of laws degree in 1984 and
obtained a master of business administration degree from the University
of Aston in Birmingham in 1985. Mr. Pang also obtained a postgraduate
certificate in laws from the University of Hong Kong in 1988. Mr. Pang
has been a practising solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since
1990 and was also admitted as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1997.
He is currently a partner of LCP, a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong, with
his practice focusing on commercial and litigation. He was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6828) and
Singapore Stock Exchange (stock code: UQ7)) on 21 February 2017. He was
an independent non-executive director of Winto Group (stock code: 8238)
from July 2015 to March 2018.

Mr. LAI Yat Yuen, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 19 November 2016. He joined Asia
Port Services Limited in 1994 as a finance manager and was promoted
to deputy general manager in 1999. Asia Port Services Limited provides
a loading alternative for container vessels anchored in mid-stream or
moored to buoys in Hong Kong's harbour. Mr. Lai has gained ample
experience in financial management from his employment with Asia Port
Services Limited. He also has experience in auditing field between 1981
and 1986 while working at Wong C. Ming & Co., Peat, Marwick, Mitchell
& Co,, as well as the government of Hong Kong. Mr. Lai holds an honours
diploma in accountancy studies. He is a fellow member of the Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. LEE Kin Keung, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 19 November 2016. He graduated
from the University of New South Wales with a bachelor of commerce
degree and a master of commerce degree. He also holds a master of
applied finance degree from Macquarie University. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and was
admitted as a certified practising accountant of the Australian Society
of Certified Practising Accountants in 1992. Mr. Lee has experience in
finance, management, auditing and accounting fields and had worked in
Touche Ross & Co. from 1985 to 1990, and in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
from 1990 to 1992 and from 1995 to 1997. Mr. Lee was appointed as a
director of Kandour Consultants Limited, a consultancy and advisory
company in Hong Kong, in 2013. Mr. Lee has been a director of Crater Gold
Mining Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange, since 2014.
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Mr. CHAN Chi Yuen, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 20 December 2016. Mr. Chan
holds a bachelor degree with honours in Business Administration and a
master of science degree with distinction in Corporate Governance and
Directorship. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is
a practicing certified public accountant and has extensive experience in
financial management, corporate development, corporate finance and
corporate governance.

Mr. Chan is currently an executive director of Noble Century Investment
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2322), Royal Century Resources Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Kate China Holdings Limited) (stock code:
8125) and Great Wall Belt & Road Holdings Limited (formerly known as
e-Kong Group Limited) (stock code: 524). He is also an independent non-
executive director of Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited (stock code: 351),
China Baoli Technologies Holdings Limited (formerly known as Rex Global
Entertainment Holdings Limited) (stock code: 164), Leyou Technologies
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1089), Media Asia Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8075) and New Times Energy Corporation Limited (stock
code: 166). He was an executive director of South East Group Limited
(currently known as China Minsheng DIT Group Limited) (stock code:
726) from December 2013 to July 2015 and Co-Prosperity Holdings
Limited (currently known as Asia Television Holdings Limited) (stock code:
707) from December 2014 to October 2015, and an independent non-
executive director of China Sandi Holdings Limited (stock code: 910)
from September 2009 to July 2014, Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited
(currently known as Power Financial Group Limited) (stock code: 397)
from January 2005 to October 2017, and U-RIGHT International Holdings
Limited (currently known as Fullsun International Holdings Group Co.,
Limited) (stock code: 627) from November 2010 to December 2017, all of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHEUNG Sze Ming, aged 49, was appointed as the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of the Company on 1 April 2018. He is
also an executive director of the Company. Please refer to the sub-section
headed "EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS" above for Mr. Cheung's biographical
details.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CEERHE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group recognises the importance of achieving the highest standard of
corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements of its
businesses and the best interests of all of its stakeholders, and the Board
is fully committed to doing so. The Board believes that high standards
of corporate governance provide a framework and solid foundation for
the Group to manage business risks, enhance transparency, achieve high
standard of accountability and protect stakeholders’ interests.

The Group has adopted a corporate governance statement of policy
which provides guidance on the application of the corporate governance
principles on the Group, with reference to the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all code
provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2018 and, where appropriate, the applicable recommended best practices
of the CG Code, except the deviation that the Company does not have
a Chief Executive Officer (CEO) (see the section “CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER" on page 28).

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company, that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2018. To ensure Directors’ dealings in the securities of
the Company (the “Securities”) are conducted in accordance with the
Model Code and securities code of the Company, a Director is required to
notify the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) in writing and obtain a
written acknowledgement from the Chairman prior to any dealings in the
Securities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group, which
includes leadership and control of the Company and oversees the Group's
businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk management and
performances. The management team is delegated with the authority
and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-day management of the
Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board
to the management include (1) the preparation of interim and annual
reports and announcements for the Board's approval before publishing;
(2) implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures; and (3) compliance with relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements and rules and regulations. It is the responsibility
of the Board to determine the appropriate corporate governance practices
applicable to the Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and
procedures are in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance
objectives.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of the Group
and for the exercise of independent judgement. The Directors with various
professional qualifications, experience and related financial management
expertise have contributed to the effective direction of the Company
and provided adequate checks and balances to safeguard to the interests
of both the Group and the shareholders. Hence, the Board believes that
the current Board composition satisfy the balance of expertise, skills and
experience to the corporate governance requirements of the Group
as well as the ongoing development and management of its business
activities.

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, namely Mr.
Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior, Mr. Leung Alex, Mr. Lee Tsz Hang
and Mr. Cheung Sze Ming, one non-executive Director, Mr. Yuen Ching
Bor Stephen (Chairman) and four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Pang Siu Yin, Mr. Lai Yat Yuen, Mr. Lee Kin Keung and Mr. Chan
ChiYuen.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 22 to 25 of this annual report.
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The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Company, and to review and
approve the Company’s interim and annual results. During the year, four
Board meetings were held and the attendance of each Director at the
Board meetings is set out in the section headed “Board and Committees
Meetings” of this report.

Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are given an
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The Company
Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings to
comply with all applicable rules and regulations. The agenda and the
accompanying Board papers are normally sent to the Directors at least
three days before the intended date of a Board meeting. Draft minutes
of each Board meeting are circulated to the Directors for their comments
before being tabled at the next Board meeting for approval. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”), all
Directors appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at the meeting. At each annual general meeting, one third
of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

Save for the family relationships disclosed in the “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” set out on pages 22 to 25 of this annual report, the
Directors do not have material financial, business or other relationships
with one another.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the executive Directors are clearly
segregated to ensure independence and proper checks and balances.
The Chairman focuses on the business strategy and direction of the
Company, provides leadership for the Board and ensures proper and
effective functioning of the Board in discharging of its responsibilities. The
executive Directors are collectively accountable to the Board for the overall
implementation of the Company’s strategies and the co-ordination of
overall business operations.
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There is currently no officer carrying the title of CEO up to the date of this
annual report. In the absence of a CEO, the duties of the CEO have been/
will continue to be collectively undertaken by all executive Directors,
namely Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior, Mr. Leung Alex, Mr. Lee
Tsz Hang and Mr. Cheung Sze Ming. In the opinion of the Directors, the
present arrangement is effective and efficient.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All Directors, including non-executive Directors, appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board, shall hold office only until
the first general meeting after their appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

Moreover, all non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) are appointed for a term of three years expiring on
the earlier of either (i) the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the
Company in the year of the third anniversary of the appointment or re-
election of that Director; or (i) the expiration of the period within which
the annual general meeting of the Company is required to be held in the
year of the third anniversary of the appointment or re-election of that
Director and in any event, subject to earlier determination in accordance
with the Articles and/or any applicable laws and regulations.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1),
3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has received
confirmation of independence from all four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Pang Siu Yin, Mr. Lai Yat Yuen, Mr. Lee Kin Keung and
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has reviewed the independence of all independent non-
executive Directors and concluded that all of them are independent within
the definition of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not aware
of the occurrence of any events which would cause it to believe that the
independence of any of the independent non-executive Directors has
been impaired up to the date of this report.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in October 2014,
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to talents, skills,
experience, independence and knowledge. The Company will also take
into consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 9 Directors, amongst
them, 4 are independent non-executive Directors, thereby promoting
critical review and control of the management process. The Board is also
characterized by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of age,
professional experience, skills and knowledge.

Appointment of Directors is based on meritocracy and the Policy is among
the criteria used in selecting members to join the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference and all members of the Audit Committee are
independent non-executive Directors. Pursuant to its terms of reference,
the Audit Committee is authorised to commit Company funds in order
to obtain advice from outside legal counsel, accountants, investigatory
services or other expert advice. Details of the authority and responsibilities
of the Audit Committee are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Pang Siu Yin, Mr. Lai Yat Yuen and Mr. Lee Kin Keung.
Mr. Lai Yat Yuen is the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee held 4
meetings to review the interim and the annual results before their
submission to the Board. The attendance of each member of the Audit
Committee is set out in the section headed “Board and Committees
Meetings” of this report.

The Audit Committee has also discussed and reviewed the key audit
matters determined by the external auditor under the new and revised
auditor reporting standards under Hong Kong Standards on Auditing for
the year ended 31 March 2018.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board with
specific written terms of reference and the majority of the members of
the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive Directors.
Details of the authority and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee comprises 3 independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Pang Siu Yin, Mr. Lai Yat Yuen and Mr. Lee Kin Keung,
and 1 non-executive Director, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen. Mr.
Pang Siu Yin is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting to approve the remuneration packages and performance
bonuses for the Directors and senior management of the Company. The
attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is set out in
the section headed “Board and Committees Meetings” of this report.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
March 2018 are set out in note 34(a) to the financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with
specific terms of reference. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for, amongst other things, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members, considering the reappointment of the Directors
and succession planning for Directors and making recommendations
to the Board in respect of the aforesaid matters. Details of the authority
and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee comprises 3 independent non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Pang Siu Yin, Mr. Lai Yat Yuen and Mr. Lee Kin Keung,
and 1 executive Director, namely Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry
Junior. Mr. Lee Kin Keung is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and
concluded that members of the Board have possessed the expertise and
independence to carry out the Board's functions and responsibilities.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
board remains informed and relevant.

Upon appointment, each new Director receives a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction package covering business operations,
policy and procedures of the Company as well as the general, statutory
and regulatory obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is
sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and
other relevant regulatory requirements.
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The Directors, on an ongoing basis, receive amendments to or updates
on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Company
encourages the Directors to enrol in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and corporate governance practices so that
they can continuously improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
and provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
March 2018 to the Company. The Company has also continuously updated
the Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The participation by each Director in continuous professional
development for the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out below:
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Reading materials relating
to rules and/or attending
trainings and seminars
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Name of Director EERA HEZI RS
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen RIBREE v
Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Juniort 4 v
Mr. Leung Alex R FE v
Mr. Lee Tsz Hang FFELE v
Mr. Pang Siu Yin ZIELEE v
Mr. Lai Yat Yuen R IR & v
Mr. Lee Kin Keung e v
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen PREELAE v
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES MEETINGS

The individual attendance records of each Director at the general
meetings and the meetings of the Board and various Committees during
the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out below:

EEENEEEER
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PUNNE

Annual

general Audit Remuneration Nomination

meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of director EEpE BRREFAE EZg ENZEE FMEEE REZES
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (1) RIERFE (1) - 22 = = =
Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior Archambaud-Chao 1N 8/8 - - [

Percy Henry Juniorft &
Mr. Leung Alex DEBLE 0/ 7/8 - - -
Mr. Lee Tsz Hang FFEEE 0/ 8/8 = - -
Mr. Pang Siu Yin YHERE N 6/8 3/4 11 1/1
Mr. Lai Yat Yuen REREE 11 8/8 4/4 11 1/1
Mr. Lee Kin Keung Fpwis N 8/8 4/4 11 1/1
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen REERE /1 718 - - -
Mr. Lan Zhi Cheng (2) EEWEEQ 0/1 6/6 - 11 -
Mr. Luk Siu Fung Mark (3) PEJKERS A (3) 11 717 = = -
Notes: B3
M Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen was appointed as non-executive Director and a member of (1 RIBELER2018F2A1BEZTRIERNTEER
the Remuneration Committee on 1 February 2018. FMEEGXE -
) Mr. Lan Zhi Cheng resigned as executive Director and a member of the Remuneration ) E AR 018F2 A A BHERNITES RS
Committee on 1 February 2018. BEKE-

3) Mr. Luk Siu Fung Mark resigned as executive Director on 19 March 2018. 3) BEJKEE L AR 2018F3A 190 BTHITES -
(4)  The attendance was stated by reference to the number of Board and committee (4) HEREN2RESTHARTCESTEREES

meetings held during the tenure of the Directors.

Apart from formal meetings, matters requiring Board approval were
arranged by means of circulation of written resolutions.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 which gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2018, and of
the results and cash flows for year then ended. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board has selected
appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently in accordance
with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which are pertinent to
its operations and relevant to the financial statements, made judgements
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and ensured the
preparation of the financial statements on the going concern basis.
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The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Group's performance, position and prospects. The
interim and annual results of the Company are announced in a timely
manner within the limit of two months and three months, respectively,
after the end of the relevant periods in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all
information and representation contained in the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

On 19 July 2017, the Company received a letter of resignation from
PricewaterhouseCoopers ("PwC”) in respect of their resignation as the
auditor of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2017. Moore
Stephens CPA Limited (‘Moore Stephens”) has been appointed as the
new auditor of the Company with effect from 4 August 2017 to fill the
casual vacancy following the resignation of PwC.

The services provided by the auditors to the Group and associated
remuneration were as follows:
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Audit of financial statements ERZUTEHmE
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— Moore Stephens —RESHEE 84

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the design
and implementation of internal controls and risk management which
covers financial reporting, operations, compliance and risk management of
the Company, as well as continuous monitoring the effectiveness of such
internal controls and risk management. The Board has delegated such
responsibility to the management of the Company. The management,
under the supervision of the Board, has established an on-going process
for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the
Group.
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The Audit Committee reviews the internal controls and risk management
that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis. The Audit
Committee also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group's accounting and financial reporting
function, as well as their training programmes and budgets.

In light of the size and scale of the Group's businesses, the Company
does not establish a separate internal audit department. The Group has
engaged an independent professional firm to conduct a review of the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control and risk management systems
annually. The independent professional firm engaged has performed a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
systems covering the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018. The
review covered all key controls and based on inquiry, observation and
analytical review procedures supplemented by testing of transactions,
reports and reconciliation. The overall opinion on the internal control and
risk management systems of the Group are satisfactory.

The Board is satisfied that the internal control system in place covering all
material controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions for the year under review and up to the
date of issuance of the annual report is reasonably effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tse Chi Keung had been the Company Secretary of the Company
since December 2014 up to 31 March 2018. He was a full time employee
of the Company and has adequate working knowledge on the Company
to discharge his duty as the Company Secretary. Mr. Tse reported to the
Chairman of the Company and was responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters. Mr. Tse confirmed that he had taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the year under review.

Mr. Cheung Sze Ming has been appointed as the Company Secretary with
effect from 1 April 2018.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”)

Pursuant to the Articles and the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Laws 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands (the “"Companies
Law"), registered shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(the "EGM Requisitionists”) can deposit a written request to convene an
EGM at the registered office of the Company (the “Registered Office"),
which is presently situated at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The EGM Requisitionists
must state in their request(s) the objects of the EGM and such request(s)
must be signed by all the EGM Requisitionists and may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the EGM
Requisitionists.

The Share Registrar will verify the EGM Requisitionists’ particulars in the
EGM Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation from the Share
Registrar that the EGM Requisitionists’ request is in order, the Company
Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene an EGM by serving
sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders in accordance with all
the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. On the contrary, if the
EGM Requisitionists’ request is verified not in order, the EGM Requisitionists
will be advised of the outcome and a EGM will not be convened as
requested.

The EGM Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM
if within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of the EGM Requisitionists’
request, the Board does not proceed duly to convene an EGM provided
that any EGM so convened is held within two (2) months from the date
of the original EGM Requisitionists’ request. An EGM so convened by the
EGM Requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals
at a General Meeting

There are no provisions in the Articles or the Companies Law for
shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene
a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph. Shareholders can also send enquiries and proposals
putting forward for shareholders’ consideration at shareholders" meetings
to the Board in writing to the Hong Kong office of the Company whose
contact details are as follows or directly by raising questions at the general
meeting of the Company.

Unit 2108, 21/F
Harcourt House

39 Gloucester Road
Wan Chai

Hong Kong

Shareholders’ Enquires and Proposals

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, or call its customer
service hotline at (852) 2980 1333.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The public are welcomed to give their comments and make enquiries
through the Company’s website and by means of emails to the investor
relations department (email address: ir@affluent-partners.com). The
management always provides prompt responses to any such enquiries.
During the year ended 31 March 2018, there were no changes in the
Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association. An up-to-date
consolidated version of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association is available on the Company's website.

By Order of the Board
Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors herein present their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year, the
Group was principally engaged in the purchasing, processing, designing,
production and wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery products
and operation of strategic investment and financial services.

The principal activities of the Company’s major subsidiaries are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements in the annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating segment
is set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on
the Group's future business development are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 6 to 7 and the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 8 to 21 of this Annual Report.

Financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are shown
in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 116 to 128 of
this Annual Report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights on page 5
and in the Management Discussion and Analysis under “Key performance
indicators” on page 17 of this Annual Report.

Discussion on the Group's environmental issues and compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company are contained in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
page 21 and in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 26 to 38 of this
Annual Report.
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The Company's key relationships with its employees, customers and
suppliers and business associates that have a significant impact on the
Company and on which the Company'’s success depends are shown in the
Management Discussion and Analysis under “Human Resources” section
on page 16 and in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 26 to 38 of
this Annual Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 62 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’'s net reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law (Cap 22) (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and reserved) of the Cayman Islands, as at
31 March 2018 amounted to HK$294,595,000 (2017: HKS$287,164,000),
which represented the retained earnings/accumulated losses and share
premium.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements in the annual report.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on page 180.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior
Mr. Leung Alex
Mr. Lee Tsz Hang
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming (appointed on 1 April 2018)
Mr. Lan Zhi Cheng
(resigned as executive Director and chairman on 1 February 2018)
Mr. Luk Siu Fung Mark (resigned on 19 March 2018)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
(appointed as non-executive Director and chairman on 1 February 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Pang Siu Yin

Mr. Lai Yat Yuen

Mr. Lee Kin Keung

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.
Accordingly, Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior and Mr. Lai Yat
Yuen shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles, Mr Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
and Mr. Cheung Sze Ming who were appointed as Directors as an addition
to the Board, shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company. Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen and Mr. Cheung Sze
Ming, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

Annual Report 2018 £ 41

Report of the Directors (Continued)
BFEIRE (B

5=

ARBRAFEEMBEAREARZEFNT

HITES

Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior¥t 4

FFELE

REFGIE (R2018F4 81 HEZ(T)
(R2018F2H 1 HBFERTTEERTE)

BEJKE8 %k 4 (K018 3 19H BHT)

FEITES
RIEKFE
(Ro018F2H 1 HEZ (FRIFHNTTEF
REE)

BYFHTES
TKERE
R SE 4
FhE A
BRI S A

REBMAAFGE EEERRBEFAG L BF
RE=DZ—NEZARERT BUEREE
=FELAERRBFAS LWERE X
Itt * Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior4t 4 & 32
HREERERE ERSFTEERABEAER
NREERRBFAG LERBE-

RIFARIEBQFR BERETAESENEESRL
REBREERRFRELEHETRERRFERE
BRBFAG RBEREERRFHELENEE
RABBEARAEERRBFAG LERE
£



42  Affluent Partners Holdings Limited $2 512 R G R A 7

Report of the Directors (Continued)
BFeRE (B

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under Article 164(1) of the Articles, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty,
or supposed duty, in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which
may attached to any of them. Such permitted indemnity provision is
currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and officers’
liability insurance policy throughout the year, which indemnifies against
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities that may be incurred by the
Directors in the execution and discharge of their duties.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 22 to 25.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements,
no other contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company has been entered
into or existed during the year.
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COMPETING BUSINESSES

Interests of Director in businesses which might compete with the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2018 were as follows:

Mr. Pang Siu Yin, independent non-executive Director of the Company,
was also an independent non-executive director of Winto Group Holdings
Limited (“Winto Group”) (Stock Exchange stock code: 8238) up to 2 March
2018. Winto Group had once intended to embark on money lending
business in Hong Kong via a subsidiary. However, the subsidiary of Winto
Group had never commenced operations. Therefore, the Board is of
the view that the businesses of Winto Group did not compete with the
businesses of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors are aware of, none of
the Directors have any interests in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group or have any other conflict of
interests with the Group during the year ended 31 March 2018.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme’) on 17 October 2014. As at the date of this report, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme (the “Options”) shall not in
aggregate exceed 26,632,116 shares, being 10% of the total number of
shares in issue at the date the shares of the Company commence trading
on the Stock Exchange. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by the
Company (and to which the provisions of chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
are applicable) must not exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time. No option may be granted under any schemes
of the Company if this will result in the limit being exceeded. The total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Options
granted to each eligible participants (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding Options) under the Share Option Scheme in any 12 month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to the
eligible participants to contribute to the Group and to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract resources that are
valuable to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion, grant an option to
the eligible participants to subscribe for the shares of the Company at an
exercise price and subject to the other terms of the Share Option Scheme.
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The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the adoption of the Share Option Scheme. Subject
to certain restrictions contained in the Share Option Scheme, an option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the terms of grant thereof at any time during the applicable
option period, which is not more than 10 years from the date of grant
of option. There is no general requirement on the minimum period for
which an option must be held or the performance targets which must be
achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the Share
Option Scheme. However, at the time of granting any option, the Board
may, on a case by case basis, make such grant subject to such conditions,
restrictions or limitations including (without limitation) those in relation to
the minimum period of the options to be held and/or the performance
targets to be achieved as the Board may determine in its absolute
discretion.

The Board confirms that the Share Option Scheme is in compliance with
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. No option has ever been granted under
the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 March 2018, none of the
Directors, supervisors or chief executives and their respective associates
had any interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which will be required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register kept by the
Company, or (ii) which will be required to be notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2018, so far as the Directors are aware, the following
persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company),
were directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the shares or short
positions in the shares and the underlying shares of the Company, which
are required to be disclosed under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which will be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, were as follows:

ordinary shares
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Crown City Inc Limited (note 1) Beneficial owner 168,177,382 Long position 49.55%
EEAERAA (M) BE=mERA HE

Meridian Glory Limited (note 1) Interested in a controlled corporation 168,177,382 Long position 49.55%
Meridian Glory Limited (Ff&E1) RYEEERER e

Affluent Block Limited (note 1) Interested in a controlled corporation 168,177,382 Long position 49.55%
Affluent Block Limited (K 5E1) SPEEE S e

Target Best Limited (note 1) Interested in a controlled corporation 168,177,382 Long position 49.55%
Target Best Limited (Bff&E1) SPEEE S e

Mr. Fang Anghong (note 1) Interested in a controlled corporation 168,177,382 Long position 49.55%
T BREE (M) RELEER "R

Ms. Fang Saixiang (note 2) Interest of spouse 168,177,382 Long position 49.55%
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Notes:

(1) These 168,177,382 shares are directly owned by Crown City Inc Limited, which is wholly
owned by Meridian Glory Limited. Meridian Glory Limited is held by Mr. Chan Vincent
Wing Sing as to 30% and Affluent Block Limited as to 70%. Affluent Block Limited is in
turn ultimately and beneficially owned as to 20% by Ms. Hui Ka Man Emily, as to 15% by
Ms. Chung Sin Ying, as to 14% by Mr. Poon Chi Ho and as to 51% by Target Best Limited
respectively, of which Target Best Limited in turns wholly owned by Mr. Fang Anghong.
As at the date of this annual report, the board of the directors of Crown City Inc Limited

comprises Mr. Chan Vincent Wing Sing and Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy.

2) Ms. Fang Saixiang is the spouse of Mr. Fang Anghong and is therefore deemed to be

interested in the shares owned by Mr. Fang Anghong by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, there was no other person
or entity had an interests or a short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiries with all the Directors, they have confirmed compliance
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2018.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed the independence of
all the independent non-executive Directors and is satisfied of their
independence.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which comprises 3 independent non-executive
Directors, has reviewed with the management in conjunction with the
auditor, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed the internal control, risk management and financial
reporting matters including the review of the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31 March 2018
contributed by the Group'’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

- the largest supplier 13%
- five largest suppliers combined 29%
Sales

- the largest customer 16%
- five largest customers combined 46%

None of the Directors, their associates or substantial shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) were interested, at any time during the year, in the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information
of the Directors since 31 March 2017 and up to the date of this report are
set out below:

Name of Director Details of Changes

Mr. Pang Siu Yin Resigned as independent non-executive director
of Winto Group on 2 March 2018.

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen Resigned as independent non-executive director
of Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited (currently
known as Power Financial Group Limited)
(stock code: 397) in October 2017, and U-RIGHT
International Holdings Limited (currently known as
Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited)
(stock code: 627) in December 2017.

Save for information disclosed above, there is no other information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float during the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the
laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing sharesholders.
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers ("PwC") resigned as auditors of the Company on
19 July 2017 and Moore Stephens CPA Limited (‘Moore Stephens”) was
appointed as auditor of the Company with effect from 4 August 2017 to fill
the vacancy following PwC's resignation. An nomination proposal will be
submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
re-appoint Moore Stephens as auditor of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year ended 31
March 2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 27 April 2018 (after trading hours of the Stock Exchange), the Company
was notified that, Pacific Wish Limited (“Pacific Wish") (as purchaser)
and Crown City Inc Limited (“Crown City") (as vendor) entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement’) in relation to the
sale and purchase of an aggregate of 168,177,382 Shares, representing
approximately 49.55% of the issued share capital of the Company, for
the total consideration of approximately HK$363.3 million (equivalent to
HKS$2.16 per Share).

Under the Agreement, Pacific Wish agreed to acquire 168,177,382 Shares,
representing approximately 49.55% of the issued share capital of the
Company. The completion took place on 9 May 2018.

Pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers and Mergers,
Pacific Wish is required to make a mandatory conditional cash offer (the
"Offer”) for all the issued shares (other than those already owned or to be
acquired by Pacific Wish and the parties acting in concert with it).

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 7 May 2018,
9 May 2018 and 25 May 2018, jointly issued by Pacific Wish and the
Company for further information relating to the Agreement and the Offer.

Save as disclosed, no significant events have taken place subsequent to 31
March 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 June 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

AFFLUENT PARTNERS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Affluent Partners
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 62 to 179, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("‘HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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MOORE STEPHENS

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1,
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

T +852 2375 3180
F +852 2375 3828
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www.moorestephens.com.hk
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZHENRE (8)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
B ZHEHRE (8)

W& Kz B E R E

(B2HRa M BHmRMTEE20)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables
(Please refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETNAEESBEEE

Key audit matter

HEEITEE

As at 31 March 2018, the gross trade receivables of the Group  Our key procedures to address the matter included:
amounted to approximately HK$55,527,000 and provision F{IEEBEEMEBE ZHEEREFBIE:

for impairment loss on trade receivables amounted to
approximately HK$18,135,000. A net provision for impairment
loss of approximately HK$5,397,000 had been recognised by
the Group in the profit or loss for the year.

7201853 A31H - B & B & W & 548 58 49 355,527,00078
T B EFORE BB R &L 5181350008 EEE
B AN 4R 18 25 P HE SRR (E 189 15 588 4 % BR £95,397,00078
TTo

The estimated impairments were determined by the
management of the Company based on the credit history,
settlement patterns, subsequent settlements and ageing
analysis of the counterparties as well as the current market
conditions.
ERRIERERBHFHEECHE ENRE HREN
Ko B e 3 AT DA T2 3R B T 5L 788 RE R (B 5T

We have identified the management's impairment assessment
of the recoverability of the trade receivables as a key audit
matter because the amounts involved were significant and the
assessment required significant management judgement and
estimation uncertainty.

IS B 12 2 B FE W RT3 M 1T 2 R (E Tk
ERBARENFE RARMIcHEBELN B EFE
&8 B 1 H B K I T M AT

obtained an understanding of the Group's provision policy on
trade receivables and testing the management’s key controls
for the preparation of ageing analysis of trade receivables and
other monitoring procedures for recovering overdue trade
receivables;

T BEREZEKETREEBRAFERE MR
WS SR AR e 20 4 2 = B2 4% Il 45 e S Uk [ 8 HA e M B K
2 E A B RIFR T

obtained the ageing analysis of the trade receivables and
discussed with the management of the Company about their
evaluation of the background and financial capability of the
debtors and their credit assessment that the amounts were
recoverable;

EIEE R

BB EKE R RN LR BEAF
8 2 SR IA R R S AR

FRNEBALZE R LW
Ef3- A R

tested the ageing analysis of the trade receivables, on a
sample basis, to the supporting documents;

SR8 B S M b A B B M R 2 BR R 0 AT

challenged the management's assessment of the
recoverability of long outstanding and overdue trade
receivables;
EREEEARPAREE AL E R AT E &
SELATE

reviewed credit related information of a sample of debtors
which were compiled by the management of the Company
as part of their assessment of the recoverability of the trade
receivables; and

MR BRARERERECEBAGER@EER
ERRENEREKE R AWMz —55 : &

checked subsequent settlements of the trade receivables, on
a sample basis.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Provision for inventories FERE
(Please refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements) (FBL2HGEEMBEHRERME19)

Key audit matter

BEETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETNAEESHEEE

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's inventories amounted to
approximately HK$51,186,000 and provision for impairment loss
on inventories of approximately HK$6,111,000 was recognised
by the Group in the profit or loss for the year.
72018F3A31H  EEEZFE#)/351,186000% T * BF
EREEEREEN1110008TH EXERAFEEER
HERR

The management of the Company assessed the provision for
obsolete or slow moving inventories taking into consideration
of inventory ageing, condition of inventories, historical and
current sales information, as well as different market factors
impacting the selling price of these inventories. In addition,
the management of the Company considered changes in
prevailing market conditions, expected market trends and
customer demands.
f"ﬂ%@ﬁﬁﬁ%%i%fﬁf“%ﬁ W& ERIFE K
RTFERR BERERNEEER  UAFEZERFE
EEZTHW%I? o BERREEREREZERET
TR ERMSBEREFHTR2EH -

We have identified the management’s impairment assessments
of the provision for obsolete or slow-moving inventories
as a key audit matter because the amounts of inventories
were significant and the assessments required significant
management judgement and involved high level of estimation
uncertainty.

B EREBYRESFHETFEREHEET 2 RERNE
BEABREFFR RARGTESREEA BAMAT
HEEEEBIEHEAAE L S RS E MG THEEE-

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

BPREEEHERCEREEFEHE:

- obtained understanding of, and evaluated, the Group's
provision policy on inventories and basis of the obsolescence
assessment;

- THREHLE BEREZGEREBRREREFENEE
/E

- reviewed and assessed the management’s process of the
identification of obsolete or out-dated inventories and
estimation of the net realisable value of these inventories;

— BRIRTHEEEHSNRENRATE 2 RIEREZE
FER SR FE A5

- evaluated historical accuracy of inventory provisioning by
comparing historical provision made to the loss incurred for
actual sales;

- FREBBEMEEERERESEMELERE FHA
EFERE EmEYL:

- reviewed inventory ageing analysis and analysed the level of
aged inventory and their associated provisions;

- BRAFERESTAESITBRFEKEREERER:

- tested the purchase cost, selling price and margins of aged
and obsolete inventories on sample basis to the supporting
documents; and

— MEAXHHERIEHLREFTE 2 RKBRA EE
NN R

- reviewed and evaluated net realisable value of inventories, on
sample basis, with reference to subsequent sales information
and the external price data and performed testing on a
sample basis, by tracing to the supporting documents.

- WMERAEAGEFEZAE2RFE (K2REKRHEESR
RSN ERER B8R ) I ?%iﬂiL/F)iE BA ST R AROR -



Valuation of investment in unlisted fund
(Please refer to Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements)

Key audit matter

HEEITEE
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
B ZHEHRE (8)

FEHESREZMHE

(B2HRe M BEHmRMTE24)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETNAEESBEEE

During the year, the Group invested in an unlisted fund which
is classified as financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss and classified as level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy.

RAFER BEERE-BIBEREMEEZIFLD
Ed ZemMEERERARATEFABERIDERA
FEER L FE3HR -

As at 31 March 2018, the fair value of the financial asset
amounted to approximately HK$38,000,000. No gain or loss on
change in fair value of the financial asset had been recognised
by the Group in the profit or loss for the year.
R201853A31H &% & B & & 2 A ¥ fE 4 /338,000,00078
e BREERAFEZERPHEMRAZTREEANT
B 8 sl E 18 -

The fair value of the unlisted fund has been determined based
on the valuation provided by a professional valuer which was
made by reference to the market prices of the properties of the
underlying project as at 31 March 2018.
FETERESZATEERE—REXAEM2EHEAR
BYER2018F3A3NB M BRE 2 AEERE -

We identified the valuation of investment in unlisted fund as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the judgment and
estimates made by the management and the subjectivity in
determination of level 3 fair value given the lack of availability
of market-based data.
HREREMEH B REF ZERERESEZENTS
BEBATEETAFERSMR 2 ETEBME RMAEKIELD
EeREZHERERBRETFE-

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

BPREEESHEIEAREFEHE:

- discussed with the management of the Company to obtain its
investment strategy and involvement in the fund;

- H BRAAERBENWURGHEHREXKLESS2NE
=

- examined the relevant investment contracts for the key terms
and the relevant contractual rights and obligations of the
holders of the financial assets;

- HMERMEECTIZHRIANCHMEEREAZIHBBESOE
aMETUEARERRETRE

- obtained the appraisal reports and assessed the competence
and independence of the professional valuers; and their
experience in conducting valuation of similar financial
instruments;

- EEMAEREKITEEERGEM N KRB KA
ETHREUSRMIT A E LR

- obtained the statement of the unlisted fund as at 31 March
2018 and compared the market value of the underlying
project used in the estimation of the fair value of the unlisted
fund to the net asset value as at 31 March 2018;

—  EER2018F3A318 2k LRSS WK - WH BN
FEEMES 2 AFEMEMAZEREER 2 ERR20185F
3ANBZEEFE:

- evaluated the appropriateness of the valuation methodology
and assumptions based on the industry knowledge, the
prevailing economic indicators and the information provided
by the fund manager; and

— REOTERM ROKEBEEERESEEARRZER
FHERETDERBRZBEL: &

- evaluated the reasonableness of the key inputs by checking
observable and unobservable inputs to the supporting
evidence and performed sensitivity analysis to evaluate the
magnitude of their impact on the valuation.

- BBBABERTABEERAEREXHERAER
B AEIERAEHZEEN WETHREDSNTIA
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Impairment assessment of investments in associates
(Please refer to Note 17 in the consolidated financial statements)

REBE DR 2 RE 2 BERFME

(FB2HRA M BEHmRMTE17)

Key audit matter How the matter was address in our audit

HAEEITEE BMWETNAEESHEE

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group acquired 33%  Our key procedures to address the matter included:
equity interests in Dellos Group Limited and its subsidiaries K IRIEEMEEIE 2 BEHEEFBIE:

("Dellos Group”) at a total consideration of approximately
HK$80,193,000. Dellos Group is classified as associates of the -
Group.

REE2018F3A31RIEFE: BEEEBENUNEKERD
80,193,000/ JT Y B Dellos Group Limited &2 £ K B A &)
([Delloste @) 2 33%MR#E - DellosEEH A EEEZ

ki.‘&\'./‘\ao —

P =N

After the acquisition, Dellos F&B Co. Ltd (“Dellos F&B"),

the operating subsidiary of Dellos Group was under the
rehabilitation proceedings as detailed in Note 17. -
R UL FE 18 » Dellostk [ 2 % 18 [ /& /2 B]Dellos F&B Co. Ltd
([Dellos F&B | ) IEFEETTHI FE177F it < BEEIZ T °

When he management of the Company carried out the follow
up work with Dellos Group in relation to the determination of
the equity interest in Dellos Group, after taking into account the -
rehabilitation proceedings, the management of the Company

considered that the equity interest in Dellos Group has been  —

diminished. As a result, there was a loss on investments in
associates of approximately HK$80,193,000 was recognised for -
the year ended 31 March 2018.

g BARIEIEERETE N Dellostk B 2 ik H Dellos & B
ETRETIER LA REEEFE BRAFEEER

AWM DellostE B 2 BHES BB D - FutL - RBE20185F3/ —

3NE IEFERERNE & QR 2R E 2 E1E 4980,193,0007%
ﬁ:o

We have identified the impairment assessment of investments
in associates as a key audit matter because the amounts of

impairment were significant and the assessment required — —

significant management judgement and involved high level of
estimation uncertainty.
HAHERRBERRZREZRENEEESERET -
EH RARBEHEBEXN BFHREEREEFLE

KA I Ko @K 2 st e -

Discussed with the management of the Company their
assessment on Dellos Group at different stages including
(i) decision making on investment, (i) the equity interest in
Dellos Group after completion of acquisition and (iii) reporting
date.

B OBSRREEENWEENRTRERYDeloskEE 2
FHE - BROBRIE 2RE - ()R 5T 1R R Dellos
8B 2 R K (idheEs A E

Understood with the management of the Company their
processes and policies and procedures for identifying the
diminishment in equity interest in Dellos Group;

M ERBEIRRE T AR E B Dellosk B 2 B 42
D2 iBiR  BURREF

Challenged the management's judgement and assessment in
determining the equity interest in Dellos Group;

B 5B TR B b B TE R Dellos 5= B 2 ARt -z 1 iy e w44

Obtained and reviewed the latest financial information
of Dellos Group, the legal advice on the rehabilitation
proceedings undertaken by Dellos F&B and its impact on the
Group;

HR 15 N & B Delloste B 2 & #8115 & ¥ - B Dellos FRBH#ETT
LEERBFEEERREY BESECTE:

Checked the reasonableness and relevance of the information
included in the assessment on the equity interest in Dellos
Group; and

RE B BN Dellos kB2 REZAEMBIEZEHNZE
Bt RAAREE &

Checked the findings of the independent review report on
the facts and circumstances leading to and surrounding the
investments in the investments in Dellos Group carried out by
an independent firm of internal control consultant.
i 2 FE 37 ) P B 2 R )t B B B B P Dellost B 2 #2
BZEERBRETZEBLERNREZEHR -



Impairment assessment of loans to associates
(Please refer to Note 17 in the consolidated financial statements)

Key audit matter

HEEITEE
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[ B & D FME L 2 B2 BE R

(B2HRa M BHRRME17)

How the matter was address in our audit

BMWETNAEESBEEE

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group has made a
full provision for impairment on the loans to Dellos Group of
approximately HK$13,871,000.

REBZE2018F3A3HIEFE - BEEBECHADellosk B
YEH 2 B2 R (E #913,871,000/8 T 1E HH 2 E B

The management of the Company assessed the recoverability
of loans to Dellos Group as at 31 March 2018 in accordance
with HKAS39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” and believed that the balances were
irrecoverable.
ERFERERBEEESTERENR [T A #R
K&t 2] fHER2018F3A31H MDelloste BEH 2 B Z
AIUR B M - 3 AR (E 5% A5 BA T S AT [E] o

The management of the Company assessed the provision for
impairment of loans to Dellos Group based on rehabilitation
proceedings undertaken by Dellos F&B (detailed in Note 17),
the credit-quality information of the Dellos Group such as the
latest audited financial statements and the latest management
accounts as well as the industry and business conditions of the
Dellos Group.
ERAIEIREREDellos FRBETT 2 EEZ T (G EE
17) ~DellosE B 2 EEB X EH (IR L EZT KR
KREHEERKRE LA KDelloss B 2 1TTE REBMA) -
FH & A DellosSE E{EH 2 ER 2 B R

We have identified the loans to associates as a key audit matter
because the assessment required significant management
judgement and involved high level of estimation uncertainty.
BB KREERREL 2 EREE RBRETEFE R
ARMEFEEREBELERHEG LS R EKF 2 A
NHETE I

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

BPREEERERCERIEF2HE:

- Discussed with the management of the Company about their
evaluation of the financial capability of Dellos Group and their
credit assessment that the amounts were irrecoverable;

- B BRAEEEwmKRZEHDelosk B 2 HHEE N2
Al ARBEMEL 2 @B AR KE 2 E 874

- Understood and evaluated the internal management controls
procedures of credit reviews and impairment assessment
performed by the management of the Company;

—  TEREFThE BERREREETZEEESE MRERMG
WEBE IR HI R T

- Challenged the management’s assessment of the
recoverability of the loans to Dellos Group and corroborated
their assessment by obtaining and reviewing the credit-
related information of associates from the management of the
Company;

— BEREEEMMDelosEBIEL 2 ERZaIUE M Z 5T
- WiERm BEAREREREREMBENGZE
EHEENBERS 2

- Checked the reasonableness and relevance of the information
included in the impairment assessment;

- REREFEMERZENZAEERB/IL:

- Checked the subsequent settlements; and

- BRBHEREMN: R

- Checked the findings of the independent review report on
the facts and circumstances leading to and surrounding the
loans to Dellos Group carried out by an independent firm of
internal control consultant.

—  BEE NP EL R M 3 B B B A Dellos s E E
CERZEFERBERET 2 BUERRE 2 ER -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report for
the year ended 31 March 2018 of the Group other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The audit committee of the Company assists the directors in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:—

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B ZHENRE (8)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hung, Wan Fong Joanne
Practising Certificate Number: P05419
Hong Kong, 29 June 2018

Annual Report 2018 £3f g1

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #{Z=2018F3 A31 B IEFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HKS'000
M 5 FHET T T
Revenue N 7 187,357 212,232
Cost of sales SHE AR (132,265) (158,081)
Gross profit EH 55,092 54,151
Other gain, net H by A - 5EE 9(a) 724 296
Fair value loss on derivative component RIRE R EEITET A3 D
in convertible loan notes ZRNFEEEE 18 (607) =
Fair value loss on financial assets at WAV EGFABREKZ
fair value through profit or loss TREEZATEEE - (1,356)
Realised loss on disposals of HERAFEFABRERZ
financial assets at fair value through SHMEEZEEREE
profit or loss (11,269) -
Loss on investments in associates REtE RN A 2R E 2 EE 17 (80,193) =
Impairment loss on loans to associates  [A1 B & A RIVEH 2 B 30 2 R E
4R 17 (13,871) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary o E— Rk B A as 9(b) 50 -
Selling expenses HEMZ (8,605) (8,288)
Administrative expenses THRZ (70,103) (69,159)
Operating loss & B A (128,782) (24,356)
Finance income R g 27 830 74
Finance costs B 745 A R 27 (603) =
Finance income — net s — 55 227 74
Loss before income tax BRETSBLATE 1R 10 (128,555) (24,282)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fiisf (AX) & 12 (1,232) 396
Loss for the year attributable to AATRIRREGFERESE
equity holders of the Company (129,787) (23,886)
Loss per share attributable to AATRREGREBRER
equity holders of the Company
Basic and diluted AT E 13 HK(38.48) cents& 1l HK(7.48) cents7 Il
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & £2018F3 H31H IEFE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAIT
Loss for the year KEE I8 (129,787) (23,886)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hiv2mE (F518) a
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss — AJEEEF H 2 Eax 2 B H
— Exchange difference on translation of —BRESIINEBIBREZ
financial statements of foreign operations e i =& (483) 982
— Reclassification adjustment —ENOBAE - (668)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for AEEHMEE (FHE),
the year, net of tax W BREBFE (483) 314
Total comprehensive loss for the year KEERRGRREMN
attributable to equity holders of 2 HEEEAE

the Company (130,270) (23,572)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e ISR R

As at 31 March 2018 72201843 A31H

2018 2017
Notes HKS$’000 HKS'000
e FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERARE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BB RFE 15 4,105 5,695
Investments in associates R E QRN E 17 = =
Convertible loan notes AR EREE 18 28,344 =
Other receivables, Hib iR e &
deposits and prepayments TET FE 20 23,505 11,528
Financial assets at fair value through BERAFEFABRERZ
profit or loss SEEE 24 38,000 -
Deferred tax assets RIETHIEEE 16 1,088 1,001
95,042 18,224
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 51,186 66,661
Loans and interest receivables JEUR & 3k N F B 23 = 46,378
Trade and other receivables, deposits U & 7 &/H\MEHK@EM .
and prepayments e RIER R 20 52,211 75,731
Tax prepaid AN A 598 652
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEFABRERZ
profit or loss SREE 24 - 42,774
Held-to-maturity investment BEEREHKEE 25 = 7,976
Loans to associates Al B & A EMED 2 B 17 345 =
Cash and cash equivalents RekEFRBE2 21 54,686 54,342
159,026 295,014
Current liabilities RBAR
Trade and other payables, deposits JE A< & 3R B B A A BR X
received and accruals Bz e L EFTE A 22 17,560 23,153
17,560 23,153
Net current assets REBEEFE 141,466 271,861
Total assets less current liabilities #EERRBAE 236,508 290,085
Net assets BEFRE 236,508 290,085
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
IREMSARRRK (8B)
As at 31 March 2018 7220183 A31H

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FERT FHET

EQUITY Em

Equity attributable to equity ARRBRREGES

holders of the Company

Share capital A A 26 3,394 3,195

Reserves it 233,114 286,890

Total equity wER 236,508 290,085

These consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 179 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June

2018 and were signed on its behalf by:

Yuen Ching Bor Stephen

RIER

Chairman and Non-Executive Director

FERIFHTEE

F62E179B FTE 2 7%

ERA VBRI ER2018F6 5290 %
EECERBETR

W NI EEREREE:

Cheung Sze Ming
R
Executive Director

BHITEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #{Z=2018F3 A31 B IEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AR R RREM
Share Share  Translation Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
(Note 26) (Note a)
IR A R EE B 5 i RitEE Bt
(F&E26) (FfiEa)
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT FAT TAT FTAT
Balances at 1 April 2016 201654 A 18 2 Kk 3,195 334316 (1,222) (22,632) 313,657
Loss for the year AEFER - - - (23,886) (23,836)
Other comprehensive loss: Hi2HEEE:
Reclassification adjustment ENAEAE - - (668) = (668)
Exchange difference on translation of B ERINEB I HHE 2
financial statements of bE i Z 5
foreign operations = = 982 = 982
Total comprehensive loss for the year  AEE 2 EEARE = = 314 (23,886) (23572)
Balances at 31 March 2017 201763318 2 &gk 3,195 334316 (908) (46,518) 290,085
Loss for the year AFEEEAE - - - (129,787)  (129,787)
Other comprehensive loss: Hi2EEE:
Exchange difference on translation of Tﬁ’giﬁﬁ\\%%,ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁz BE 5,
financial statements of bt
foreign operations - - (483) - (483)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AN E 2 H B4 5 - - (483)  (129,787)  (130,270)
Issue of consideration shares RURERE & AR BB ITRER
upon acquisition of associates 3 (Hi&E17)
(Note 17) 199 76,494 - - 76,693

Balances at 31 March 2018 R2018E3 A318 2 i 3,394 410,810 (1,391) (176,305) 236,508




Note:

The People’s Republic of China ("PRC") laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory reserves, which are to be
appropriated from the net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years)
as reported in their respective statutory financial statements, before profit distributions
to equity holders. All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes. PRC company
is required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to statutory surplus reserves, and
before distribution of its post-tax profits of the current year. A company may discontinue
the contribution when the aggregate sum of the statutory surplus reserve is more
than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’ production operations,
or to increase the capital of the companies. In addition, a company may make further
discretional contribution to the surplus reserve using its post-tax profits in accordance
with resolutions of the board of directors. As at 31 March 2018, the statutory surplus

reserves is Nil (2017: nil), as the PRC subsidiaries continued to make a in its operations.
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Consolidated Statement of Change in Equity (Continued)

RaRagdx (8)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &, =2018F3 A31H It F &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #{Z=2018F3 A31 B IEFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
B 5 FHERT FAETT
Cash flows from operating activities KEEKELCHETRE
Loss before income tax BRETS B Al & 18 (128,555) (24,282)
Adjustments for: B TISIEIED 2 %
Finance income B sl 27 (830) (74)
Finance costs R 27 603 -
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BE REETE
equipment 10 2,196 2,442
Translation gain released on i — R B A A8
deregistration of PRC operations PR EREERR 2
of a subsidiary HaE i A - (668)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FMRE QR 25T 9(b) (50) =
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair BATEGFAEBRER Y
value through profit or loss TREEATEEBE - 1,356
Fair value loss on derivative ABREREETET AT D
component in convertible ZNFEEE
loan notes 18 607 -
Realised loss on disposals of HEERAFEFABRERZ
financial assets at fair value TREECEBEEE
through profit or loss 11,269 -
Loss on disposals of property, HEME - BERZEEE
plant and equipment 9(a) 39 183
Loss on investments in associates REtE AR 2 WE 2 BB 17 80,193 =
Impairment loss on loans to associates mEERARMERHZERZ
B 18 17 13,871 -
Provision for impairment loss EREFREREEREE F38
on trade receivables, net 10 5,397 1,195
Provision for/(reversal of ) impairment GFEREBERE (BE) -
loss on inventories, net FRE 10 6,111 (10,566)
Operating cash flows before working ZEESB B KEHERE
capital changes (9,149) (30,414)
Changes in working capital: BEESEE:
Inventories & 9,364 46,396
Trade and other receivables, FE U E 3 HAth FE AR 3K -
deposits and prepayments e RIBMRIE 10,863 (21,738)
Trade and other payables, R ERREAEARK
deposits received and accruals BlIRe RIEFTE R (5,593) (310)
Loans and interest receivables EREERFE 46,878 (46,878)
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFABRR  CREE
profit or loss 31,505 (44,130)
Cash generated from/(used in) REEKEE (FH)Z2ESE
operations 83,868 (97,074)
Income tax paid EENRIECE (1,265) (1,875)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
RAEEESRER (B)
For the year ended 31 March 2018 &, =2018F3 A31H It F &

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
B 5 FHExT FEIT
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEREE (FH)Z
operating activities REFHE 82,603 (98,949)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHELZRHEHRE
Deposits paid for investment in MR —ERKRWBRRIRE T2
a future subsidiary e (20,000) -
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BERZE
equipment 15 (653) (3,550)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEYE  BE R&E TS HRIEA
plant and equipment 31 20 61
Purchase of held-to-maturity investment & B#48 £ 2| HIG & - (7.976)
Acquisition of associates 1451 3N (3,500)
Proceeds from redemption of ELOFE E R B E 2 P55 IE
held-to-maturity investment 7,976 -
Interests received BIF & 830 74
Purchase of convertible loan notes BEAMREREE 18 (27,274) =
Purchase of unlisted property fund BEIELMYWERS (38,000) -
Loans to associates M & N RMEL 2 B (900) -
Loans to a third party ME=ZFEHZER - (12,800)
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of ~ H & —HE B A EALZ
a subsidiary WEMAFRE 9(b) 1,973 -
Net cash used in investing activities REREACHSFE (79,528) (11,391)
Cash flows from financing activities BEETHELZRHEHRE
Interest paid BIFE (603) -
Proceeds from borrowings BE ﬁﬁ?:E'r I 35,000 =
Repayments of borrowings EHEEE (35,000) -
Net cash used in financing activities FEEEBFEA RS FE (603) =
Net increase/(decrease) incashand BEE&RZRBLEM, (FL)
cash equivalents R 2,472 (110,340)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning T 2R & Rk EREE
of the year 54,342 163,931
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ [E R & &) 7 L& (2,128) 751
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRZBERERR S
the year, represented by bank (RIRTEHRMEERT)
balances and cash 54,686 54,342
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RRME

GENERAL INFORMATION

Affluent Partners Holdings Limited (the “Company”, collectively
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 13 May 2014 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Laws 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong is Unit 2108, 21/F, Harcourt House,
39 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an Investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (i) the purchasing, processing, designing,
production and wholesale distribution of pearls and jewellery
products and (i) the operation of strategic investment and financial
services segment, with the objective to include investments in
stocks, bonds and other forms of securities and other potential
investment opportunities, and also money lending business.

In the opinion of directors of the Company, as at 31 March 2018, its
immediate holding company was Crown City Inc Limited ("Crown
City"), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability,
and its ultimate holding company was Affluent Block Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). The
ultimate controlling parties of the Company were Mr. Fang Anghong
and Ms. Fang Saixiang.

Following the completion of acquisition of 168,177,382 shares,
representing approximately 49.55% of the issued share capital of the
Company by Pacific Wish Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, from Crown City on 9 May 2018, the
ultimate controlling parties of the Company were changed to Mr.
Chan Vincent Wing Sing and Ms. Hui Ka Man Emily.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 17 October 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”"). The consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments which
are measured at fair values as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKS"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise stated.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
have been used in preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on management'’s
best knowledge and judgement of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are set out in Note 5 “Critical
accounting estimates and judgements”.

The comparative figures of other gain, net and fair value loss
on financial assets at fair value thought profit or loss have been
reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

iR PSR M EE (48)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 EASHBREBE
POLICIES
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of FELEREMBREMERACEES
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These BURESIIT - Br S EIEREEIN Jitvﬂl
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, ERFTEEMFEE —BUER-

unless otherwise stated.

(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

(i) Consolidation

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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iR M SRR (48)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

Consolidation (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquire over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from
intercompany transactions that are recognised in assets
are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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(b) Associates
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant

influence but not control, generally accompanying a

shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of

acquisition. The Group's investments in associated entities

includes goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets

and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive

income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is

recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with
a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate

equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any

other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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BTSRRI RE (48)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Associates (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate
is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of investments
accounted for using equity method’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group's financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor's interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
of interests are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HKS, which is the Company's functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available-
for-sale are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. Translation differences related to changes
in amortised cost are recognised in consolidated
income statement, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(b)  income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(0 all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

(d) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Subsequent costs are included
in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses over their estimated useful
lives from the date on which they are available for use and
after taking into account of their estimated residual values,
using the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

25% - 33%
209% - 25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 25%
20% - 25%

Leasehold improvements
Plant and machinery

Motor vehicles

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The assets’
residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “Other gain - net” in the consolidated income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

(f)

Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An

impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which

there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating

units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
investments. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.

(@

Management determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition.

(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss ("FVTPL") represents financial assets held
for trading and those designated at fair value
through profit or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term; or
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f) Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Classification (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument as
defined by HKAS 39.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;
or

the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group's documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally
on that basis; or
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f) Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Classification (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(Continued)

- it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined
contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They
arise when the Group provides money, goods
or services directly to a debtor with no intention
of trading the receivable. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period which are classified as non-current assets.
Loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest methods less
impairment losses, if any. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f) Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Classification (Continued)

(©

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity dates that the
Group has the positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity other than:

(@ those that the entity upon initial
recognition designates as at fair value
through profit or loss;

(b) those that the entity designates as
available for sale; and

(c)  those that meet the definition of loans and
receivables.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-
maturity investments are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification (Continued)

(i)

()

Convertible loan notes

The component parts of the convertible loan
notes are classified separately as receivable
component and derivative component.

At the date of subscription of convertible
loan notes, the initial value of the receivable
component is the residual value after separating
out the initial fair value of conversion option
component. In subsequent periods, the
receivable component of the convertible
instruments is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The conversion option
derivative is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the acquisition of
the convertible investments are allocated to debt
and derivative components in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to
the derivative components are charged to profit
or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to
the receivable component are included in the
carrying amount of the receivable portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible
instruments using the effective interest method.

3 EXRSTHEHE (#)

(f)

THMEE (&)
28 (&)

(i)

()

eSS e

AR ERER 2 AARER
7 A1 B 7 R FE R R
MO RLTETAF S -

RABBARBERERZ
B REERREED 20E
BERGRERELD Z
N RFERZFHRE
B - REZHMRE - AT T
B2 EWERRE D T E B
BRI ORI HRAA
FRo-MREITET ATiZ
NFEAE MATESR
B RER -

BRAWEBAIRBIRE 2R
SRATIRBE R ED
EEBEBHOMTETA
WO -BEITETARD
ZRGRAERNENIESE
328K - T A R B R K
D 2 R B ARG AFE
Wk EB D < FRE{E - I
15 FA BRI ZOE R A 3R
TEHR A -



3

Annual Report 2018 £3f 85

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial asset is
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated income statement,
and subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented in the income statement within
“Other (loss)/gain — net” in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

(iv)

(@)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(@ “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

(@)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivables and held to maturity
category of financial assets, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g) Financial liabilities

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowing at amortised cost, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value.

The Group's financial liabilities comprise mainly trade
and other payables and accruals.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Non-derivative financial liabilities — measurement

Non-derivative financial liabilities are initially recognised
at fair value less any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g) Financial liabilities (Continued)

(h)

(iii)

(iv)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (Continued)
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the
counterparty.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and, where

applicable, cost of conversion and other costs that have been

incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location

and condition, is calculated using the weighted average cost
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated

selling expenses.
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iR PSR M EE (48)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 KETBERBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(i) Cash and cash equivalents (i) REeEREZEFRE

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses. Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

(i) Current tax

The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except in respect of taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carried forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the carried
forward unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except in respect of deductible temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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iR PSR M EE (48)

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(I) Equity
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are

shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(m) Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable

for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value

added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of returns on historical experiences results,

taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of

transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the

goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the

expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the

terms of the relevant leases.
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ArA

3

BTSRRI RE (48)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n) Retirement benefits scheme

3 EXRSTHEHE (#)

(n) RK3EFEHE

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
the relevant municipal and provincial governments in the
PRC under which the Group and the PRC based employees
are required to make monthly contributions to these plans
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.

These plans are a state-managed retirement benefits scheme
being operated by the local PRC government. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute 10% to 15% of the average
basic salary to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contributions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n) Retirement benefits scheme (Continued)
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3

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and

future retired PRC based employees payable under the plans

described above. Other than the monthly contributions, the
Group has no further obligation for the payment of retirement
and other post retirement benefits of its employees. The
assets of these plans are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds managed by the

PRC government.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under
the rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance (“MPF Scheme”), which is a defined

contribution retirement scheme for all employees in Hong

Kong. The contributions to the MPF Scheme are based on

minimum statutory contribution requirement of 5% of eligible
employees’ relevant aggregate income subject to a cap of
HKS$1,500 per month, effective from 1 June 2014. The assets
of this pension scheme are held separately from those of the

Group in independently administered funds.

The Group's contributions to the defined contribution

retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

(0) Operating leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms

of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(o) Operating leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease, except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rental
are charged to profit or loss in the year in which they are
incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p)

(a)

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group's and the Company's
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors, which
are the Group's chief operating decision-maker for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group's business
components and for their review of the performance of
those components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the executive directors are
determined following the Group’s major product and service
lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable and
operating segments: (i) “Sale of Pearls and Jewellery” and (ii)
“Strategic Investment and Financial services”. Each of these
operating segments is managed separately as each of the
product and service lines requires different resources as well
as marketing approaches.

All inter-segment transfers are carried out at arm'’s length
prices. The measurement policies the Group use for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in
its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs, except that
fair value gain/loss on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, change in fair value of derivative financial assets,
gain/loss on disposal of subsidiaries, finance costs, share of
results of associates, corporate income, corporate expense
and income tax expense are excluded from segment results.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r) Related parties
A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(@)

(i)

(i)

(iif)

as control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r) Related parties
(Continued)

(b)

(V)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:

0]

(i)

(iif)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.
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BTSRRI RE (48)

AN
ArA

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative component in convertible
loan notes and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to these fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices)

Level 3 — based on Inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data (that is unobservable
inputs)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

3
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iR PSR M EE (48)

4 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS 4 EBRFIRKBIEBUNBRS
8|
The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs which BEEEMASEBMLHERNEEFH
were relevant to the Group and had became effective during the RERARNEE LB REIEFT BB
year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Group B EER]  NIRBAR S MG HMR T A&
has applied all these new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, EEAMBZESEAGTMAGREMZ
which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s consolidated eI RENERT B AR E R (EAREE
financial statements for the accounting period beginning on 1 April 820174 1B RFB 2 St EIE &R 6
2017. BHRREENMEEAEN) -
()  Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative () BALAERFHEFEETE (BET
7))
(i)  Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets (i) BALFERNE125RE IR BB
for Unrealised losses RIELETIEEE (BF]A)
(i) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle (iiy BB EHREER014F F2016F A
Amendments to a number of HKFRSs M FERELTBE BT HHREER
P
(i) Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative (i) BEASHEAE7RIFETE
CCHEY)
The amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to make BAGHERFR (BTN REE
disclosures that aim to enable users of financial statements BERREHBRRERAETLHA
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing BEBMEE 2 BEEZEEL TG
activities. Reconciliations of various types of the Group's TEEEEREBBZHREENZE
financing liabilities would be disclosed in the consolidated REMBmABE - BAZEEL
financial statements. The application of the amendments has REZEREVBMEREEEMELR
not had any material effect on these consolidated financial 21

statements.
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4 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS
(CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iii)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised losses

The amendments to HKAS 12 clarify when unrealised losses
on a debt instrument measured at fair value would give rise
to a deductible temporary difference and how to evaluate
whether sufficient future taxable profits are available to
utilise a deductible temporary difference. The application of
the amendments has not had any material effect on these
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

Annual improvements to HKFRSs (2014-2016 cycle) include an
amendment to HKFRS 12 that clarifies that, when an entity’s
interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate (or a
portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate) is
classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified)
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets held for Sale and Discontinued operations, it is not
required to disclose summarised financial information for that
subsidiary, joint venture or associate, as required by HKFRS
12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities. The application of
the amendments has not had any material effect on these
consolidated financial statements.

iR M SRR (48)
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iR PSR M EE (48)

4 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS 4 BRI REBITERBMBRE
(CONTINUED) A (%)
At the date of this report, the Group has not early applied RARE B AEE W ERZFEL
any of the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been EHBRERNEREAEANUTER
issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated financial MR 1B B R A BT R] RASERT BB BT
statements: TS 4R

Effective for
annual reporting
periods beginning

on or after
RUT B
R ERBKZ
FEREHBER
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of 1 January 2018
Share-based Payment Transactions
BB B RELERNFE25R IR RERZNRRZ 2D BERGE 201851 A1H
CCHES)
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with 1 January 2018
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
BB ELERIFEA5R EREBMBRELERFSR RS 201851 A1H
(BFTA) —HEAEEVMBHREENERERMITA
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
BB MBS LRI TRIE 20185F1 A 1H
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 1 January 2019
RN mE LR FE R Bt B E 2 TR RIS B 20191 A1H
(BFTA)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
FEM B IHRELERIFE 1557 BEFEEHZBA 201851 A1H
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from 1 January 2018
Contracts with Customers
RN MELER 1555 ERMBHRELUBISHREFENIWAZEF 20181 A1H
(BFTA)
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

AR BRE LR F 1658

e 201951 818



4 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS

(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 17
BB B EwEERE 175
Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
BB mEERE105% &
BB ER 285 (BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 19
ERGEERIFE 195 (BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 40
BB EFTERF405% (BEFTA)
Amendments to HKFRSs
BB wE LR 2 EE]
Amendments to HKFRSs
BB B IwELRER 2 1EF]
HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22

58 (BRI BRERELZES)
EEE225R

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23

58 (BRI BHRERERZES)
B E235R
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8 ()

A

Insurance Contracts
Riza#
Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or joint Venture
KREEEABENARGELEZHEN
BELESHTE
Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
SENERT - MRk A
Transfer of Investment Property
BEREME
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle
BB B E L RI20145F 220165 A 8 2 F 2 BUE
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle
ERMBMELER2015F E2017F B I 2 FEBE
Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

SNER Z KRB RE

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

PSRRI 2 T HEE 1

4 ERAFMITRE

iR M SRR (48)

BB RMBRE

Effective for
annual reporting
periods beginning
on or after

KT HE
RZEBEHBZ
FEHREHBER

1 January 2021
20211 18
To be determined *

N

FHEE

1 January 2019
201951 A1H
1 January 2018
20181 418
1 January 2018
201851 H1H8
1 January 2019
201951 A1H8
1 January 2018

2018F1 A 1H

1 January 2019
20191818
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iR PSR M EE (48)

4 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS
(CONTINUED)

* On 6 January 2016, the HKICPA issued “Effective Date of Amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28", following the International Accounting
Standards Board'’s equivalent amendments. This update defers/removes
the effective date of the amendments in “Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor or its Associate or Joint Venture” that the HKICPA
issued on 7 October 2014. Early application of these amendments

continues to be permitted.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
related impact of adopting the above new and revised
HKFRSs. So far, it has concluded that the above new and
revised HKFRSs will be adopted at the respective effective
dates and the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group except for the following:

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 has introduced new requirements for (a) classification
and measurement of financial assets; (b) impairment of
financial assets; and (c) general hedge accounting.

4 BRI REBITERBMBRE
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4 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Specifically, with regard to the classification and measurement
of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires all recognised
financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS 9 to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that
have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of each
of the subsequent accounting periods. Debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. Further, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss and
that cumulative fair value changes will not be reclassified
to profit or loss upon derecognition of the investment. The
Group has assessed that, saved for the convertible loan
notes, its financial assets will continue with their respective
classification and measurements upon the adoption of
HKFRS 9. The convertible loan notes would be analysed
for classification in its entirety and the conversion option
embedded in the loan notes would cause the conversion
loan notes to fail the SPPI criterion. Therefore, the convertible
loan notes in its entirety would be classified as FVTPL. Such as
assessment is subject to change when the management of
the Company perform a more detailed analysis.

iR M SRR (48)
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iR PSR M EE (48)

4 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS 4 ERFHIRKLEITEBUMBRE

(CONTINUED) 28| (&)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued) ERBUKRELERFFK /T A |
(48)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of a
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of such changes in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss is
presented in profit or loss. The Group currently does not have
any financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss and therefore this new requirement will not have any
impact on the Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.

With regard to impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 has
adopted an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model required under HKAS 39. In
general, the expected credit loss model requires an entity
to assess the change in credit risk of the financial asset since
initial recognition at each reporting date and to recognise
the expected credit loss depending on the degree of the
change in credit risk. This new impairment model may result
in an earlier recognition of credit losses on the Group's trade
receivables and other financial assets. The management of
the Company expects to apply the simplified approach of
recognising lifetime expected credit losses as these items
do not have a significant financing components, which are
estimated based on the present values of all cash shortfalls
over the remaining life of all of its receivables. The Group does
not consider that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have material
financial impact on the Group's financial performance and
financial positions.
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4 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

With regard to the general hedge accounting requirements,
HKFRS 9 retains the three types of hedge accounting
mechanisms currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS
9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an “economic relationship”. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced. The Group
currently does not apply any hedge accounting and therefore
this new requirement will not have any impact on the Group
on adoption of HKFRS 9.

iR M SRR (48)
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iR PSR M EE (48)

4 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS 4 ERFHIRKLEITEBUMBRE
(CONTINUED) 8| (&)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts
and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective. The
core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a
5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step4:  Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

ERMBREENEISR[EFEN
ZWA

BB SRS LERIE 1557 R IAZ
VE-GAEL UHEBARNER
BHEENBAZERE -TEY
RS QI SB155% 18 X0 A R AU IR
RENFEGHENF R EE &
BEFERENREEANLBER
BZWAERIES - BEMBREE
AIE 1550 RIS E B8 IR
a5 DA [R) 55 P o R R B o R TS
TH O URRERRHAERERZE
EmaR% KB BEMmE - %E]
SIAWATER Z5HE

TR BEERFEFPHNEL
P2 BMEANTHNRORS

S RERHERE
SBa: HRHBEHRIALF

B K&
TR REBEREBONEBR
(LEhIL) FERULA

1R TR AR08 B8
KRB EE (Rt BRIk
% EDIE IR B I 5 o
RIS RS SR T ESE - 58
B 76 80 55 2 R 1595 B S RIS R A
B EMAE RIS - 1A B
RIS s B 58 BT T A
HEAK



Annual Report 2018 £} 111

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

Based on the Group's existing business model, the
management of the Company expects that the adoption
of HKFRS 15 is unlikely to result in significant impact on
the Group's financial performance but it may affect related
disclosures made in the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and their treatment
in the financial statements of both lessors and lessees. The
new standard maintains substantially the lessor accounting
requirements in the current standard.

A lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability at the commencement of lease arrangement.
Right-of-use asset includes the amount of initial measurement
of lease liability, any lease payment made to the lessor at
or before the lease commencement date, estimated cost
to be incurred by the lessee for dismantling or removing
the underlying assets from and restoring the site, as well
as any other initial direct cost incurred by the lessee. Lease
liability represents the present value of the lease payments.
Subsequently, depreciation and impairment expenses, if
any, on the right-of-use asset will be charged to profit or
loss following the requirements of HKAS 16 “Property, Plant
and Equipment”, while lease liability will be increased by the
interest accrual, which will be charged to profit or loss, and
deducted by lease payments.
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4 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRS 4 ERFHIRKLEITEBUMBRE
(CONTINUED) 8| (&)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The standard provides a single lessee accounting model,
requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all
leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the
underlying asset has a low value.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties and office equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application of
the new accounting model is expected to lead an increase
in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of
the expense recognition in the profit or loss over the period
of the lease. The total operating lease commitments of the
Group in respect of leased properties and office equipment
as at each of the reporting dates are set out in Note 28(b). The
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the right-of-use asset under HKFRS 16 will
replace the rental charge under HKAS 17. The operating lease
commitments as shown in off-balance sheet item will be
replaced by “right-of-use assets” and ‘lease liabilities” in the
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group.
The Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis to
determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising
from operating lease commitments on the adoption of HKFRS
16, after taking into account the applicability of the practical
expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into or
terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and
the effects of discounting.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

Provision for impairment loss on trade receivables
The policy for the provision for impairment loss on trade receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and
ageing analysis of accounts and on managements’ judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these trade receivables, including current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer
or counterparty and the current market conditions. If the financial
conditions of customers or counterparties of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional provision for impairment may be required. The
identification of doubtful debts requires management judgement
and estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is
different from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
carrying amount of receivables and doubtful debt expenses/reversal
in the period in which the estimate has been changed.

The Group reassessed the estimation at the end of each
reporting period. As at 31 March 2018, the net carrying amount
of trade receivables was approximately HK$37,392,000 (2017:
HK$59,357,000). The management of the Company determined that
net provision for impairment loss on trade receivables be recognised
in profit or loss amounting to approximately HK$5,397,000 (2017:
HK$1,195,000) for the year ended 31 March 2018.
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A HRME ()

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated selling expense. The Group
would evaluate ageing analysis as to identify the slow-moving
inventories. The Group would also estimate the net realisable
value of inventories based primarily on the latest market price,
current market conditions and subsequent selling price, and make
allowance for slow-moving inventories when the Group identified
items of inventories which have a net realisable value that is lower
than its carrying amount. It could change significantly as a result
of changes in customer taste and competitors’ actions in response
to severe industry cycles, such differences will impact the carrying
value of inventories and provision charge/reverse in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.

The Group reassessed the estimation at the end of each reporting
period. As at 31 March 2018, the net carrying amount of inventories
was approximately HK$51,186,000 (2017: HK$66,661,000). The
management of the Group determined that net provision for
impairment loss on inventories be recognised in profit or loss
amounting to approximately HKS$6,111,000 (2017: net reversal of
provision for impairment loss approximately HK$10,566,000) for the
year ended 31 March 2018

Investments in associates

Determining the equity interest held by the Group in associates
requires the management judgements and involved high level of
estimation uncertainty. Should the estimates and the underlying
factors be changed, there would be material changes in the equity
interest in associates.

Detailed information in relation to investments in associates are set
out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Current and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences are
recognised when management considers it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised. When the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred income tax assets and taxation charges in the period in
which such estimate is changed.

Fair value measurement of financial assets

The best evidence of fair value is the published price quotations in
an active market. In the absence of such information, the fair value
is determined by an independent professional valuer. Such valuation
is subject to limitations of the valuation models adopted and the
uncertainty in estimates used by management in the assumptions.
Should the estimates and the relevant parameters of the valuation
models be changed, there would be material changes in the fair
value of certain financial instruments without quoted prices.

Detailed information in relation to the fair value measurement of the
respective financial assets are set out in the applicable notes.
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6 HXKERBREEEZRIEE

AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include convertible loan
notes, loans and interest receivables, trade and other receivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity
investment, loans to associates, cash and cash equivalents and
trade and other payables. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments, which include market risk (foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Save
for credit risk, the Group does not have written risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the board of directors (the
“Board”) meets periodically to analyse and formulate measures to
manage the Group's exposure to different risks arising from the use
of financial instruments. Generally, the Group employs conservative
strategies regarding its risk management. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(@) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk refers to the risk that the fair
value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC,
United States and Europe with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in HKS$, United States
dollars (“US$"), and RMB. No foreign currency risk has
been identified for the financial assets and financial
liabilities denominated in RMB, which is the functional
currencies of the subsidiaries in the Mainland China to
which these transactions relate. The Group's exposure
to foreign currency risk primarily arises from certain
financial instruments including convertible loan notes,
trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade
payables which are denominated in US$, RMB, GBP
and Euro. During the years, the Group did not have
foreign currency hedging policy but management
continuously monitors the foreign exchange exposure.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i)
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The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the reporting dates and that all other variables
remain constant.

The stated changes represent management'’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next annual
reporting date. A positive figure represents a decrease
in loss or increase in equity and vice versa for figures in
brackets.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Bank
balances at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk while the loan receivables, loans
to associates and convertible loan notes carried at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. The Group's income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 March 201
had been 25 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, post-tax loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$208,000 (2017:
HKS$19,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/

8, if interest rates on bank balances

lower interest income on bank balances.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years are considered
to be effective.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(iii)

Price risk

Equity price risk related to the risk that the fair values or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of change in market price (other than changes
in interest rate and foreign exchange rate). The Group
is exposed to equity price risk through its investments
in listed equity securities and unlisted investment and
property funds which are classified as at fair value
through profit or loss. Gain or loss arising from changes
in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are dealt with in profit or loss.

The management manages the price risk by regularly
monitoring equity portfolio to address any portfolio
issues promptly and spreading price risk exposure
by investing in number of listed and unlisted equity
securities. The Group is not exposed to commodity
price risk.

As at 31 March 2018, if the price of unlisted property
fund (2017: listed equity securities and unlisted
investment fund) classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss had been 30% higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, the
Group's post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March 2018
would have been approximately HK$11,400,000 (2017:
HK$12,832,000) lower/higher.

This sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the price change had occurred at the reporting
dates and has been applied to the Group's investment
on that date.

The policies to manage equity price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fall to discharge its obligation under the
terms of the financial instrument and cause a financial loss to
the Group.

Credit risk mainly arises from loans and interest receivables,
trade and other receivables, convertible loan notes, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans to associates
and cash and cash equivalents.

In order to minimise the credit risk in respect of loans
and interest receivable, the Group has policies in place
for determining credit terms, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
monitors subsequent settlement of each of the loans and
interest receivables and reviews the recoverable amount of
each loans and interest receivables at end of the reporting
period to ensure adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no loans and interest
receivables balance (Note 23).

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group will place
them in banks and financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

As at 31 March 2018, the top five customers accounted
for approximately 55% (2017: 53%) of the Group's trade
receivables balance. The directors of the Company considered
the credit risk from this concentration was not significant
as these counterparties were sizeable and well-established
companies in the jewellery industry with sound financial
position, one of which is a company listed in Hong Kong. All
of these counterparties have retail stores in Hong Kong and
elsewhere in the world.

Trade receivables included an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$12,303,000 (2017: HK$13,922,000) which
is neither past due nor impaired. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The top five customers
have long-term trading relationship with the Group. The
management of the Group believes that the amount is
considered recoverable given no recent history of default
of the customers, and the top five customers have good
settlement history under the Group's individual credit
evaluations.

For the convertible loan notes, the issuer and its wholly
owned subsidiary are well-established multi-national
companies in the realty agency industry in England and the
board of directors consider the credit risk is not high.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group.
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6

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

Most of the Group's customers do not have independent
credit rating. Trade receivables are continuously monitored
by assessing the credit quality of the customers, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and other
factors. Credit limits of customers are reviewed periodically.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has to comply with the credit and risk management
policies approved by the Board of the Company, established
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount for each individual trade receivables at
each reporting date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
board of directors considers that the Group's credit risk is
effectively controlled and significantly reduced.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
limiting the Group's exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk related to the risk that the Group will not able
to meet its obligation associated with its financial liabilities.
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows in the
short and long term.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
managing liquidity risk.

6 HMBEBREEBZERBER (#)
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(c)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6 UHEAREEEERBE (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () REBEELRMR (&)
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRETREFEAREEENESR R
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's trade and HEa R Bl & R H M fEET
other payables, deposits received and other accruals based BRCHBTEHNIERRE It ARE
on undiscounted cash flows (include interest payments KMBBEERE (BEFEAEHFE
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on g (AZEIFIE)REE B 2 FIZEET
rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date B2 F B RSB A ESKE
the Group can be required to pay. BemFAHFE-
The Group's financial liabilities have contractual maturities as AEEERMBECENIBHBALT
follows:
Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows: FER ST —REFIRIR S M -
Between Between
Less than 1and2 2and5 More than
On demand 1year years years 5 years Total
REX LR-F —-FEZME MEERFE SRIEF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
31 March 2018 2018%3H31H
Trade and other payables, I &5 %
deposits received and HAn T BRTR
other accruals BlEE K
HthEs &R - 11,185 - - - 11,185
31 March 2017 201734317
Trade and other payables, BRI EF K
deposits received and Hqth e R ERR
other accruals Blize R
HthEER - 16,726 - - - 16,726
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6

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Fair value estimation

(i)

(ii)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include trade and other receivables, loans to associates
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables
and accruals. The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of these financial assets and liabilities
approximate their fair values at 31 March 2018 and
2017.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded on active
liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted
market prices.

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into
three levels based on the relative reliability of significant
inputs used in measuring the fair value of these
financial assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

6 HMBEBREEBZERBER (#)

(d)
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(i)

(ii)
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HEEREZBEERBER (&)

(d) Fair value estimation (Continued) (d) DFEME (E)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (i) BAFEFEZe®MIA (H)
(Continued)
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the EefmEECHEFR AFES
financial assets is categorised in its entirety is based B2KFEERE A TEFERE
on the lowest level of input that is significant to the AP E 7 HZERBEBUKT - RNERE
fair value measurement. The financial assets measured BBMRRAERANEAFEFEZS
at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial BEENEDABATHALES
position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as &
follows:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R Ep Y B34 #at
Financial assets SREE 2018 2018 2018 2018
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets at fair BEAFERA
value though Bamkz
profit or loss TREE
— Unlisted property fund ~ —3JE LT ¥
A - - 38,000 38,000
Convertible loan notes AR E R
b3
— derivative — 5T
component TEAEES - - 877 877
- - 38,877 38,877
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF EPE 38R #Et
Financial assets SREE 2017 2017 2017 2017
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FHET T T T T FAT
Financial assets at fair BEAFERA
value though Bamkz
profit or loss: BREEE
Listed equity securities EmRA
7 7 29,154 - - 29,154
— Unlisted investment —FELEMERE
fund 2o - - 13,620 13,620
29,154 - 13,620 42,774
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Fair value estimation (Continued)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within
level 3 of fair value hierarchy:

6 HMBEBREEBZERBER (#)

(d)

AR EMEE (F)
RATESREBH P2 ATETE
HER:

Derivative
component Unlisted
in convertible Unlisted investment
loan notes property fund fund
CIE::)d
BREEZ kLT ktH
FTET RIS MEES REES
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
Carrying amounts 120164818 Z BRAEE
asat 1 April 2016 - - -
Additions N - - 14,250
Net loss from a fair value REFE R R ANER Z
adjustment recognised in N EARERFE
consolidated income statement - - (630)
Carrying amounts as at 31 March 73201783 A318 Z BREE
2017 - - 13,620
Additions 2N 1,433 38,000 -
Disposals & — = (13,620)
Net loss from a fair value RERE W EmERANERZ
adjustment recognised in N EFAREEFE
consolidated income statement (607) - -
Exchange differences fE N =5 51 = =
Carrying amounts as at 31 March 7220183 A31H 2 lRE&E
2018 877 38,000 -

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose
of measuring fair values are unchanged compared to the
previous reporting periods.

The Group's policy is to recognize transfer between levels of
fair value hierarchy as of the date of the events or change
in circumstances that cause the transfer. There have been
no significant transfers between the levels in the reporting
periods.

B12E BT RS MR BB AT
[ 2 75 R R At 5 89 o

REBE Y HE AR SR B R
BRBCEBRBATESHELIH
ﬁﬁé“ﬁ/\\\ﬁ&%,ﬁﬁ FEEJ%?&ZFEEJE\EﬁEX
o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 6

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Fair value estimation (Continued)

The Group's financial assets classified in Level 3 use valuation
technique based on significant inputs that are not based on
observable market data.

Information about level 3 fair value measurement

The fair values of derivative component in the convertible
loan notes are determined using binomial option pricing
model and the significant unobservable input used in the
fair value measurement is the expected volatility. The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to the expected
volatility. As at 31 March 2018, it is estimated that with all
other variables held constant, an increase in the expected
volatility by 5% would have decreased the Group's loss by
GBP116,000 (equivalent to approximately HKS$1,277,000)
(2017: Nil) while a decrease in the expected volatility by
5% would have increased the Group's loss by GBP66,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$727,000) (2017: HKSNil) for
conversion option embedded in convertible loan notes.

The fair values of unlisted property fund are determined
using Monte-Carlo simulation analysis and the significant
unobservable input used in the fair value measurement is the
expected volatility. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the expected volatility. As at 31 March 2018,
it is estimated that with all other variables held constant,
an increase in the expected volatility by 5% would have
decreased the Group's loss by approximately HK$902,000
(2017: Nil) while a decrease in the expected volatility by 5%
would have increased the Group's loss by approximately
HK$1,320,000 (2017: HKS5).

For the significant inputs for the derivative component in
convertible loan notes and unlisted property fund, please
refer to Notes 18 and 24 respectively.

iR M SRR (48)

HEEREZBEERBER (&)
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

6

(e) Financial instruments by category (e)
The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position relate to the following

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

MEEREEZREZERBER (&)

RERESNEMTA
RAEMBARRKP 25 2 REEEINR
TEMmEERSRABENEGRA:

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2018 2017
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHERT FAT
Financial assets as per consolidated A BERRKRFMIESHEE
statement of financial position
Loans and receivables ERREWER
Loans to associates (Note 17) MBS QN RER 2B (KYFE17) 345 -
Convertible loan notes, receivable AR EREE  BUREERI D
component (Note 18) (BFzE18) 27,467 -
Loans and interest receivables (Note 23)  FEU & Zx K2 Fll 2. (Bf3£E23) - 46,878
Trade, other receivables and deposits FEMCE SR - A b FE YR TR
(Note 20) e (KtsF20) 67,781 81,570
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) Be MERIRS (H3E21) 54,686 54,342
Held-to-maturity BEZEH
Held-to-maturity investment (Note 25) A Z2HHIKE (M35E25) - 7,976
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEFABZERZEMEE
profit & loss
Convertible loan notes, derivative AMRERER TETENS
component (Note 18) (BFzE18) 877 -
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABREZ
profit or loss (Note 24) TREE (MFE24) 38,000 42,774
Total FEy 189,156 233,540
Financial liability as per consolidated #Z&HMERAEKRFAISHEE
statement of financial position
Financial liability at amortised costs REBERATEZESHBREE
FERNERRE A ERRR
Trade and other payables, deposits B REMETER (MisE
received and other accruals (Note 22) 22) 11,185 16,726
Total mEt 11,185 16,726
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REVENUE

Revenue from sales of pearls and jewellery represents the amounts
received and receivable from customers in respect of goods sold
less returns and allowances.

Interest income on financial assets including money lending
and held-to maturity investment are accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable.

The Group's revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

iR M SRR (48)

WA
HEZRERBEZBAERERE KW RIE
WEP ZFREBRE TN -

TREE (BREEABEEINRE)Z
MBRATIRZ2ERREELAS RIAER
BRI R IR 2 EHERG-

FREERZAEEBRALT :

2018 2017

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHERT T

Sales of pearls and jewellery HEDKRRIKE 176,519 210,179
Interest income from strategic investment SR ESIR & K B 75 AR 75 F1 B UL A

and financial services 10,838 2,053

187,357 212,232

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating segments have been determined based
on the information reported to the executive directors, being
the chief operating decision maker of the Group, that are used
for performance assessment and to make strategic decisions.
The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Each of the Group's operating
segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products
and services which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of other operating segments. The Group currently has
two operating segments:
(@) Sale of pearls and Design and sale of jewellery
jewellery products products, and sale of pearls
(b) Strategic investment Financial assets investment, money
and financial services lending and investments in
associates

7 EHEFR

AEBzRENMERBERANITES (A
AEEBTELLEREAN) ME2EREE -
BRER T BIEFHERIR ML R R
TEoARE 2 BEXBIRBERBIEE KX
iR C ERMERBBERBLERE - RN&
B & AR 0y BR Fe 4R AR mm S R 2 SRR 1
EBELN - ERRREHREFIREMEED
M AKERBEAMEREDB:

(@ HEDLKR RiNHEEREEMR
REEM URHED K
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8 IEFR (F)

The executive directors assess the performance of the HITESREDBEE LT ETBEED
operating segments based on a measure of segment results. BRIE - WHERE LN BIFEEED F 2 FEL
This measurement basis excludes the effects of non-recurring BHYHREERAST 28 - RETITE
expenditure and of corporate expenses from the operating S HMERIZREG S BWME - 2h
segments. Other information provided to the executive directors NETE ©

is measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's reportable segment revenue, results, BZE2018F3H31 A IEFE  REEZRKE D
assets, liabilities and other selected financial information for the year HEpzAZ2mMoHles ¥E BEE -8
ended 31 March 2018 by operating segments are as follows: EREMETHFER 2T :
Segment revenue and results DEWARELE
For the year ended 31 March 2018 B E2018F3A31HLEE
Strategic
Sale of pearls investment
and jewellery  and financial
products services Total
HEZHKR XKERER
KREEM B 75 AR 7% st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET THET THET
Segment revenue 2 EBULA 176,519 10,838 187,357
Segment loss DEEE (14,518) (98,284) (112,802)
Finance income B i iz 830
Finance costs B 7% X 7R (603)
Unallocated corporate expenses Ao EMET (15,980)

Loss before income tax Br LA E 1B (128,555)
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8 ZoHEER (&)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEHBARESE (K)
For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE2017F3A31HLEE
Strategic
Sale of pearls investment
and jewellery and financial
products services Total
HELKKE  REEEKRER
KREBEM B 7% AR 75 #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FHET FHET FHET
Segment revenue 7 EBUA 210,179 2,053 212,232
Segment loss D EBETHE (11,529) (2,368) (13,897)
Finance income Rl g 74
Unallocated corporate expenses Ao ERET (10,459)
Loss before income tax bR 5 A E5 48 (24,282)
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated EXERzHDEFBRATEREIINEFEELEZ
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the Was o A EFE WA D PREHE -
years.
Segment results represent loss incurred by each segment without DEEBESOHBEEZEE EXESER
allocation of central administrative expenses including directors’ RRITEAS  BRESFMe RHFeURAE
emoluments and salaries and other operating expenses incurred by RNEIREEER AR EE  EMEEM= -
the Company and the investment holding companies, certain other BT E bW as K B ms e Ko B AR o bt T Rk
gains and finance income and costs. This is the measure reported BB R RGO E R MM EELERK
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource ABHRIFTE

allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8 IEFR (F)

THEERES
7201853 H31H

Segment assets and liabilities
At 31 March 2018

TXHEINBEAEBREMEMDBZEE
kABEZEREED T :

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities analysed by the geographical area of operations of the

Group:

Sale of pearls
and jewellery

Strategic
investment
and financial

products services Total
HEZLKR XKKERER
KEEM B 7% AR 7 et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FEx FET
Segment assets PHEE
~ Hong Kong —EH 119,567 38,612 158,179
— United Kingdom — & - 66,868 66,868
~The PRC —HE 17,115 - 17,115
136,682 105,480 242,162
Unallocated corporate assets ROREEEE 11,906
Total assets BERE 254,068
Segment liabilities 2HEE
- Hong Kong — B (12,992) (500) (13,492)
~The PRC — (2,993) - (2,993)
(15,985) (500) (16,485)
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROoREEEE (1,075)

Total liabilities

=
Ot
3o
CRE
i

(17,560)
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8 oHESR (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PTHEEREE (&)

At 31 March 2017 R2017%F3A31H

Strategic
Sale of pearls investment
and jewellery and financial
products services Total
HERPKE SHBRER
KREEm B 15 AR 7% et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
THETT T THET
Segment assets DEBE E
- Hong Kong —&BB 156,455 99,093 255,548
- Korea — 5 - 12,800 12,800
~The PRC —f 22,913 = 22913
179,368 111,893 291,261
Unallocated corporate assets ROMEEEE 21,977
Total assets BEBE 313,238
Segment liabilities HEPEE
- Hong Kong — &5 (15,934) ©) (15,935)
-The PRC —f (3310) - (3.310)
(19,244) (1 (19,245)
Unallocated corporate liabilities Ao EEEE (3.908)
Total liabilities BfEEsE (23,153)
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
certain deposits and prepayments, and certain cash and cash
equivalents that are not attributable to individual segments.

0
N

DEER ()
THEERERE (FE

)
g

RERDBRREN D BREOEER:

- BETRERANFKE ARETH
ERERRE A ABERI D BRI BT

BEEUIEERENE

Bo

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than — BRETEERKAEMEBENERRTE
certain accruals and other payables that are not attributable ANERSEIN AEEBEHSEEL
to individual segments. & HR

Other segment information Hfth 5 5 & ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B ZE2018F3A31HLEE

Strategic
Sale of pearls investment
and jewellery and financial
products services Total
HEYHKHE KHRER
KREEM B 7% AR 7% et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FTET FET
Amounts included in the measure 25 EHEE R 22
of segment loss and segment EEFFTAZ £
assets
Additions to property, plant and NEVE BERHZE
equipment 51 602 653
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% - &= Mk E 2 ITE
equipment (2,077) (119) (2,196)
Loss on disposals of property, plant &Y - BE Mk 2 EE
and equipment (34) (5) (39)
Fair value loss on derivative AMREREBRITETE
component in convertible Bo 2z RFEEEE
loan notes - (607) (607)
Realised loss on disposals of financial &I A FEFABR K Z
assets at fair value through SREECEZIREE
profit or loss = (11,269) (11,269)
Loss on investments in associates REFERF 2R E 2 BB - (80,193) (80,193)
Impairment loss on loans to ML AFMER CERZ
associates VEREYEi=! - (13,871) (13,871)
Provision for impairment loss on FEWE FOR BB E T
trade receivables, net (5,397) - (5,397)
Provision for impairment loss on GFEREBBEREFE
inventories, net (6,111) - (6,111)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHE AR 2R T - 50 50
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8 oHESR (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) Hipn BEH ()
For the year ended 31 March 2017 AE017F3ANALFE
Strategic
Sale of pearls investment
and jewellery and financial
products services Total
HEPHK K KR E R
KREEM B 7% AR 75 HEt
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET THETT
Amounts included in the measure of T E 7 B E1E N D 284 E
segment loss and segment assets Fist AZ &8
Additions to property, plant and NEWME  BEREE
equipment 3,350 = 3,350
Depreciation of property, plant M BMERSEIITE
and equipment (2,442) - (2,442)
Loss on disposals of property, plant &Y - E K& 2 58
and equipment (183) - (183)
Fair value loss on financial assets at ~ IEAFEFTABZEKZ
fair value through profit or loss TREEZATFEEE - (1,356) (1,356)
Provision for impairment loss on FEWEFUREEERE  F5
trade receivables, net (1,195) - (1,195)
Reversal of provision for impairment 17 & BB BB & #H & B - 55
loss on inventories, net 10,566 = 10,566
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8 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8 HMER (&)
Geographical Information HEER
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC, United States of REEFZRES B EFESRE R
America and Europe. The Group's revenue from external customers BUMAS & - ARE BRI EFTEHE 5 2 2R B
based on the locations of operations and information about its non- HINEEZWHFERIREMEE D 2 IERS
current assets by geographical location are detailed below: BEZEHFIWMT
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets*
REEHIIEF z2WE FRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET AT FExT FAT
North America’ JEZEM?
— USA —3% 70,254 84,974 - =
- Others —HAth 2,093 2,346 - =
Europe BOM
— Germany —= 29,906 33,644 - =
— ltaly —BAH 1,592 6,638 = =
- Others —HAth 7,445 10,782 - =
Hong Kong %5 27,403 28,139 2,931 3,539
Asian countries (excluding TMBER (TBE
Hong Kong and Korea) HERER)
- PRC — 23,297 21,590 1,174 2,156
- Japan —BR 15,452 10,695 = =
- Others —HAth 3,428 7,558 - =
Others Hit 6,487 5,866 - =
187,357 212,232 4,105 5,695
@ Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and financial assets. & FRBDEETBIEEERIBEEERCREE -
The figures of non-current assets disclosed in 2017 annual report excluded R20V7FFREBRBZIIENDEERFTERE
deferred tax assets only. BRLEHBEE -
¢ Revenue from the transactions with one individual customer amounted to & HZE2018F3A31BIEFE  B—R2ENEFRS
approximately HK$29,664,000 (2017: HK$42,161,000) which represented more Z WA 49 529,664,000 T (20174F 42,161,000
than 10% of total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018. T0) AR AREE AR A10%A L o B PR ER
The customer is situated in the United States of America (the “USA"), the BRERE ([EE])  NFE EE%.EEZMU\
revenue generated from the USA during the year amounted to approximately #9 470,013,000/ 7T (20174F : 84,974,000/ 7T ) °
HK$70,013,000 (2017: HK$84,974,000). These figures were attributable to North LHTHHEDHRRKREERD B2 RN
America region of the sales of pearls and jewellery products segment. % 15 °
Certain comparative figures of segment information have been DEERZE THRBFEER D ALUR

reclassified to conform with current year's presentation. BARFEE 22
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9 OTHER GAIN - NET AND GAIN ON DISPOSAL 9 HiaA-FHEEKHE—ENE
OF A SUBSIDIARY NCIbE
(a) Other gain - net (a) HtbaF-—F5E
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Exchange gain/(loss) BE 5 s A (E51R) 823 (197)
Translation gain released on FEEE — BB A B A B RS R
deregistration of bR 2 M i A
PRC operation of a subsidiary - 668
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE - BE ME&EEE
plant and equipment (39) (183)
Others HAh (60) 8
724 296
(b) Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (b) HE—EKEQR=EF

On 29 March 2018, the Group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party (the “Purchaser”), pursuant
to which the Group conditionally agreed to sell and the
Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire the entire equity
interest of Huge Mind Investment Limited (‘Huge Mind"),
being the wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, at a total
consideration of HK$7,000,000 which was determined with
reference to their financial positions as at 29 March 2018. The
disposal was completed on 29 March 2018.

R2018F3 8290  AEEE—Z 7
F=F (BRI HE B A
EEERHRELHERESBIKER
BURBERBREER AR ([RR]:
AEBZ22EMNBRAR) Z2ERA
M - BB A&7,000,00078 7T - H TH K
2REHR2018F3 F298 2 B AR T
EEE - HEFBEER2018F3H298 5%
ﬁjzo
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9 OTHER GAIN - NET AND GAIN ON DISPOSAL 9 HiaH - FHERLE—BHNE
OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) ~ahaA (&)
(b) Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (b) HE—FEMHBRIREF
The assets and liabilities of Huge Mind at the disposal date are ZEREERMzEERBERERLN
disclosed as below: N
Year ended
31 March 2018
B Z2018F
3A3MALEE
HK$’000
FET
Net assets disposed of: FrE & EFE:
Loans and interest receivables FEWE S R F B 8,362
Deposits and prepayments e RIENFIE 38
Cash and bank balances BRe MIRTTHE R 27
Other payables and accruals Hth fE T BR SR FE 5T & (1,477)
6,950
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —FEME A& 25T 50
Total consideration BR(E 7,000
Satisfied by: ATRB) A
Cash BR& 2,000
Promissory note (Note) EHRT (K7 5,000
7,000
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash FHLE—FNBEARZRE R
equivalents in respect of the disposal of a ZRBERANFEITAT :
subsidiary is as follows:
Cash consideration RERE 2,000
Cash and bank balances disposed of HE 2 RE RIRITAER (27)
1,973
Note:  As at 31 March 2018, the above consideration receivable was included KtaE . 1201883 A31H » LB (B ALZE
in other receivables in the consolidated statement of financial position. B RS tR 50 3% R 0 L At P UK BR R o TBZR BE AR
No interest is payable on the promissory note, and the balance was fully HEBAAE - BERER2018F6A21
settled on 21 June 2018. HABEE T -
The directors of the Company considers that it is expected to RRREZEFRA B EER—FA
be recovered within one year. The fair value is not materially KE A FEEEREBELEERNE

different from its carrying amount. £o
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10 FREFBHRAIEIR

2018 2017
HK$’'000 HKS$'000
FHERT FHET
Costs of inventories sold BHEFERAR 105,565 142,922
Employee benefit expenses (including EERMHAZ (RIEESME)
directors' emoluments) (Note 11) (FFaET) 44,422 56,340
Auditor's remuneration 1% BRI BN &
— Audit services —BAZ R 1,300 3,300
— Non-audit services — TR 284 378
Depreciation of property, plant and M BB R ITE (Fizk5)
equipment (Note 15) 2,196 2442
Provision for impairment EWE R REEE
loss on trade receivables, net* (Note 20) B 38 (MFsE20) 5,397 1,195
Provision for/(reversal of ) impairment loss BTEZRERBBEE(BE)
on inventories, net* R 6,111 (10,566)
Operating lease payments, gross KEHENR - B 15,564 15,774
Less: operating lease income on WD HEmE s REHERA
sub-leased premises (3,823) (2,987)
Operating lease payments, net KERENK FEE 11,741 12,787
Exhibition expenses REMRAX 5,901 5,008
Commission expenses BeRx 65 1,175

The amount was included in the “administrative expenses” in the consolidated

income statement.

ZeRBeARaRERZ [TTHAX]A-

The amount was included in the “cost of sales” in the consolidated income 0 ZEBOTAGRERERZ [HEKRA] A -
statement.
11 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 1 EERAMAX (BREEHE)
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET AT
Salaries, wages and other benefits Hie  TENEMBER 40,474 50,820
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BESKRA-EREERTE R
and social security costs & RE KA 3,948 5,520
44,422 56,340
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11 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 11
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group for
the year include 3 existing directors and 1 resigned director (2017:
2 resigned directors) of the Company whose emoluments are set
out in note 34 below. The emolument of the remaining 1 (2017:
5 individuals including 2 resigned directors who had remained as
employees of the Group) individual is as follows:

E%Eﬂﬁi(@%%%%ﬁ)
IIE

TEREHMAL
FR-AEEREZRSFMATREARARD
AREREEERIBEBETES (2017F 12
ZEBAES) HEZMESEN T XH=E
34 HERM1H A+ (20174 - 52 A A - B 352
LEIEAEEEEZRAES) 2 m
T

non-director

FEE

2018 2017

HK$’'000 HKS$'000

FHET T

Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe IERHMEAR 2,000 4324
Pension costs — defined contribution plans B Z & KA —F B EHKETEI X

and social security costs A IRER AN 18 75

2,018 4,399

Except for the director remuneration disclosed in Note 34, the
number of the remaining 1 (2017: 5) individual whose remuneration
fell within the following bands is as follows:

BRFEARE 2 EEH SN BR TS
BIEE 2 £ #4145 (20175 1 58) AL A
T

Number of employees

EE A=
2018 2017
HK$500,000 — HK$ 1,000,000 500,000/ 7T 2 1,000,00078 7T = 4
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017 7T 2 2,500,00078 7T 1 =

During the year ended 31 March 2018, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the five highest paid individuals, including directors, as
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2017: nil).

REZE2018F3A31HILFE - AEBIHEH
hEaEETFMAL (BEESE) AR
© EARS|IE AR INAREE R 2 48
Ehk BERLfE(E (20174 1 48) ©
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 12 FIEHix (ER)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEx FETT
Current tax: RV HAR I8 -
Hong Kong profits tax BTG 1,319 157
PRC corporate income tax RS - 4
1,319 161
Under/(over)-provision in prior years: BAEFEREBIR, (BREEE):
Hong Kong profits tax BEREFEH - 891
PRC corporate income tax RS - (1,537)
- (646)
Deferred: AT -
Net (credit)/charge for current year AEE (ER) HXF8E
(Note 16) (KtzE16) (87) 89
Income tax expense/(credit) FrefiFs,/ (Ex) 1,232 (396)
Hong Kong profits tax EBFEHR
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2017 BENERIBBAREE 2 A ERB R
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. FIR T Z16.5% (20175 1 165% ) 5T & o
PRC corporate income tax RE b EREH
In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income tax laws, RIERAEREEMRETEE RO REE
regulations and implementation guidance notes, subsidiaries in the ¥E5|5HHE - PRI B A R ZBIRF REETER
PRC are subject to the PRC corporate income tax rate at 25% of the 08 F125% .2 Tt 2 (20174 : 25% ) 4R

estimated assessable profits during the year (2017: 25%). MG -
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12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/CREDIT (CONTINUED) 12

Withholding tax on distributed/undistributed
profits

The PRC tax law imposes a withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced
by a tax treaty, for dividends distributed by PRC subsidiaries to
its immediate holding company outside the PRC for earnings
generated beginning on 1 January 2008.

The amount of taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before income tax as follows:

FrEwipx, (E%) (#)
BRIk, R2IKEF 2 AN

200851 H1H R - BRIEBIBRRIF A T
LA A+ 75 Bl BB A R R R BB B /A A
EXBFNMEERBERIEEZERAT D
T AR B R BN 1 0%TEHIFR ©

R R IARX R 1S BB IR 2 HE
T

2018 2017
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHERT AT
Loss before income tax bR TS B AT & 18 (128,555) (24,282)
Tax calculated at domestic income tax rate  JRZANHBFT1S R B % 16.5% (20174F :
of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) 16.5% ) 5t H 2 Hi T8 (21,211) (4,007)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries RE A RS ARE R & 2 B A R [E
operating in other jurisdictions ME 2B (1,552) (1,000)
Tax effect of: D%
Expenses that are not deductible for AR 2 A
tax purpose 21,483 1,354
Income not subject to tax BARTZ A (550) (123)
Tax losses not recognised im) AR SR 2 Bl TE BT 1R 3,918 4,741
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised AR R ER 2 T IEEE
previously (556) (631)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBEREE - (646)
Others H A (300) (84)
Income tax expense/(credit) FisRimx,/ (E&) 1,232 (396)
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LOSS PER SHARE 13 BREE
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable to TR EARNEE TIRA R R IR E EGEER
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of NERNEBITEBRR 2 METHEEE-

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2018 2017
Loss attributable to equity holders of AR EGEE (FET)
the Company (HK$'000) (129,787) (23,886)
Weighted average number of ordinary HABEBREREEMAZ
shares for the purpose of calculating T E (FR)
basic loss per share (thousands) 337,254 319,521
Basic loss per share (HK cents per share) FRREREE (FRRABW) (38.48) (7.48)
No dilutive effect to the loss per share as there were no potential HAREZE2018F3A3 AL FEHMEEED
ordinary shares in issue for the years ended 31 March 2018 (2017: BATEBR 20174 - &) - M BB TRE
Nil). BRELBERE-
DIVIDEND 14 KRR
The directors do not recommend any payment of dividend in EETEZMNEZ2018F3A31H L FEIK

respect of the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil). FHERREE (20174 : &) o
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15 W% BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
HEEF Bl -RB
£ WERES B AE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAET TAT FTHT FHL
At 1 April 2016 120165481 B
Cost BE 2,976 26,835 1244 433 31,488
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (1,998) (23,132) (1,045) (238) (26413)
978 3,703 199 195 5,075
Year ended 31 March 2017 BZ2017F3831HLFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 978 3,703 199 195 5,075
Additions NE - 897 3 2,650 3,550
Disposals (Note 31) HE (k) = (149) (48) 47) (244)
Depreciation (Note 10) & (KiE0) (451) (1,172) (148) 671) (2442)
Exchange differences fEN =% (13) (208) - (23) (244)
Closing net book amount FREMSE 514 3,071 6 2,104 5,695
At 31 March 2017 R2017%3831H
Cost B AR 2,053 22,953 650 2,986 28,642
Accumulated depreciation REME (1,539) (19,882) (644) (882) (22,947)
514 3,071 6 2,104 5,695
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15 3% BEK&E (&)

(CONTINUED)
Furniture,
Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor
improvements machinery  equipment vehicles Total
HERTF B £ER
£ BERES R AE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THER TR THER TR
Year ended 31 March 2018 HZ2018F3831HILEE
Opening net book amount FREER 514 3,071 6 2,104 5,695
Additions NE 382 14 257 - 653
Disposals (Note 31) HE (PiFEE31) - (25) (34) = (59)
Depreciation (Note 10) & (Fizo) (529) (947) (51) (669) (2,196)
Exchange differences EHER - 12 - - 12
Closing net book amount FRREFE 367 2,125 178 1,435 4,105
At 31 March 2018 R201853A31H
Cost R 2,435 22,531 683 2,986 28,635
Accumulated depreciation ZEtE (2,068) (20,406) (505) (1,551) (24,530)
367 2,125 178 1,435 4,105




146 Affluent Partners Holdings Limited $2E1Z R G R A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

iR PSR M EE (48)

16 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The followings are the major deferred income tax assets recognised
by the Group and movements thereon during the year ended 31

16

EEBRAEE

REBREE2018F3A3B IEFERRLZ

TBREMSHEEREZHWT -

March 2018.
Timing
differences
arising Unrealised
from tax profit in
depreciation inventories Total
RIEFE
EEZEE REE
=5 FEEA #at
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FHETT FATT FHET
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4 818 41 (1,131) (1,090)
Net (credit)/charge to consolidated (FFAN) /HMBERE k=R FE
income statement (Note 12) (HI5E12) (113) 202 89
At 31 March 2017 7201753 A31H (72) (929) (1,001)
Net (credit)/charge to consolidated (5t AN) /Makre k=R F8E
income statement (Note 12) (HI5E12) (132) 45 (87)
At 31 March 2018 720183 H31H (204) (884) (1,088)

At 31 March 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$47,588,000 (2017: HK$28,065,000) available for offsetting
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
with respect to the total unutilised tax losses of approximately
HK$47,588,000 (2017: HK$28,065,000) due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. Tax losses of approximately HK$47,588,000

(2017: HK$28,065,000) have no expiry dates.

As discussed in Note 12, withholding tax would be payable on the
unremitted retained earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries. The PRC
subsidiaries have been incurring losses since commencement of
operation and there was no distributable retained earnings as at 31

March 2018 (2017: Nil).

7R2018%3 A31 8 » AN & B B #147,588,0007%
7T (20174F : 28,065,000/ 7T ) 0] F £ 1 $8 &

g Az REFARIBEE - AR EE AR
IRk FI 2RO - B £ 5 A 2k £947,588,000
77T (20174 1 28,065,000 JT) 2 A& B A 4
HEIBAERRRLCHBEE - HEBEY
47,588,000 7T (20174F : 28,065,000/ 7T ) I
mEmE -

AN 1 28R AL - ZBAEh S TR BB A )
ZAREERBREN AN 8RS
B REMBAR —HEABE 8RN
201843 A31H I & 7] KRR B & (2017
FoE) e
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

On 18 April 2017, the Group had entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with independent third parties (the “Vendors"), pursuant
to which the Vendors have conditionally agreed to sell and
transfer and the Group agreed to acquire 33% of the entire issued
share capital of Dellos Group Limited and its subsidiaries (‘Dellos
Group”). On 10 May 2017, the Group completed the transaction
and the consideration was satisfied by the payment of the cash
consideration of HK$3,500,000 and the allotment and issue of
19,868,766 consideration shares of the Company in the aggregate
fair value of HK$76,693,000, based on the fair value of each share of
HK$3.86 on 10 May 2017, to the Vendors (Note 26). The aggregate
costs of acquisition of the equity interest in Dellos Group were
approximately HK$80,193,000.

iR M SRR (48)

17 REBEERTANRE

MR2017F4H188 - AEEEBFILE =
(BRI EE R Bt BEAEHIK
HRZHERERE MASEEREWE
Dellos Group Limited & E [t /& 2 7] ([ Dellos
SE ) 22 IPEEITIRA 233% © 1K20174F
5108 - AKEREKZR S MRENRE
RAB 383,500,000/ 7T KR [A & 75 FR 8% & 31T
19,868,766 8 A A AR B 7 (BRIEF 20174
5H108 2 &R AFE386E Tt E  AFE
#FA 576,693,000 78 ) (B 7E26) 2 £ o Ik
8 Dellos = [B] f% 7 2 48 pK 7N 49 /380,193,000/5
e
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17 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 17 REBELNTNRE (§)

At 31 March 2018, the Group had interests in the following 720183 H31H » REER A TEEE A alF
associates, of which the particulars are set forth below: AR FEHVAT

Proportion of
ownership interest and
proportion of
voting power held by

Place of the Group
incorporation/ EEEFENEEA
Name of associate operation ERRBRERELLH Principal activities
BENR AR SRR R 2018 2017 EBEK
Directly held
BEEER
Dellos Group Limited the Cayman Islands 33 N/A  Investment holding
Dellos Group Limited HeiEs NEA REER
Indirectly held
BERE
Natural Spring Global Limited the British Virgin Islands 33 N/A  Investment holding
Natural Spring Global Limited RBRIHES NEA REER
Dellos F&B Co,, Ltd (‘Dellos F&B") Korea 33 N/A  Manufacturing, sale and
distribution of fruit juice and
other beverage products
Dellos F&B Co, Ltd 78 TER & HERDHEETR
(IDellos F&B |) HoAth 88 0 E
Dellos International Limited Hong Kong 33 N/A  Trading of beverage products
Dellos International Limited B TEA BSEHRMESR
The financial reporting dates of the above associates are not FatErE A A 2 B R E A A B AR E R
coterminous with those of the Group, as they have financial years WAER - RABZERE 2 HEEAE

ending 31 December or 30 June. £12H31H=6H308 1k
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

During the course of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Group carried out follow up work with the Dellos Group in relation
to the determination of the Group's share of net assets and profit
or loss of the Dellos Group. During the course of carrying out the
follow up work, the Group was informed by the management
of Dellos Group on 20 June 2018 that Dellos F&B had filed an
application for commencing rehabilitation proceedings (the
“Rehabilitation Proceedings”) with Seoul Rehabilitation Court (the
“Court”) on 13 February 2018 and the Court had approved the
commencement of the Rehabilitation Proceedings on 7 March 2018.

Therefore, the Group sought for legal advice from its legal advisers
in Korea to assess the implications of the Rehabilitation Proceedings
on the Group's interests in the Dellos Group.

The draft rehabilitation plan (‘Rehabilitation Plan”) involves, among
other matters, reduction or exemption of the outstanding debts
owed by Dellos F&B, conversion of all or part of the creditors’ claims
into shares of Dellos F&B and repayment plan for the remaining
debts. The Rehabilitation Plan will be put forward for approval by
the creditors and shareholders of Dellos F&B and the Court on
18 July 2018. Upon obtaining the approvals of the creditors and
shareholders of Dellos F&B and the Court, Dellos F&B will become
subject to the approved Rehabilitation Plan.

iR M SRR (48)

17 REBEERTNRE (&)

MREAREEE ZE2018F38318 IEFE 2
A S HER ZBIRFP  ANEE HEDelloss
EETEABEEARSE S (HDellosk B 2 &
BEFE R RNk EE 2 RE T NETIR
ETIEZBIEF AEER2018F6 208 %
¥EDellosEE B 2 EI2fE ' Dellos F&BE A
201852 A 13E M EBEREAR ([TARR]) 12
REFRBERRF ([E2REF])  B%
BrE 2018 F3 7B M ERIEBN EEREF -

At AEBESKEBRLEZBEEZ AR
E R AHEEEREFE A% B Dellost
BoEmswE-

B ER([EEAE DS R (ES
Eﬁ)ﬁl SRS E8 %2 Dellos F&B4S R IR (818
EE - BEEANZIRBLARELE
Dellos F&BAIAZ 17 LA K 84 NETSHIR KT 2R ©

B EI# 2018457 188 2 X Dellos F&B
ROERE A B IR DA BB LA S5 St o 55 ER
S Dellos FEBfERE A K AR 3R LA K % Br H b
1% » Dellos FRBHG A HE A B ZE AT EIFTIR IR
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17

BTSRRI RE (48)

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Based on the advices from the Group's legal advisers, the Group
considered it is probable that the shareholding of the Group in
Dellos F&B will be diminished. Hence, the directors of the Company
considered that Dellos F&B had ceased to be an associate of the
Group since the date of filing of application for commencing the
Rehabilitation Proceedings and that as a result of the Rehabilitation
Plan, there was no significant value in the Group’s equity interests in
the Dellos Group as (i) the main operating subsidiary in the Dellos
Group prior to the date of filing of application for commencing the
Rehabilitation Proceedings is Dellos F&B; (ii) the shareholding of
Dellos Group in Dellos F&B would likely be very significantly diluted;
(iii) the important decisions of Dellos F&B would require the Court’s
approval; and (iv) there would be no dividend payout during the
rehabilitation period. It is considered highly unlikely that Dellos
Group would bring to the Group any future economic benefits.
Therefore, the entire investments cost of the Group in Dellos Group
of approximately HK$80,193,000 was fully written down as at 31
March 2018 and the resulting loss of approximately HK$80,193,000
was recognised in consolidated profit or loss for the year ended 31
March 2018 and presented as “loss on investments in associates”.

According to the Rehabilitation Plan, the loans made by the Group
to Dellos F&B have been made part of the rehabilitation claims,
with the Group having been regarded as a rehabilitation creditor.
Although the Group, as a rehabilitation creditor, will be able to
obtain recovery of the loans in accordance with the terms of the
Rehabilitation Plan, it is subject to approval by the Court and also
the economic conditions of Dellos F&B. In addition, based on the
latest financial information provided by Dellos F&B, the financial
position of Dellos F&B is net current liabilities. Furthermore, all the
non-financial assets of Dellos F&B were pledged to certain banks
in Korea by reference to the latest published audited financial
statements. The directors of the Company considered that the
likelihood of recovery of the loans and interest receivables owed by
Dellos Group to the Group, whose carrying amount as at 31 March
2018 amounting to approximately HKS$13,871,000 is remote, hence,
except for the amount of interest of approximately HK$345,000
which was subsequently settled on 13 June 2018 the balances are
considered irrecoverable and are fully impaired. Accordingly, an
impairment loss on the loans and interest receivables amounting to
HK$13,871,000 was recognised in consolidated profit or loss for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

17 REBEERTANRE (&)

BEAEELZBERCZER  ~NEERAE
INEZE P Dellos F&BZ AR #E 5 1R Al B & 1k
DoAY ARAREERE BRXEBHEMK
FEEIEFF HHIE @ Dellos F&BE N & A
EFEZBENT AERFEZEHAERN
Dellosts B 2 B I B X EE R E A)
Dellos&E BN IR R BRI B) X2 [+ A H A1
2 E BB B F] ADellos F&B : (i) Dellos
EE R Dellos F&BZ I 1518 A] A5 & IEH K
WE 5% : (iii) Dellos F&BZ B AR TE B &K
& RiVREBRBHRBETSERRKES -
Dellos&E B4 52 /4 #& 15 7~ 0] Rt A 7N £ B A5 2R
E{A] 2R 2R 488 7| 75 o A 1tk - 2K 5 B 7 Dellos
£ 2 2 E01% & A AN £980,193,0008 7T E R
20184F3 A31 H 2SR - MFTEA 2 B4
80,193,000/ 7T E. R &L £20184F3 A31H LEF
EREGEBEERARENA [RBERARZ
wEZEE] -

RIFRE T & A% B [[Dellos FRBIEH 2
EREERERREZ oD mMASKE
ERGAERERA - BEASEE (EAE
BERN) BRESRIEE R 8 2 EKkE
B WEAFSEARMER FAIEE B
IREUR 7 Dellos F&BZ A& AR M » It 4 » 1R 1%
Dellos F&BHE 2 B 3T BRI 15 B £} Dellos F&B
ZHBRABREBEBEFE MIN BER
3 AR T B 2 A BRAZ BT IS $R 3% Dellos F&RBZ FIT
BIEMEECERTHE TERRT - AR
AIEERA WEDellosEBA R KER ~
EWEREFE (ER2018F3A31H 26
E{E#)/413,871,0008 7T ) Z A] RE M & 1+
BRER2018F6A1I3HEREN Z2F B £ 5
#9345,00078 TCBR A1+ A5 BRI AR A7 AT Uk B 37
E2E0RE - ALt - EREE2018F3H31H
IEFEREG A B R ERE R ER
{EE51813,871,00078 7T
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18 CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES

On 10 November 2017, the Group subscribed for certain
convertible loan notes issued by Wonderland (UK) Holdings Limited
("Wonderland (UK)"). The principal amount is GBP3,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$36,050,000) which carries interest
at 6% per annum and payable on the date on which the convertible
loan notes become payable or are redeemed. The maturity date
of the convertible loan notes is on 9 November 2020 and will be
redeemed at 100% of the principal amount.

The convertible loan notes can be converted at any time from the
date the convertible loan notes are fully subscribed and paid up
to the maturity date. Upon the full conversion of the convertible
loan notes, the converted shares will represent 65% of the enlarged
share capital of Wonderland (UK). At any time after the convertible
loan notes are fully subscribed by the Group, full conversion would
be made automatically when the pre-tax audited net profit of
Wonderland (UK) exceeded GBP1,000,000 for the financial year
immediately prior to the maturity date. The convertible loan notes
would become immediately due and payable if Wonderland (UK)
ceased to be the exclusive licensee of a global real estate brand in
England.

Up to the end of the reporting period, the Group has subscribed
for approximately GBP2,599,000 (equivalent to approximately
HKS$27,274,000) convertible loan notes.

Wonderland (UK) is a company incorporated and registered in
England and Wales with limited liability and it is the exclusive
licensee of Sotheby’s International Realty Limited (“SIRL") and is
principally engaged in the operation of realty agency business
in England. In addition, Wonderland (UK) holds the entire equity
interest of SIRL which mainly deals in residential sales, letting,
development sales, investment and international sales in England
and Wales and it currently has approximately 20,000 sales associates.

The unlisted property fund classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Note 24) has appointed SIRL and Wonderland
(UK), acting as real estates agent to assist with the sub-selling of the
apartments in the residential real estate project, and the unlisted
projects fund shall pay the agency fee to SIRL and Wonderland (UK)
in return.

iR M SRR (48)

18 TRREMRERE

72017511 108 » 78 & B 32 B8 Wonderland
(UK) Holdings Limited ( [ Wonderland (UK) | )
BOTZETABRRERZEE -AEHEA
3,500,0002% 8% (48 & 7 936,050,000/ 7T ) -

HIZGFeE 2 F X8 WERARRKRE
HEEKBENSED 2 BEF AT o]
BMREREE 2 H B &20209F11 A998 -

I #5 ¥ 7K < 58 2 100%00E [2] °

THRBREREEN A EEZHRE R
B EHEEIE AR ER N EHE
BMAMBREREEEZ CDEBBRHOEEE
M Wonderland (UK)4E 3 KX f% 28 265% © 7Y
AR EREEEAEEREREBRAE
BN MRABEINBHAN Y REE
Wonderland (UK)Z Bk £ BT 48 28 1% 40 71| 8 18
1,000,000 §% - Bl #§ B &) 7 LA B B34 - fin
Wonderland (UK)S B &R A% B —E 2 3kt E
EmEZBREFIA  AJRREREEE
Bl 51| B % FE 4+ o

RS EIR - AR E B 28 492,599,000
FEE R #4927,274,00058 7T ) 27 A] #A RS B 53X

o

= W

HE S mf

T

N

Wonderland (UK)A& — B 50 5 4% 38 M 8k /R A
A KB 2 AR AR - I ASotheby's
International Realty Limited ([SIRL |) Z &
BEFA BXFEZRNERBRELEF
ERIBETE o It J) » Wonderland (UK)35 A SIRL
(FERARB BB EEEHEE B
HFAEEE RERBBRIHEE  BER#
B #I20000%HEANE) 2 2B IHE -

DEAEERAFEFTABSRZIELETY
¥ H D (M5E24) B & ESIRLE Wonderland
UKEAHEREHEIEEFEEMEIE B
FRETE MIELMPEES B ARSRLE
Wonderland (UK)Z R I2E A -
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18 CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED)

The convertible loan notes are separated into their two components
at initial recognition: the receivable component and the derivative
component.

The fair value of the receivable component at initial recognition
was approximately HK$25,841,000 which is determined based
on the valuation provided by CHFT Advisory and Appraisal Ltd.,
independent professional qualified valuers not connected with the
Group. The effective interest rate of the receivable component is
9% per annum. Subsequent to initial recognition, the receivable
component is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method and the derivative component is carried at fair value.

The convertible loan notes are recognised as follows:

18 RBRERFERE (F)

A AR B AR A ) S RS 5 AT A D
5 MRS RATHE T AR -

FEWBR KA D N B RFERR 2 A FERK
25,841,00078 7T, » L JOAR R S AN 6% [ 3P B8 2
ZEUEXABREEMEDEANGEHE
RARREZEEERE - BUREFBOZE
BREEM R 9% - N BERFERE - RUCSRH
D E A BRRA R R HR AR MOTE
TARSRAFETR.

AR EREEERLT

Receivable Derivative
component component Total
EBRERTS TEIZARS FTET
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FET FET
Subscriptions R 25,841 1,433 27,274
Effective interest income BRI S HA 859 = 859

Fair value loss recognised in REZFBRZ AT EBRE

profit or loss - (607) (607)
Interest receivable JE UL F) B (524) - (524)
Exchange differences & i =& 1,291 51 1,342
At 31 March 2018 7201853 H31H 27,467 877 28,344

The fair value of the derivative component is level 3 fair value
measurement. There is no transfer under the fair value hierarchy
classification for the year ended 31 March 2018.

PTETERBOZAFEAERAFEBEFEZF
3 RELE2018F3A3IB ILFEE AT EE
W FBTE D R
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18 CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (CONTINUED)

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the
convertible loan notes are as follows:

(i) Valuation of receivable component

At initial recognition, the fair value of the receivable
component was calculated based on the present value
of contractually determined stream of future cash flows
discounted at the required yield, which was determined with
reference to the credit risk of the convertible note issuer and
maturity term. The effective interest rate of the receivable
component is 9% per annum.

(ii) Valuation of derivative component
The derivative component was measured at fair value using
the Black-Scholes model with Trinomial Tree method, at initial
recognition and at the end of each subsequent reporting
period. The inputs into the model as at 31 March 2018 were as
follows:

Enterprise value of Wonderland (UK)

Conversion ratio B R
Volatility S g

Time to maturity I HARE PR
Risk-free rate 5 2 B ) R

The key significant unobservable inputs to determine the
fair value of the derivative component are the enterprise
value and expected volatility. A higher enterprise value and
expected volatility used in the valuation would result in an
increase in the fair value of the derivative component, and
vice versa.

The convertible loan notes are denominated in GBP as at 31
March 2018.

iR M SRR (48)

18 TRKRERRE (&)

ERRAREERRREENZTERR

R :
(i) EEWERMERD M4 ME

(ii)

Wonderland (UK)Z 1 % (BB

RERERR  ERERTS>HAF
BERBEAVETNARRESRELR
TEW S EPFEMIBETE  E KR
AR ER T AGERRR LR
i 7E o ME U BR FR 3B 0 & B B 4 | &
£59% ©

PTET RIS HNHE
PTETEX»RBERERRNSER
ME L RFEAM N T TR ETE
AR = XESEE A FE = 12018
F3A318  ZEXANL2EHAT :

GBP2,516,0005% §%
65%

36%

2.62 years
0.839%

BEMETAFOAFEZEIEZEK
THER2HACXEERERK
fEeEERRBZEEBERERK
B EASERMTET AR 2 AFE
B RZIFA

20183318 AT AR B R EHE A
HEEHE -
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19 INVENTORIES 19 78
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Raw materials R A7 % 9,727 10,864
Work in progress E& G 2,479 2,297
Finished goods X o 38,980 53,500
51,186 66,661

The provison for impairment loss on inventories is generally made
for those inventories aged over 180 days with no subsequent sales
while the reversal of provision for impairment loss on inventories is
only recognised for those inventories which are sold subsequently

with the prices higher than the carrying amounts.

As at 31 March 2018, certain inventories with original cost which
amounted to approximately HK$113,916,000 (2017: HK$100,326,000)
were stated at net realisable value of approximately HK$27,348,000
(2017: approixmately HK$19,869,000).

20183 A31H

19,869,000/ 7. ) %11 BR °

12 =h

—RHMERER R180R A LRI MERHE 2
ZEFEFHEEREBRRE  MiFERE
BEEEANERERESREEEZER
EHZREFEER -

B TR A 4)113,916,000
7 7T (20174F £ 100,326,000/ 7T ) 2 F B 1%
A] 58 I8 SR (H 4927,348,00078 7T (20174 : 49

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 20 BERERKREMEWRERER &%
AND PREPAYMENTS SEERNES:]
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTHET FHET
Trade receivables (Note a) FEMWE R (Ff5Ea) 37,392 59,357
Other receivables, deposits and H g RS e RIE IR
prepayments (Note b) (MI3ED) 38,324 15,102
Loans to a third party (Note c) mM—BE=FEHER (H5Ec) - 12,800
75,716 87,259
Less: Non-current portion B BB ER D
Other receivables, deposits and HEW RS e RIE IR
prepayments (Note b) (MI3ED) (23,505) (3,728)
Loans to a third party (Note c) mM—BE=ZFEEER (HEc) - (7,800)
(23,505) (11,528)
52,211 75,731
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 20 EWERKREMEWERER &
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) RFENRE (F)

Notes:

(a)

B 5 -
Trade receivables (@) ERER
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHIT
Trade receivables — gross FEW & R —4aFE 55,527 72,095
Less: provision for impairment loss on R SR E BB S
trade receivables (18,135) (12,738)
Trade receivables — net e E R —F 5 37,392 59,357
The Group generally grants a credit period of 30 days to 120 days to its BIEBTEEBHNYZEBREZEE BERCELK
customers, according to industry practice together with consideration of YED  AEE-RAEZTSRE30HE12082
their credibility, repayment history and years of establishment. The carrying EEH-ERERREMEKERRZREEER
amounts of the trade and other receivables approximate their fair values as AFEEE  REAAZFIREHKASEZ S0
these financial assets, which are measured at amortised cost, are expected to be BEBHENR —FAKEZ -
received within one year.
At each balance sheet date, the recoverability of the Group's trade receivables REEER  AEFRBEREF 2 B E ZKAT
due from individual customers are assessed based on the credit history, WEIETIRIERE 2 5Bk B EN MR
subsequent settlements and ageing analysis of its customers, and current DA K B BT R a4 o 435 R E B Th AR e

market conditions. Consequently, specific impairment provision is recognised. FER o
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group has made full provision for all receivables when the receivables are
long outstanding. When the Group has determined that such balances are not
recoverable, in which case the impairment loss is directly written off against the

corresponding trade receivables.

Movements in the provision for impairment loss on trade receivables are as

follows:

20

BURERKHEMERERR &

REMNSFIE (&)

et : (&)

(a)

EwaEm (E)

FEYRRR AR IREER  AEERAERUER
RIEHBREE - EAREEE ZFHRT AR
Bl - FEZIE T - BB S 185 B & i S AR
WK

R EFRERE R BB MT -

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

At beginning of the year REA 12,738 11,543
Provision for impairment loss BB R 8,940 2,650
Reversal of provision for impairment loss VEREN SEistad EadE] (3,543) (1,455)
At end of the year RER 18,135 12,738

The provision for impairment loss on trade receivables was generally made
for those receivables that were past due over 90 days with no subsequent
settlement while the reversal of provision for impairment loss on trade
receivables was only recognised for those receivables which were subsequently

settled.

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off, when

there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

— Rt BRI 00 B e F £ EAR (B 2 X B R
RARIEL EIRE R R EE B BERER
BN 2 ZE R R IER R E S 2R EER
BB -

BRPATFWOBENR SR S ABRBEREZCHE
—ARE AR
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 20 EWERKREMEWERER &
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) RIFEMARIE (&)
Notes: (Continued) ftsE: (48)
(a)  Trade receivables (Continued) (a) WG (&)

EUREFRNHEBARBERAR KRR

An ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of provision, as at the reporting

date, based on invoice dates, is as follows:

(HIBRBM) T -

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

0t 60 days 0Z60H 18,381 26,887
61 to 120 days 6121208 6,984 11,598
121 to 180 days 121Z180H 3,240 9,233
181 t0 365 days 18125365 H 8,523 7,997
Over 365 days 3658 AL 264 3642
37,392 59,357

An ageing analysis of these trade receivables, net of provision, as at the

reporting date, based on due dates, is as follows:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Neither past due nor impaired BE 58 FR IR R ORU (B 12,666 13,922
1 to 60 days past due #HER ZE60H 14,380 26,579
61 to 120 days past due mHl61 21208 3,018 7,054
121 to 180 days past due B HEA121E180H 2,166 3,913
181 to 365 days past due #HER181%365H 4,898 5,633
Over 365 days past due mHA365H A £ 264 2,256
37,392 59,357

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of

customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

B 48 180 B I R (B 2 8 M BR K 7D BRI A 5 8

R BZREZTPAR-
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]

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 20 BEWERREMEWERR &
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) RFEMNSRKE (F)
Notes: (Continued) MisE: (&)
(@) Trade receivables (Continued) (a) WSk (&)

7201853 318 - & W & 5K 4924,726,0007 7T
(20174F : 45,435,000 7T ) 7% B B HA B KRR E © %
ERWERRZEBURPAR  MESE T
BRSNS REBELR EEERGEH
BRZEERELRERE REAZSEKER
FEEERWESASE  BZSE/TNRER
B e

As of 31 March 2018, trade receivables of approximately HK$24,726,000 (2017:
HK$45,435,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. Based
on past experience, management believes that no impairment provision is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality of these receivables and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable.

201853 A31H » FE U E X 4918,135,0005% 7T
(20174F : 12,738,000/ 7T ) A E RE K E 2 HET1R
B4 o ERIRE 2 FEURBR 3N = B HE R TR Z 50

As of 31 March 2018, trade receivables of approximately HK$18,135,000 (2017:
HK$12,738,000) were impaired and fully provided for. The individually impaired

receivables mainly relate to customers which are in unexpectedly difficult

economic situations. The ageing analysis of these receivables is as follows: KERSEZBEPER - ZE KRR RO
AR

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
61 to 120 days past due B HA61Z120H 297 1,000
121 to 180 days past due #HEA121%2180H 40 1,485
181 to 365 days past due #HA181%365H 1,972 5,031
Over 365 days past due i HEA365 A A | 15,826 5222
18,135 12,738

The Group did not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements

in respect of trade receivables that are past due but not impaired.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are denominated in the

following currencies:

AEE I & BB HERREZ B E RS

=

BEAERREERREMEETTR-

REE 2 BRERZ REETIA TGS

1B :

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Hong Kong dollar #IT 2,160 9,250
Renminbi AR 53 3,051
United States dollar =TT 35,155 46,076
Others Hity 24 980
37,392 59,357
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

iR M SRR (48)

20 EWERREMEWERNR BE
REMAFIE (&)

fisE: (&)

(b) EMEKRM BERANTKE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHTT
Other receivables H b FEURBR X 4,687 4831
Deposits Re 25,702 45582
Prepayments TaftFRIE 7,935 5,689
38,324 15,102
Less: Non-current portion R IETENED
Other receivables H A YRR (524) =
Prepayments (Note i) FEf R (B (2,981) (3,728)
Deposits (Note ii) e (MIEii) (20,000) -
(23,505) (3,728)
Current portion mENE D 14,819 11,374
Notes: P&
[0) Balance mainly represented prepayments for the IT system i) ZEREBIEEET2018F3A3IAIEF

maintenance, onsite technical support and IT advisory services which
would be amortised over five years from commencement in the year

ended 31 March 2018.

(if) On 23 March 2018, the Group had entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, Mr. Chiu Ngai Hung (the
“Vendor”’), pursuant to which the Vendor has conditionally agreed
to sell and transfer and the Group agreed to acquire and accept the
entire issued share capital of Summit Pacific Group Limited ("Summit
Pacific’) at the consideration of not less than HK$70,000,000, which
would be satisfied by cash. On the same date, the deposit in the
amount of HK$20,000,000 was paid to the Vendor upon the execution
of and in accordance with the terms of the agreement, which should
be entirely refundable to the Group upon the written request to the
Vendor prior to the completion only if the Vendor failed or is unable to
discharge any of its obligation under the agreement. Summit Pacific
is a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability and it is
principally engaged in property investment in Hong Kong. Details of
the transaction were set out in the Company's announcement dated 23
March 2018. The transaction has not been completed up to the date of

this report.

(i)

ERIBAFARE B R R #E
T3 Bl S 5 R A A RHR B IR 75 2 TR
R

M2018F3 230  AEBHE—EBUE=
PR E (BRI EEHH
Bt ZEHFERGHERELE REZEM
AEE D R E U EE K 5 W Summit Pacific
Group Limited ([ Summit Pacific ] ) 2 &
BEBEITRA KB/ D 570,000,000
B HERAReEN - RAEB RE
Y ZEETRBEEGRAE L MRS
20,000,000/ 7T + H FE{E AT A B /7 R AE kA&
ERITHERZBBETZEMEEZE
AT RTRAIME S ELEEmERE 2
HUR B AN E [ o Summit Pacific — B 5
BRZESHEMKIZBERAR  HEXZE
REBREYERE R P2 FHBHRAE
ARIAHA2018F3A23AZ ARG - EEAR
HERH ZR P AT
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1 =5 xh | 4
20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 20 BWERREMEBWRERR RS
=h =
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) RFEMNSFIE (&)
Notes: (Continued) B 5E: (48)
(b)  Other receivables, deposits and prepayments (Continued) (b) HEWERR REREAKE(E)
The carrying amounts of other receivables, deposits and prepayments H YRR e RENRIEZREEEE A
approximate their fair values and are denominated in the following currencies: TERE  WRA T EEEHE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Hong Kong dollars BIT 37,431 13,574
Renminbi AR 363 399
United States dollars ETT 6 1,129
Great Britain Pound % 524 -
38,324 15,102
(c) Loans to a third party (c) M—BE=ZAEHZER
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Non-current Portion ERB D - 7,800
Current Portion mENE D = 5,000
Total #Et - 12,800
The loans to a third party company as at 31 March 2017 related to loans 201743 A318  ME =7 R AEH 2 B ER
to Dellos Group (Note 17) which were interest bearing at 5% per annum, Dellostse E{EH 2 B3R (M eE17) B RS 58I1%
unsecured and the carrying value approximate its fair value. Included in FRFK50aT L2 AEKTBRMELEEQATER
the loans consist of HK$7,800,000 that is denominated in the United States o BB HE A 3£ T ET {E 27,800,00078 7T - B K
dollar, the term of the loan is two years of which the balance outstanding as HR BMF - HhR2017F3A31 B WA EEZE
at 31 March 2017 is repayable over one year. The remaining HK$5,000,000 is BRI — F 1R HIE - #2 75,000,000/ 7T A B T AT
denominated in Hong Kong dollar and are repayable within one year. Following BIWAER—FRER - RAEE TR EZ AR
the completion of the acquisition of 33% of the entered issued share capital of Z2EBBBEITIRAN Z33%1% - 12018F3A31H Z
this company by the Group, the outstanding balances as at 31 March 2018 were MABBEHREFT A TREE QBEL 28R

included in “loans to associates” (Note 17). (ME5E17) ©
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 RERERBES

2018 2017

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FHET T T

Bank balances and cash SRITHBRNIRE 54,686 54,342

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates.

The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate
their fair values. The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents
are denominated in the following currencies:

RITASEEBARTERMNER 2 FBHH X

FREUKI 2.

RehZFRREe 2 REERENFERE -
RehZFRRE ZFREBEATIIEEHE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Hong Kong dollar PETT 26,369 35,089
Renminbi AREE 1,478 5,583
United States dollar eV 25,994 11,481
Others HA 845 2,189
54,686 54,342

The conversion of RMB-denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject
to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

BIAANRBEHE 2 B8R 1R RINEL 5 1k
FUSNEHEZRITEB LB EHPE -
7R3 ST P B BLOME & Bl R 2 HHR AR

AR R o
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS

22 ENERREMENERR BW

RECEIVED, AND ACCRUALS RERETERA
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET T T
Trade payables FETE K 5,677 8,543
Accrued payroll and employee benefits JE 51357 B X% & & A2 A 6,375 6,427
Other payables and other accruals B EABRR N EMETE R 4,930 7,582
Deposits received Bz E 578 601
17,560 23,153

RBEBH BNERRIEERER AR

An ageing analysis of trade payables, as at the reporting date, based
on invoice dates, is as follows:

DR :

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

0 to 60 days 0Z260H 5,189 6,958
61 to 120 days 612120H 415 145
More than 120 days tBiE120H8 73 1,440
5,677 8,543

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables, deposits received
and accruals approximate their fair values, and are denominated in

RN EREEMEMNRR  Edine & E
EREEEEENTERS LATIE

the following currencies: BEETE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHExT FAET
Hong Kong dollar PETT 10,968 15,916
Renminbi AR 3,558 3,979
United States dollar ETT 2,974 3,240
Others HAh 60 18
17,560 23,153
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23 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

iR M SRR (48)

23 BRERKRAE

2018 2017

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FHET T T

Loans to individuals mERATIREZER - 45,000
Interest receivables JEURFI B, = 1,878
- 46,878

Less: impairment loss recognised B BHEREEEE - =
- 46,878

All loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The loans
receivable carry effective interest rate ranging from 18% to 19%
per annum as at 31 March 2017. A maturity profile of the loans
receivable (net of impairment loss recognised, if any) at 31 March
2017, based on the maturity date is as follows:

FrBEFIILAAB AT E - R20175F3 4318 -

EUWE R 2 BRFF RN F18%E19% ° A
201793 A318 R BB AE » 2 EIE R
(MEBRERRBESBE 0F)E BB RE
—F:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHExT FHTT
Current assets mENEE
Mature within one year —F KRR = 46,878

At 31 March 2017, the loans to customers were unsecured personal
loans and not subject to any personal guarantee.

In determining the recoverability of the loans receivable, the Group
considers any change in the credit quality of the loans receivables
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.
The management has assessed the loans and interest receivables
and believes that no impairment provision is necessary in respect of
these balances.

The directors of the Company considered that the carrying amounts
of loans and interest receivable recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

R2017F3 8318 ARPRHZERREE
HEAERABBEMEARER-

REEREERZ TRE LR AEEEE
BEBRUERHRTRLEERNESE
BEAHEEERZENEH FEEECH
BB ER LN B Y BEZ SRR BAE
HORERE A -

ARREBERR  WEHERAGT ALRE M
WER BB ERENEREEEE A FE
HE -
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24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

24 BRNFEHFABRSERZEHEE

PROFIT OR LOSS
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHExT T T
Equity securities classified as held for trading D3B8 AIFIEE B IR E 2R AE
investments:
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong BB LETRAES (Hsta)
(Note a) - 29,154
Financial assets designated at fair value BEAEATEFTABRRIESHE
through profit or loss (Note by: Z= (fsEb)
Unlisted investment fund (Note c) FEEMTERS (MIFEc) - 13,620
Unlisted property fund (Note d) JEEMWERES (MIFEd) 38,000 =
38,000 42,774

Notes:

@)

Fair values of listed securities were determined with reference to quoted market
closing price. The market price of the listed securities has been fluctuating
during the year, the Group recognised the realised loss of approximately

HK$8,590,000 (2017: Nil) as a result of disposals.

The investments are managed and their performance are evaluated on a fair
value basis in accordance with the Group's investment strategy hence the
Group designated the investments as financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss.

The fair value of the investment in unlisted fund was determined by reference
to the NAV of the fund, which was determined as at the close of business in
the relevant market or markets on each reporting date. The NAV was calculated
based on the value of the fund's assets and/or investments quoted, listed,
traded or dealt on any stock exchange, commodities exchange or futures made
by reference to the exchange close price on the principal stock exchange for
such investments as at the close of business in such place on the reporting date
as of which such calculation was to be made, minus the value of the fund's

liabilities on the reporting date.

The Group had placed redemption notice of the unlisted investment fund in
August 2017 and the redemption was completed in October 2017. The realised

loss of approximately HK$2,679,000 was recognised upon the redemption.

GEE

MEHFZATFHELEMSARKTEETE -
EMBEHFZTERAEE—BERE - ANEEE
TR S B IEFTE N 2 B #35 E518498,590,000
BT (20174 - 4E) »

BRRERBASEZRERBETER
TR - it

WIARFERERE &
BREEEERRATEHABRERZER
FLTEEZREZAFENZEZESZ

BEFEET MzAEFEESREBHR
HEMS 2 EXRRERNEE -EEFE
TRBES 2 BEBERIRERMELR
S ERR AP ERZAME - LT
BARGzREZEBE(DE2EERK
ENEH AR E 2 RS AR ZEE %
BREAREREBFSFZHM R HEMHE
HEENHE ARz AEEE)FE-

AREBDR2017F8A K HEMIELTIREE
& ZEREM  MERE MK201794108 7K °
FAHE B 16 HE R B B 3R E5 18 492,679,000/ T ©
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24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

On 23 February 2018, the Group acquired 50%, representing approximately
24,950,000 non-redeemable, non-voting participating shares of the unlisted
property fund which was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The fair value of

the unlisted property fund as at 31 March 2018 is approximately HK$38,000,000.

The investment objective of the unlisted property fund is to achieve capital
appreciation through investing its assets available for investment in residential

real estate projects in the United Kingdom.

The investment is unlisted and the Group has no power to govern or participate
the financial and operating policies of the investee so as to obtain benefits from
its activities and the directors of the Company designated the unlisted property

fund as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The fair value of the unlisted property fund at initial recognition and the end of
the reporting period was HK$38,000,000 which was determined based on the
valuation provided by GW Financial Advisory Services Limited, independent

professional qualified valuers not connected with the Group.

The fair value of the unlisted property fund is level 3 fair value measurement.
There is no transfer under the fair value hierarchy classification for the year

ended 31 March 2018.

During the year, the unlisted property fund paid the management fee
of approximately HK$253,000 (2017: Nil) to its fund manager, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, in which a shareholder who
has significant influence over the Group also is a shareholder with significant

influence over the fund manager.

24

iR M SRR (48)

e

N

(f&)?ﬁ%‘l‘)&?ﬁé%ZﬁEﬂﬁE
IIE

Bt : (&)

2

M2018F2 238 AEBIKEIE L ER
& (RE SRS M) 250% (FHE R L
24,950,0008% ) 7~ A f& [B] « f SRR 2 2R
Do EMMERESN2018F3IANBZAF
B 49 /438,000,0007 T °

FETYMEESZREBBRBBHEA M
REZEERENKBETEFMERE A
EEEAIEE

BARFLT MAKELEE N EENDE
BB RB 2B REEREK ABEER
MESHSE MARREERELTYER
SHRERBRATEFABERZEREE-

FELETMER SRR HERE KR IREHR
2 A B 538,000,00058 Tt + H TH 1R ¥ 5% 1 B
AR AR AR (B2 5% E 3 & FE 2
BYBEABRMGEM) R EEETE -

ELETMERES 2 A FEEEIRAFE
B - REZE2018F3A31BHILFE A FEEBR
SEETE NI AR

RAFE FEMYERESRHEESEE (—
HREBEMEA L ZBERAR ER—&2H
AEBREEAVENZRRNAHE KR
BERTZENZRR) XN EIE E49253,000%
TC (20175  48&) °
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24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)
(d) (Continued)

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the unlisted

property fund are as follows:

The unlisted property fund was measured at fair value using the Monte-Carlo
Simulation analysis, at initial recognition and at the end of the subsequent

reporting period. The inputs into the model as at 31 March 2018 were as

follows:

Market value of the project GBP70,520,000
Expected volatility 5.75%
Time to maturity 2.89 years

Risk-free rate
- HK 1.625%
- United Kingdom 0.859%

As at 31 March 2018, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are denominated
in Hong Kong dollar for the unlisted property fund (2017: Hong Kong dollar for the

listed equity and United States dollar for the unlisted investment fund).

-

24 {i%ﬁﬁﬁl?ﬁé%ZﬁEﬁﬁE

MfaE: (&)
@ (8

MIELMMERESZHERBZITERRR
W

FEEMMEESIRAFEFERRILRERSR
DITERIRFER MR BB RS R = -
201853 A31 B MERFA 2 ER AT

HEMSEE 70,520,00054 &%
LN 5.75%
FI HREF PR 2.89%F
4 3 B | =

—&BE 1.625%
—i 0.859%

R2018F3A318 I LTMEREST S  BAFE
STABRRZEBMEENBTTE (201748 : ik
RSB TAHERIELTIREE S UAEITHE) -
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25 BEZEIHERE

Held-to-maturity investment comprise of: RHEEIHRERRE:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Debt debenture BEHES - 7,976
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RBEBRBBZONWT
Current asset mEEE = 7,976
The Group’s held-to-maturity investment represented debt AEEZHEEINBKRERESHR1208

debenture with maturity of 120 days at an interest rate of 9% per

annum.

Held-to-maturity investment was denominated in the United States
dollar and settled before 31 March 2018. It is unsecured and the

carrying value approximates to its fair value. BEE-

26 SHARE CAPITAL

26 BRA

Number of shares

K EE R R Fow EIFES

A ERMREAXITEHE RK20185F3A
JNAFIEN EAERMRARmELEERF

Share capital

gl 4=] [N
2018 2017 2018 2017
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000
T T T Fh%
Authorised: VERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 FRRAEECOIE T2
each Bk 1,000,000 1,000,000 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: EBITRHCE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 REXEAREE.OT
each at beginning of B IT 2 E R
the year 319,521 319,521 3,195 3,195
Issuance of consideration NS RN S
shares upon acquisition BEITRERSD
of associates (Note 17) (MgE17) 19,869 = 199 =
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 RERBARE(EO.0]
each at end of the year BT R 339,390 319,521 3,394 3,195




168 Affluent Partners Holdings Limited $2E1Z R G R A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

iR PSR M EE (48)

A= —d
26 SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 26 KA ()
Note: Bt 5
On 10 May 2017, the Company issued an aggregate of 19,868,766 ordinary shares to R20176F5 8108 AR B M E /5 3174 2£19,868,766
vendors for acquisition of 33% shareholding in Dellos Group. Details of the transactions, % A% - LA BE DellostE B33%MkHE - ZE R 5 (H
which also constituted disclosurable transactions as defined in Chapter 14 of the Listing MEN EMRBBUEREZETHEERS ) Z57F15
Rules, were disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 19 April 2017 and RARR BEA2017F4 8198 K2017F5 A10H 2 A
10 May 2017. EHHE
27 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 27 MBWEMRAE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHE R T
Finance income B 5 W e
Interest income on short-term bank R EIIRITIF 2 FLE A
deposits 5 74
Interest income on loans to associates MEtEARRHCERZ
F 2B A 825 =
830 74
Finance costs BT AR
Interest expenses on borrowings (Note) EEZFERAX (M) (603) -
Note: Bt o
On 10 April 2017, the Group entered into a credit facility with a financial institution for R2017F4F108  AEEHE—HEREEREZ A
a loan facility of up to HK$50,000,000. The facility was utilised for several times during 50,000,000/ T 2 E R E T L —HEE/E - %Rl
the year ended 31 March 2018. The loan bears interest at fixed rate of 8% per annum. BREZE2018F3A31 A IEFEHRERH - BERIE
The entire issued share capital of a subsidiary has been pledged to secure the facility BT FF Eewszt B - EHEIF—FHBRARIZEZEHE
granted to the Group. BITRANARAEBR L 2 gt BRI o
No further drawing has been made after the outstanding balances were fully settled, RSN AR ERERE  WEEE PR &
the facility was automatically cancelled and the charge was released accordingly. BEEEBEBEUE MR BERR -
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28 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28 EAREE
(a) Capital Commitments (@) BXREIE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure contracted for but BETAERR
not provided for in the consolidated REMBmEBEL
financial statements: BEARFZ
Purchase of property, plant and BEME WENEE
equipment = 192
(b) Operating Lease Commitments (b) KREHEHAE
The Group as lessee KEBEBFRBANA
As at 31 March 2018, the Group had outstanding R2018F3 8318 » REBIZR T 7 55
commitments for the future minimum lease payments under i i 2 T AT JB B A8 5 E B R 2R &
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: ERSMRZ MR EERT
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Operating leases which expire: K TR B DA R E O
Within one year —F N 13,132 14,237
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EFERF
(BREERMF) 12,697 27,709
25,829 41,946
The Group leases as offices and factories under non- AREBUTARHEEHERERES
cancellable operating lease commitments. Leases are WAERKE BHNZREFHFHRA
negotiated for an average term of one to three years (2017: —E=FQu7E:—Z2=4%) mHA
one to three years) and rentals are fixed during the relevant SR EBEBRREEE -

lease period.
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28 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Operating Lease Commitments (Continued)
The Group as lessor
As at 31 March 2018, the Group had the future minimum

lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases which
fall due as follows:

28 BEAEE (F)

(b)

REHERE (&)
KEFELHHA
20183 A31H » RE BN T HifA

T 2 TR A 4T TR TR R AR
ER ST -

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Operating leases which expire: KSR E T AT R E -
Within one year —F R 821 821
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZENF (BEEEREWRSF) - -
821 821

The Group leases certain of its offices under operating lease
arrangements with 3 months of non-cancellable period (2017:
3 months). Leases are negotiated for an average term of one
to three years (2017: one to three years) and rentals are fixed
during the relevant lease period.

At 31 March 2018, the Group had commitment, which is
contracted but not provided for and subject to fulfillment of
condition precedents to make acquisition of a subsidiary of
not less than HK$50,000,000 (2017: Nil). The relevant deposits
of HK$20,000,000 (Note 20(b)(ii)) were paid during the year
ended 31 March 2018.

At 31 March 2018, the Group had commitment, which is
contracted but not provided and subject to fulfillment of
condition precedents for to make the remaining capital
commitment to the unlisted property fund of HK$38,000,000
(2017: Nil).

(c)

(d)

RNEBBET A HE BB A3E A
(017F AR 2 EEHELHHE
EHETHAZE - HERTTEHTHA
—E=FQo7F:—FE=F) MMM
SREBRBREETE -

M2018F3831H ANEBABCD G4
18R B 2 A R 0 7B 15 B AR ST R IE
% FA{EE  LAWE —EA IR
50,000,000/ 7T 2 [t /B 2 & (20174 :
2 ) o §H B 3% £20,000,0005% 7T ( Fff 5F
20(b)(i1) ) B R & £2018F3 A31 8 IFF
ESENE

MR2018F3 318 AEBEBEF DB
R 2 A EW BFEX IR
% AOEE  UABELTMEESE
i 82 T B 2K & HE38,000,0007 7T (2017
FmE)o
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NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 29 FRERH
On 18 April 2017, the Group entered into a sale and purchase M2017F4H188  AEEEFI LB Bk - A
agreement to acquire 33% of entire issued share capital of Dellos I B Dellostk B 2 30 B BT IR AN 233% ° 1A
Group. On 10 May 2017, the Group completed the transaction 20175 H108  REE B TR S - mRE
and the consideration was satisfied by the payment of the cash B R IH e R E T 5£3,500,00078 7T & [ E 7 B
consideration of HK$3,500,000 and the allotment and issue of B R E%1719,868, 766X AN N AR E R (D (A
19,868,766 consideration shares of the Company in the aggregate F{EX) £76,693,0008 T (IRIBEREITREZ
fair value of approximately HK$76,693,000 based on the fair value of SR A FE3EHB LA E) )T
each share of HK$3.86 on issue date, to the vendors.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 BEAERS
(a) Key management compensation (a) TEEBAB ZEHMH
2018 2017
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHE R FAETT
Salaries, wages and other benefits ¥ e TEREMERN 7,746 4,027
Pension costs — defined contribution BESHNA—EREITGTE R
plans and social security costs tt & REER AN 113 60

7,859 4,087
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 BEALRS (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Save as disclosed elsewhere on the consolidated financial (b) BREGEUEHRKREAMIDFTHEIN -

statements, the Group entered into the following material
related party transactions. These transactions are made of
terms mutually agreed by the related parties.

KE BHETATEAFEALTRR S
ZERHIHIREZZEEBEANTERR
TE ZARFRET AL o

2018 2017
Related party relationship Nature of transaction HK$'000 HKS$'000
BEALTEE REME FHET THTT
Associates of the Company Interest income (Note 1) 825 -
RRRZEE QA MBYA (HHEET)
Entities which are significantly influenced  Rental income
by a key management who was also A& U A
a major shareholder of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2017 - 2,987
RBZE2017F3A318 ILFE - AR
MRARBEFERRZ —BEEE
BAERBEATENZER
Rental expenses - 2,430
e <
Recharge of administrative expenses - 639

Y| 2 1T 32

Note:

(1) Loans to associates as at 31 March 2018 were interest bearing ranging

from 5% to 6% per annum.

B :

M) R2018F3A3NB B EARIEREZE
RN TF5%E6%2 FFRTE -
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31 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
disposals of property, plant and equipment comprise:

iR M SRR (48)

31 RERERBERME

%:zEP HEWME  BFE k&

2018 2017
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHERT T
Net book value (Note 15) BREDFEE (FMP5E15) 59 244
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE - BE&ZEESE (H:F9)
plant and equipment (Note 9) (39) (183)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEE - BE R ZEEHIE
plant and equipment 20 61

32 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Nominal value of
issued share capital/

Place of establishment/
principal place

32 FEMEDQT

Percentage of equity

Name of subsidiary of operation registered capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
WEARERE Rus TELE Y ERTRE EMEREE AEEEGEEEI  FEXK
Directly Indirectly
E#& EEES
Arcadia Jewellery Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 - 100% Trading of jewellery products
EERMBRAR BE 4 R50000078 7T EEREEM
Man Sang Jewellery Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 = 100%  Trading of pearl products
(Hong Kong) Limited
RERE (BR)AERAA BE EERIET EBYKEM
Hui Bao Feng Jewellery PRC Registered capital US$2,000,000 - 100%  Purchasing and processing of
(Shenzhen) Limited pearls and assembling of
pearl jewellery
EELIRE (RYI) hE # 1 & 752,000,000 7T RERMIZ kKR
BRRA BERUURKE
Full Wealth Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100%  Financial assets investment

Hong Kong Limited
EREEABBERLAR EAH TRERIBT
The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the best effort
by the management of the Company in translating their Chinese
names as they do not have official English names.

As at 31 March 2018, none of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities (2017: Nil).

TRHEERE

EFHBARLME FEXEMH  HEXS
BRAATSEERRAS NBERXA
GEEETCE

R2018F3 8318  BHEH B AR B B T(ER
BREES (20174F &) -
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33 THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 33 KRR ZEEER

COMPANY
Statement of financial position Bt 75 iR O %
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2018 2017
Note HK$’'000 HKS$'000
e FET FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RARZEE 11,198 11,198
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UK B JB R B FR B 178,162 148,012
189,360 159,210
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR B H fth & LU BR 3K 63 30
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UK B /B~ Bl FR B 97,299 109,768
Cash and cash equivalents B RERES 11,843 21,968
109,205 131,766
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables e AT BR K 576 617
Net current assets REBEEFE 108,629 131,149
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERMEBAS 297,989 290,359
Net assets EEFE 297,989 290,359
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company ARAFRREGER
Share capital & A 3,394 3,195
Reserves ] @) 294,595 287,164
Total equity BER 297,989 290,359
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of ARAREEBEREN2018F6H2BESE
Directors on 29 June 2018 and was signed on its behalf. SR ETHATEERRES
Yuen Ching Bor Stephen Cheung Sze Ming
RIE) REFH
Chairman and Non-Executive Director Executive Director

FERIFHTEF HITEF



Annual Report 2018 £3f 175

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

iR M SRR (48)

33 THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 33 AQRZHBESR (&)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Statement of financial position (Continued) BT (&)
Notes: MisE -
(a) Reserves movement of the Company (a) KRB HEE
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
R GsE ZitEE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
At 31 March 2016 A20165F3A31H 334,316 (25,697) 308,619
Loss for the year KEFZEHE = (21,455) (21,455)
At 31 March 2017 A20175F3 8318 334,316 (47,152) 287,164
Issue of consideration shares upon RULEEEE & D R R ITRERD
acquisition of associates (Note 17) (HtzE17) 76,494 = 76,494
Loss for the year REEEBRE - (69,063) (69,063)

At 31 March 2018 7201853 A31H 410,810 (116,215) 294,595
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34 EENERER

EERTHRARME
FEFRITRBRZMEIRMT :

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is
set out below:

B Z2018F3H831H L FE:
HEBEE (TimA LA B
FIKE)ZREENTFTEFNEFE

For the year ended 31 March 2018:
Aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in
respect of their services as directors, whether of the company

or its subsidiary undertaking Wz Bz
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director’s other
servicesin
Remunerations connect
Employer's paid or with the
Estimated toa inrespect  of the affairs
money value retirement  of accepting  of the company
Discretionary Housing of other benefit officeas orits subsidiary
Name of director Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefits scheme director  under takings Total
HEPEE
EACES
EMBARER
ETHER BREE JESHAMRE
AftRlEz BRHE  BEEAE  SNRmk
B2y e #s BiEL ERRE HENER HiR ERZER HftHE at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TER TER TER TiEx TER TET
Executive Directors 1782
Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy Archambaud-Chao Percy
Henry Junior Henry Junior5% 4 - 960 - - - 18 - - 978
Mr. Lee Tsz Hang FHERE - 960 - - - 18 - - 978
Mr. Leung Alex RRBAE - 120 - - - - - - 120
Mr.Lan Zhi Cheng (Chairman) (note a) EEHAE (XF) (Fia) - 480 - - - 9 - = 489

Mr. Luk Siu Fung Mark (note b) R84 (Hizkh) - 640 - - - 12 - - 652
Non-Executive Director FanEs
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen RERAE (X8 (Hzkc)
(Chairman) (note c) 60 - - - - - - - 60
60 3,160 - - - 57 - - 3277
Independent Non-Executive Directors BV FH{TEZ
Mr. Pang Siu Yin (28 vt 220 - - - - - - - 220
Mr.Lai Yat Yuen RERAE 220 - - - - - - - 220
Mr. Lee Kin Keung FRBEE 220 - - - - - - - 20
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen REREE 220 - - - - - - - 220
880 = - = = = - = 880
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a2z
34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 3 EEfamkER (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) ESRITHARME (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2017: BE2017F3A31HLFE:
Aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in M RBEE (T L a2 A NTE L
respect of their services as directors, whether of the company RIEF)RBEENTFTEFLEFE
or its subsidiary undertaking Wz gz
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director's other
servicesin
Remunerations connect
Employer's paid or with the
contribution receivable management
Estimated toa in respect of the affairs
money value retirement of accepting ~ of the company
Discretionary Housing of other benefit officeas  orits subsidiary
Name of director Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefits scheme director ~ under takings Total
HEHER
ENGES
EHBARER

ETHRHK EmES CEIAMRY
RbiliEz BHHE  BRENR Ef%mkz

321 e e B RN (AERER HitR ERZEM Hioe @t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FhAL TEL TAT FhL TAL TAT FET FAL TAL
Executive Directors $17EE
Mr. Lan Zhi Cheng (Chairman) (notea) B354 () (Hiia) - 3 - - - 8 - - 360
Archambaud-Chao Percy
Mr. Archambaud-Chao Percy Henry Junior Henry JuniorE 4 - 352 - - - 8 = = 360
Mr. Luk Siu Fung Mark (note b) RESk 8% 4 (D) - m - - - 6 - - m
Mr.Lee Tsz Hang FFEEE - 271 - - - 6 - - 07
Mr. Leung Alex PRERE - 17 - - - - - - 17
Ms.Yan Sau Man, Amy A%ME - 125 - - - 14 - - 1,266
M. Chen Zhi Wei REBEE - pi] - - - 2 - - 30
Non-Executive Director FanES
Mr. Cheng Chung Hing HRELE = = = S = = S S =
= 26483 = = = 4 = = 2687

Independent Non-Executive Directors B I ¥ #{TEE

Mr.Pang Siu Yin YRBRE 81 - - - - - - B 81
Mr. Lai Yat Yuen BRREE 81 - - - - - - - 81
Mr. Lee Kin Keung TERLE 81 - - - - - - - 81
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen REREE 62 - - - - - - - 62
Mr. Fung Yat Sang BRERE 20 - - - - - - - 20
Mr. Look Andrew BEREE 20 - - - - - - - 20
Mr. Tsui, Francis King Chung EYhEE 20 = = = = = = = 20

965 2643 = = = 4 = = 3652
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

iR PSR M EE (48)

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly

for their services as directors of the Company.

(a) Mr. Lan Zhi Cheng resigned as an executive director on 1 February
2018.

(b) Mr. Luk Siu Fung Mark resigned as an executive director on 19 March
2018.

(© Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen was appointed as non-executive director

on 1 February 2018.

(d) During the year ended 31 March 2018, Mr. Lan Zhi Cheng and Mr. Luk
Siu Fung Mark agreed to waive their partial emoluments of HK$480,000
and 320,000 voluntarily respectively (2017: Nil).

(e) Other benefits include leave pay and insurance premium. Other
benefits consist of approximate ratable value and rent of the properties

for accommodation and other related expenses.

(f) Mr. Cheung Sze Ming was appointed as executive director on 1 April

2018.

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits or termination benefits during the year (2017: Nil).

-

3 EEfmkER (&)

(a)

(b)

EERTHARME (&)

i

ExXprsTERE e EZANREMIE
HEARARAEEEBERFHZ R -
EXFERTEE S T RANREE
RARNAINENEB AR EEAIRM 2 R -
EXFABIIFRTEEZHME T ZANRK
SERARRRIEFMEHRZ R -

@)  EEMALER2018F2 A1 BEHIHITE
$ °

(o)  BEJKSRLATR2018F3 198 BHEHTT
EEo

©  REBERLENR2018F2H1BEZTAIE
HITES-

d  REZE2018F3A3H ILFE  ELEM
FAERPEKEEEDRIREABERE
1% %5 2 35 5 B 480,000 7T £.320,000
HBIT (20174 1 &) ©

@ EtEFEEEHFRILRRFE -H
AR M BIEEE YR 2 B4 R =M
HEIESREMEBER -

(f) ReFHIAEN2018F4 F1 BEZ T AH
TESE-

EEZRNERNERERERN
ANERE AR EES S WA IER

{2 fa] 3R PR A ) Sk B 48 A (201746 -
®)-
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company did not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2017: Nil).

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
During the year ended 31 March 2018, there were no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of
Directors, or controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors (2017: Nil).

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements,
no significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company's business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year (2017: Nil).

35 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As disclosed in Note 1, Pacific Wish acquired 168,177,382 shares,
representing approximately 49.55% of the issued share capital of
the Company on 9 May 2018, Pacific Wish is required to make a
mandatory conditional cash offer (the “Offer”) for all the issued
shares (other than those already owned or to be acquired by Pacific
Wish and the parties acting in concert with it). Details of the Offer
were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 7 May 2018, 9
May 2018 and 25 May 2018.

Saved as disclosed, no other significant events have taken place
subsequent to 31 March 2018.

iR M SRR (48)

3 EEfamkER (&)

() MERHESEREMOQE=SL
RHEz2RE
REE2018F3A31H ILFE * AA A
W R EIR M E BRI M R ERE =
A EARE (20175 &) -

(d) BRANUES EFRERE
ErRAEERRAREAZE
R EERREMXZ2EHR

REZE2018F3831BIEFE KA T
AR RS E 7 M B A B RT S A
EE BEEXEHEBREEER
BREBAZET EEFRREMRS
ZHE (201745 : £8) o

(e) EERNRG THHEHNFZ
EXER
BRiRaMBRERMABEEIN RAF
B RS AF E A E IR R RQ R
BERIEMPRARB 2 EBMAR
AZEFTERNHBREETHEAEX
BRECEER G RHRE K (2017
FE) -

35 REHMRER

BANFTEE FTHEE - B EEE 201865 89H
W ig168,1773820 B 0 (FEE R AR AIE %
TTHR AR 494955% ) - B B H AR BB 2 &7
RO (TEREEERIE—BITHALTEE
B TWEE) REEBFERERERSE
ORG-S SHDIER=-F ohvd= 3 9iAV/N/NCIR= R
A2018F5 78 ~ 20185 H9H K&20184F5 A
252 RAE-

B EXFTREESIN 1201843 A31 B W&
BAHMBERE -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFHEREE

RESULTS ES
For the year ended 31 March
BZE3A3ALEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR THT THT FTET THT
(Note a) (Note a) (Note a) (Note a) (Note b)
(Ktata) (Piizta) (PsEa) (Bizta) (FizEDb)
Revenue WA 187,357 212,232 210,019 270,709 268473
(Loss)/profit before income tax BREEHA (BR) /RA (128,555) (24,282) (10,858) 16,049 32,024
Income tax (expense)/credit R (AX) /B (1,232) 3% 82) (5993) (2428)
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of AR RIRRELEE
the Company for the year (B8 &7 (129,787) (23,886) (10,940) 10,056 29,596
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
At 31 March
M3A318
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TET THT THET
(Note a) (Note a) (Note a) (Note a) (Note b)
(Kizta) (BitzEa) GBS (PsEa) (PtaEb)
Total assets BEE 254,068 313,238 339,303 358,494 492,120
Total liabilities Baf 17,560 23,153 25,646 90,896 93,259
Equity attributable to equity holders of ARRRE
the Company MR 236,508 290,085 313,657 267,598 398,861
Notes: BT 5E
(a) The financial figures were extracted from the consolidated financial statements in the (a) MEEF M F R R EMBRE -
annual report.
(b)  The financial figures were extracted from the Listing Document dated 30 September () MBEFIIHEEB B HR2014F9H30H 8 EH X

2014, o



I AFFLUENT PARTNERS HOLDINGS LIMITED
BE semmarmoea



	COVER
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	CORPORATE PROFILE
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
	MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	BACK COVER

